
Coral Springs 

Improvement District 

 

Agenda 

 

January 25, 2016 

Agenda Package 1



Agenda Package 2



Agenda Package 3



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

MINUTES  

Agenda Package 4



   

Unapproved Minutes 

MINUTES OF MEETING 

CORAL SPRINGS IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 

 

 A regular meeting of the Board of Supervisors of the Coral Springs Improvement District 

was held on Monday, December 21, 2015 at 4:00 p.m. at the District Office, 10300 NW 11th 

Manor, Coral Springs, Florida.   

 

 Present and constituting a quorum were: 

  

 Martin Shank President  

 Duane Holland  Vice President  

 Nick St. Cavish Secretary 

     

 Also present were: 

  

 Kenneth Cassel District Manager  

 William Capko  District Counsel 

 Dan Daly  Director of Operations 

 Troy Lyn District Engineer 

 David McIntosh Director of Utilities 

 Ed Stover   Water Department 

 Curt Dwiggins Field Superintendent  

 Tim Martin  Wastewater Department 

 Rick Olson  Globaltech 

 John McKune  Consultant  

 Harold Aiken MWH Engineering       

   

 The following is a summary of the minutes and actions taken during the December 21, 

2015 CSID Board of Supervisors Meeting.  

    

FIRST ORDER OF BUSINESS Roll Call 

 Mr. Cassel called the meeting to order and called the roll. 

 

SECOND ORDER OF BUSINESS Approval of the Minutes of the November 

16, 2015 Meeting 

Mr. Shank stated each Board member received a copy of the minutes of the November 

16, 2015 meeting and requested any corrections, additions or deletions. 

There being none,  

  

On MOTION by Mr. Holland seconded by Mr. Shank with all in 

favor the minutes of the November 16, 2015 meeting were 

approved. 

 

Agenda Package 5



December 21, 2015  Coral Springs Improvement District 

Unapproved Minutes 2 

FOURTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Consideration of Amendment #1 to Work 

Authorization #107 for Design Build 

Services Related to Four-Log Virus 

Treatment Demonstration Permitting for 

an Increase of $3,250 

  Mr. Lyn reviewed Amendment #1 to Work Authorization #107. 

 

On MOTION by Mr. St. Cavish seconded by Mr. Holland with all 

in favor Amendment #1 to Work Authorization #107 for a not to 

exceed increase of $3,250 was approved. 

 

THIRD ORDER OF BUSINESS Audience Comments 

 Mr. Aiken provided the Board with an update on the use of microbeads, the process as 

well as current results.  Microbeads are special beads that will treat biologically active nutrients 

in the water. 

 

FIFTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Consideration of Contract Renewal with 

FP Mailing Solutions 

 Mr. Daly stated this is a renewal and there are no changes to the terms or pricing.   

  

On MOTION by Mr. Holland seconded by Mr. St. Cavish with all 

in favor the contract renewal with FP Mailing Solutions was 

approved. 

 

SIXTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Staff Reports 

A. Manager – Ken Cassel 

 Mr. Cassel reported he sent a follow up letter to Mr. Donmez, but has not received a 

response.  Mr. McIntosh and Mr. Wiggins are working on Three Mountains Park and 

communications with City staff; however, there are no responses at this time. 

 There was discussion regarding the interconnect with Margate and the status of the survey 

to locate the utility easement for the purpose of negotiations with the property owners. 

  

 B. Engineer – Troy Lyn (Report Included) 

 Mr. Lyn reviewed the Project Status Report, a copy of which is attached hereto and made 

a part of the public record. 

 

C. Department Reports 

 Operations – Dan Daly 

 Utility Billing Work Orders 

 This item is for informational purposes only. 

Agenda Package 6



December 21, 2015  Coral Springs Improvement District 

Unapproved Minutes 3 

   

 Utilities Update (David McIntosh) 

 Mr. McIntosh reported on remediation for the diesel tank.  They are waiting for the test 

results on the ground soil samples the County requested.  The ground water sample results were 

clean.  He also reported some staff, including himself, visited Measutronics to look at the 

scanning radar system for the canals.  It is a good system, but may not be the best for what is 

needed.  He is looking into pricing for Atkins to do a categorization of the canals. 

 

 Water – Ed Stover (Report Included) 

 A copy of the report was included in the agenda package and is attached hereto as part of 

the public record. 

 

 Wastewater – Tim Martin (Report Included) 

 A copy of the report was included in the agenda package and is attached hereto as part of 

the public record. 

 

 Stormwater – Randy Frederick (Report Included) 
 A copy of the report was included in the agenda package and is attached hereto as part of 

the public record. 

 

 Field – Curt Dwiggins (Report Included) 

 A copy of the reports were included in the agenda package and is attached hereto as part 

of the public record. 

   

 Human Resources – Jan Zilmer 

 There being no report, the next item followed.  

 

 Motion to Accept Department Reports 
   

On MOTION by Mr. Holland seconded by Mr. St. Cavish with all 

in favor the department reports were accepted. 

 

 

D. Attorney  

 Mr. Capko reported the following: 

 The complaint against the City for the fire assessments will be filed in Circuit Court 

tomorrow and served to the City Manager.   

Agenda Package 7



December 21, 2015  Coral Springs Improvement District 

Unapproved Minutes 4 

 There was discussion regarding the City’s contract with Waste Pro and whether the 

District can contract with a different company for waste services being it is a 

government agency.  Mr. Capko stated the City probably has the authority to issue the 

franchise for solid waste.  There may be issues to raise with the City if they set up a 

pricing schedule where Waste Pro is subsidizing the City by having higher charges for 

other property owners and agencies. 

 

SEVENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Approval of Financial Statements for 

November 2015 

 The Board reviewed the financials. 

 

On MOTION by Mr. St. Cavish seconded by Mr. Holland with all 

in favor the financials were approved. 

 

EIGHTH ORDER OF BUSINESS  Supervisors’ Request 

 There being none, the next item followed. 

 

NINTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Adjournment 
 There being no further business, 

  

On MOTION by Mr. St. Cavish seconded by Mr. Holland with all 

in favor the meeting was adjourned. 

 

 

 

     

Kenneth Cassel   Martin Shank 

Assistant Secretary    President  

Agenda Package 8



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Fourth Order of Business 
  

Agenda Package 9



 

 

Proposed Rates and fees for emergency repairs billed to outside contractors/companies that damage 

our infrastructure. 

 

Labor Rate per Employee per Hour   $45.00 / HR 

After hours (overtime) Labor Rate per 

Employee per hour     $67.50/HR 

 

Use of backhoe equipment (includes operator)  $130.00/HR 

After hours (overtime) backhoe equipment  $152.50/HR 

Charge for Sewer Line Cleaning Machine   $65.00/HR 

 

 

Agenda Package 10



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Sixth Order of Business 
  

Agenda Package 11



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Coral Springs Improvement District 
 
Basic Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended September 30, 2015 
 

Agenda Package 12



 

 

Coral Springs Improvement District 
 
Table of Contents 
 
 
Independent Auditor's Report  1‐2 
 
Management's Discussion and Analysis (Not Covered by  
Independent Auditor's Report)  3‐7 
 
 
Basic Financial Statements 
 
Government‐wide Financial Statements: 
 
Statement of Net Position  8 
 
Statement of Activities  9 
 
Fund Financial Statements: 
 
Balance Sheet ‐ Governmental Fund  10 
 
Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet of the Governmental 
Fund to the Statement of Net Position  11 
 
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Change in 
Fund Balance ‐ Governmental Fund  12 
 
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures 
and Change in Fund Balance of the Governmental Fund to 
the Statement of Activities  13 
 
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Change in 
Fund Balance ‐ Budget and Actual ‐ General Fund  14 
 
Statement of Net Position ‐ Proprietary Fund  15 
 
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Change in 
Net Position ‐ Proprietary Fund  16 
 
Statement of Cash Flows ‐ Proprietary Fund  17‐18 
 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements  19‐31 
 
 
Required Supplemental Information 
 
Schedule of Funding Progress ‐ Other Post‐Employment Benefits  32 
 
 
Other Financial Information 
 
Schedule of Operating Expenses by Department ‐ Proprietary Fund  33 
 
 

Agenda Package 13



 

 

Coral Springs Improvement District 
 
Table of Contents 
(continued) 
 
 
Other Reports of Independent Auditor’s  
 
Independent Auditor's Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting  
and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial 
Statements Performed in Accordance with Governmental Auditing Standards  34‐35 
 
Independent Auditor's Report to District Management  36‐38 
 
Independent Auditors Report on Compliance with Section 218.415, Florida Statutes  39 
 
 
 

Agenda Package 14



KMCcpa.com  |  6550 N Federal Hwy, 4th Floor   Fort Lauderdale, FL 33308   Phone: 954.771.0896   Fax: 954.938.9353

 

1 

 
 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 
 
 
To the Board of Supervisors 
Coral Springs Improvement District 
Coral Springs, Florida 
 
Report on the Financial Statements 
 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business‐
type activities, and each major fund of Coral Springs Improvement District (the “District”) as of and for 
the  year  ended  September  30,  2015,  and  the  related  notes  to  the  financial  statements,  which 
collectively comprise the District’s basic financial statements as listed in the table contents. 
 
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
 
Management  is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements  in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes 
the design,  implementation, and maintenance of  internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud 
or error. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibility 
 
Our  responsibility  is  to  express  opinions  on  these  financial  statements  based  on  our  audit.  We 
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America, and the standard applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, 
issued by  the Comptroller General of  the United  States.  Those  standards  require  that we plan  and 
perform  the  audit  to obtain  reasonable  assurance  about whether  the  financial  statements  are  free 
from material misstatement. 
 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures 
in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s 
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that 
are  appropriate  in  the  circumstances,  but  not  for  the  purpose  of  expressing  an  opinion  on  the 
effectiveness of  the entity’s  internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also 
includes  evaluating  the  appropriateness  of  accounting  policies  used  and  the  reasonableness  of 
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation 
of the financial statements. 
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained  is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our audit opinions. 
 
 
 

Agenda Package 15



 

2 

Coral Springs Improvement District 
 
 
Opinions 
 
In our opinion, the  financial statements referred to above present  fairly,  in all material respects, the 
respective  financial  position  of  the  governmental  activities,  the  business‐type  activities,  and  each 
major fund of the District, as of September 30, 2015, and the respective changes  in financial position 
and, where applicable, cash flows thereof and budgetary comparison of the General Fund for the year 
then  ended  in  accordance  with  accounting  principles  generally  accepted  in  the  United  States  of 
America. 
 
Other Matters 
 
Required Supplementary Information 
 
Accounting  principles  generally  accepted  in  the  United  States  of  America  require  that  the 
management’s discussion and analysis on pages 3 through 7 and schedule of funding progress ‐ other 
post‐employment  benefits  on  page  32  be  presented  to  supplement  the  basic  financial  statements. 
Such  information,  although  not  a  part  of  the  basic  financial  statements,  is  required  by  the 
Governmental  Accounting  Standards  Board,  who  considers  it  to  be  an  essential  part  of  financial 
reporting  for  placing  the  basic  financial  statements  in  an  appropriate  operational,  economic,  or 
historical  context.  We  have  applied  certain  limited  procedures  to  the  required  supplementary 
information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, 
which  consisted  of  inquiries  of management  about  the methods  of  preparing  the  information  and 
comparing  the  information  for consistency with management’s  responses  to our  inquiries,  the basic 
financial  statements,  and  other  knowledge  we  obtained  during  our  audit  of  the  basic  financial 
statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the  information because the 
limited procedures do not provide us with  sufficient evidence  to express an opinion or provide any 
assurance 
 
Other Information 
 
Our  audit  was  conducted  for  the  purpose  of  forming  opinions  on  the  financial  statements  that 
collectively  comprise  the  District’s  financial  statements  as  a  whole.    The  schedule  of  operating 
expenses by department on page 33 as  listed  in  the  table of  contents  is presented  for purposes of 
additional  analysis  and  is not  a  required part of  the basic  financial  statements of  the District.    The 
schedule of operating expenses by department  is the responsibility of management and was derived 
from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial 
statements.  The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the 
financial  statements  and  certain  additional  procedures,  including  comparing  and  reconciling  such 
information  directly  to  the  underlying  accounting  and  other  records  used  to  prepare  the  financial 
statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures  in accordance 
with  auditing  standards  generally  accepted  in  the  United  States  of  America.    In  our  opinion,  the 
information  is  fairly stated,  in all material  respects,  in  relation  to  the basic  financial statements as a 
whole. 
 
Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 
 
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also  issued our report dated January 7, 
2016, on our consideration of the District’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of 
its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other 
matters. The purpose of  that  report  is  to describe  the  scope of our  testing of  internal  control over 
financial  reporting and compliance and  the  results of  that  testing, and not  to provide an opinion on 
internal control over  financial reporting or on compliance. That report  is an  integral part of an audit 
performed  in  accordance with Government Auditing  Standards  in  considering  the District’s  internal 
control over financial reporting and compliance. 
 
 
KEEFE McCULLOUGH  
 
Fort Lauderdale, Florida 
January 7, 2016 

Agenda Package 16



 

3 

Coral Springs Improvement District 
Management's Discussion and Analysis 
September 30, 2015 
 
 

Our  discussion  and  analysis  of  Coral  Springs  Improvement  District’s  (the  “District”)  financial 
performance provides an objective and easily readable analysis of the District’s financial activities.  
The  analysis  provides  summary  financial  information  for  the  District  and  should  be  read  in 
conjunction with the District’s financial statements.   

 
Financial Highlights 
 

The following are the highlights of financial activity for the year ended September 30, 2015: 
 

•  The District’s  total assets exceeded  total  liabilities by $ 53,638,510  (net 
position).  Unrestricted  net  position  for  governmental  activities  was 
$ 5,623,422. 

 
•  Governmental  activities  revenues  totaled  $ 1,866,214  while 

governmental  activities  expenses  totaled  $ 1,165,284.    Business‐type 
revenues  totaled  $ 13,227,840,  including  interest  income  and  realized 
gain  on  investments  totaling  $ 35,115.  Business‐type  expenses  totaled 
$ 13,374,826. 

 
Overview of the Financial Statements 
 

The District’s basic financial statements comprise three components:  1) government‐wide financial 
statements,  2)  fund  financial  statements,  and  3)  notes  to  basic  financial  statements.    The 
government‐wide financial statements present an overall picture of the District’s financial position 
and  results  of  operations.    The  fund  financial  statements  present  financial  information  for  the 
District’s  major  fund.    The  notes  to  basic  financial  statements  provide  additional  information 
concerning the District’s finances that are not disclosed  in the government‐wide or fund financial 
statements. 

 
Government‐Wide  Financial  Statements:    The  Government‐wide  financial  statements  are  the 
statement  of  net  position  and  the  statement  of  activities.    These  statements  use  accounting 
methods similar to those used by private‐sector companies.  Emphasis is placed on the net position 
of  governmental  activities  and  business‐type  activities  and  the  change  in  net  position.  
Governmental  activities  are  primarily  supported  by  property  tax  assessments.    Business‐type 
activities  are  supported  by  charges  to  the  users  of  those  activities,  such  as  water  and  sewer 
services. 
 
The statement of net position presents information on all assets and liabilities of the District, with 
the difference between assets, deferred inflow/outflows of resources and liabilities reported as net 
position.  Net  position  is  reported  in  three  categories:    1)  net  investment  in  capital  assets;  2) 
restricted  and;  3) unrestricted.    Assets,  liabilities,  and  net  position  are  reported  for  all 
governmental  activities  separate  from  the  assets,  liabilities,  and  net  position  of  business‐type 
activities. 
 
 

Agenda Package 17



 

4 

Coral Springs Improvement District 
Management's Discussion and Analysis 
September 30, 2015 
 
 

The statement of activities presents  information on all revenues and expenses of the District and 
the  change  in  net  position.    Expenses  are  reported  by major  function  and  program.    Revenues 
relating  to  those  functions  are  reported, providing  the net  cost of  all  functions provided by  the 
District.    To  assist  in  understanding  the  District’s  operations,  expenses  have  been  reported  as 
governmental activities or business‐type activities.  Governmental activities financed by the District 
include physical environment and general government.   Business‐type activities  financed by user 
charges include water and sewer services. 

 
Fund  Financial  Statements:    Fund  financial  statements  present  financial  information  for 
governmental funds and proprietary funds.  These statements provide financial information for the 
major  funds of  the District.   Governmental  fund  financial statements provide  information on  the 
current  assets  and  liabilities  of  the  fund,  changes  in  current  financial  resources  (revenues  and 
expenditures), and current available resources.   The enterprise  fund  financial statements provide 
information on all assets and  liabilities of the fund, changes  in the economic resources (revenues 
and expenses), and total economic resources. 
 
Fund financial statements include a balance sheet and a statement of revenues, expenditures and 
change  in  fund balance  for  the governmental  fund.   A statement of  revenues, expenditures, and 
change  in  fund  balance  ‐  budget  and  actual,  is  provided  for  the  District’s  General  Fund.    For 
enterprise funds, a statement of net position, a statement of revenues, expenses and change in net 
position, and a  statement of cash  flows are presented.   Fund  financial  statements provide more 
detailed information about the District’s activities.  Individual funds are established by the District 
to track revenues that are restricted to certain uses and to comply with legal requirements. 
 
The  government‐wide  financial  statements  and  the  fund  financial  statements  provide  different 
pictures of  the District.   The government‐wide  financial  statements provide an overall picture of 
the District’s financial standing, split between governmental activities and business‐type activities.  
These statements are comparable  to private‐sector companies and give a good understanding of 
the  District’s  overall  financial  health  and  how  the  District  paid  for  the  various  activities,  or 
functions, provided by  the District.   All assets of  the District,  including buildings,  land, machinery 
and equipment, construction‐in‐progress and  infrastructure are  reported  in  the statement of net 
position.   All  liabilities,  including principal outstanding on bonds,  and  future  employee benefits, 
obligated but not paid by the District, are included.  The statement of activities includes a provision 
for  depreciation  of  all  long‐lived  assets  of  the  District,  but  transactions  between  the  different 
functions of  the District have been eliminated  in order  to avoid “doubling up”  the  revenues and 
expenses.  The fund financial statements provide a picture of the major funds of the District.  In the 
case of governmental activities, outlays for long‐lived assets are reported as expenditures and long‐
term liabilities, such as general obligations bonds, are not included in the fund financial statements.  
To provide a link from the fund financial statements to the government‐wide financial statements, 
reconciliations are provided  from the  fund  financial statements to the government‐wide  financial 
statements. 

 
Notes  to  the  Basic  Financial  Statements:    The  notes  provide  additional  information  that  is 
necessary to acquire a  full understanding of the data provided  in the government‐wide and  fund 
financial statements. The notes to the  financial statement can be on pages 19 through 31 of this 
report. 
 

Agenda Package 18



 

5 

Coral Springs Improvement District 
Management's Discussion and Analysis 
September 30, 2015 
 

 
Government‐Wide Financial Analysis 
 

As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful  indicator of financial position.   The 
following  table  reflects  the  condensed  government‐wide  statements  of  net  position  as  of 
September 30, 2015 and 2014: 

 
Coral Springs Improvement District 

Statements of Net Position 

2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014

Current and other assets $ 6,247,018 $ 9,310,273 $ 19,593,070 $ 19,308,132 $ 25,840,088 $ 28,618,405
Restricted assets ‐                  ‐                5,145,787 4,559,905 5,145,787 4,559,905
Capital assets (net) 5,967,124 1,746,794 61,003,503 62,992,082 66,970,627 64,738,876

Total assets 12,214,142 11,057,067 85,742,360    86,860,119 97,956,502 97,917,186

Other liabilities 539,388 92,558 3,081,573 2,967,897 3,620,961 3,060,455
Noncurrent liabilities 84,208 74,893 40,612,823 41,697,272 40,697,031 41,772,165

Total liabilities 623,596 167,451 43,694,396 44,665,169 44,317,992 44,832,620

Net position:
Net investments in capital assets 5,967,124 1,746,794 19,533,751 20,912,749 25,500,875 22,659,543
Restricted ‐                  ‐                5,145,787 4,075,009 5,145,787 4,075,009
Unrestricted 5,623,422      9,142,822 17,368,426    17,207,192 22,991,848 26,350,014

Total net position $ 11,590,546 $ 10,889,616 $ 42,047,964 $ 42,194,950 $ 53,638,510 $ 53,084,566

Governmental Activities Business‐Type Activities Total Primary Government

 
Governmental  and  Business‐Type  Activities:    Governmental  activities  increased  the  District’s  net 
position by $ 700,930, while business‐type activities decreased the District’s net position by $ 146,986, 
as reflected in the table below: 

 
Coral Springs Improvement District 

Statements of Activities 

2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
Revenues:
Charges for services $ 9,100 $ 6,750 $ 13,152,816 $ 12,716,122 $ 13,161,916 $ 12,722,872
Taxes: ‐               
 Assessments 1,811,819 1,992,062 ‐                  ‐                1,811,819 1,992,062
Other 30,116 29,528 39,909 115,512       70,025 145,040

Total revenues 1,851,035 2,028,340 13,192,725 12,831,634 15,043,760 14,859,974

Expenses:
General government 428,618 384,324 ‐                  ‐                428,618 384,324
Physical environment 653,841 548,771 ‐                  ‐                653,841 548,771
Water and sewer ‐                  ‐                7,061,414      6,705,704 7,061,414        6,705,704
Interest expense ‐                  ‐                1,964,095      1,919,778 1,964,095        1,919,778
Provisions for depreciation
 and amortization 82,825 87,521 4,349,317 4,261,406 4,432,142 4,348,927

Total expenses 1,165,284 1,020,616 13,374,826 12,886,888 14,540,110 13,907,504

Change in net position
 before other income
 (expense) 685,751 1,007,724 (182,101) (55,254) 503,650 952,470

Governmental Activities Business‐Type Activities Total Primary Government

 

 

Agenda Package 19



 

6 

Coral Springs Improvement District 
Management's Discussion and Analysis 
September 30, 2015 
 

 
Coral Springs Improvement District 

Statements of Activities 
(continued) 

2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014

Other income (expense):
Interest income 15,179 16,342 27,316 26,783 42,495 43,125
Realized and unrealized 
 gain/(loss)  on investments ‐                  ‐                7,799 (4,534) 7,799 (4,534)

Total other income
 (expense) 15,179 16,342 35,115 22,249 50,294 38,591

    Change in net position 700,930 1,024,066 (146,986) (33,005) 553,944 991,061

Net position, beginning
 of the year 10,889,616 9,865,550 42,194,950 42,227,955 53,084,566 52,093,505

Net position,
 end of the year $ 11,590,546 $ 10,889,616 $ 42,047,964 $ 42,194,950 $ 53,638,510 $ 53,084,566

Governmental Activities Business‐Type Activities Total Primary Government

 
Analysis of the Governmental Funds 
 

As noted  earlier,  the District uses  fund  accounting  to  ensure  and demonstrate  compliance with 
finance‐related  legal  requirements.    The  focus  of  the District’s  governmental  fund  is  to  provide 
information  on  near‐term  inflows,  outflows,  and  balances  of  spendable  resources.    Such 
information  is useful  in assessing  the District’s  financing  requirements.    In particular, unassigned 
fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a District’s net resources available for spending at 
the end of the fiscal year.  The General Fund is the only governmental fund. 
 
As of the end of the current fiscal year, the District’s governmental fund reported an ending fund 
balance of $ 5,727,643. 

 
Capital Assets and Debt Administration 
 

The  District’s  capital  assets  less  accumulated  depreciation  for  its  governmental  activities  and 
business‐type  activities  as  of  September  30,  2015  amounts  to  $ 5,967,124  and  $ 61,003,503, 
respectively, and consists of  land, buildings,  infrastructure, machinery and equipment, easements 
and construction‐in‐progress. 
 
At  the  end  of  the  year,  the  District’s  business  activities  had  general  obligation  bond  debt 
outstanding of $ 41,469,752. 
 
Additional  information on  the District’s debt can be  found  in Note 7 on pages 26 and 27 of  this 
report. 
 
General Fund Budgetary Highlights:   An operating budget for the General Fund was adopted and 
maintained  by  the  governing  board  for  the  District  pursuant  to  the  requirements  of  Florida 
Statutes.   The General Fund budget  is adopted using the same basis of accounting that  is used  in 
preparation of  the  fund  financial statements.   The budget  to actual comparisons  for  the General 
Fund, including the original and final adopted budget, is shown on page 14. 
 
 

Agenda Package 20



 

7 

Coral Springs Improvement District 
Management's Discussion and Analysis 
September 30, 2015 
 

 
The District experienced a favorable variance in revenues compared to the General Fund budget in 
the  amount  of  $ 50,903.    The  District  also  experienced  a  favorable  variance  in  expenditures 
compared to the General Fund budget in the amount of $ 37,871.   

 
Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budgets 
 

The  2016  General  Fund’s  budgeted  expenditures  decreased  by  approximately  $ 46,000.    The 
expenditures  remain  relatively  the  same due  to capital  improvements  for canal bank  restoration 
and pump  station  repairs.    The  2016 Water  and  Sewer  Fund’s budgeted  expenses  increased by 
approximately  $ 302,000.    The  increase  is  due  to  the  budgeting  of  capital  projects  that will  be 
completed in 2016.  The District’s utility rates will not change for fiscal year ended September 30, 
2016.  

 
Requests for Information 
 

This  financial  report  is  designed  to  provide  a  general  overview  of  Coral  Springs  Improvement 
District’s  finances  for  all  those with  an  interest.   Questions  concerning  any  of  the  information 
provided  in  this  report or  requests  for  additional  information  should be  addressed  to  the Coral 
Springs Improvement District, 10300 N.W. 11th Manor, Coral Springs, Florida 33071. 
 
 

Agenda Package 21



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

BASIC 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Agenda Package 22



 

The accompanying notes to basic financial statements are an integral part of these statements. 
 
8 

Governmental Business‐Type
Activities Activities Total

Assets:
Current assets:
 Cash and cash equivalents $ 5,956,401 $ 17,265,868 $ 23,222,269
 Investments 260,928 257,486 518,414
 Accounts receivable ‐                    1,206,785 1,206,785
 Due from other sources ‐                    506,562 506,562
 Due from other governments ‐                    60,982 60,982
 Accrued interest receivable 3,622 4,675 8,297
 Prepaid items 26,067 290,712 316,779
 Restricted cash and cash equivalents ‐                    5,145,787 5,145,787
Noncurrent assets:
 Capital assets:
  Depreciable (net) 955,127            59,226,866 60,181,993
  Nondepreciable 5,011,997         1,776,637 6,788,634

Total assets 12,214,142 85,742,360 97,956,502

Liabilities:
Current liabilities:
 Accounts payable 43,139 220,553 263,692
 Accrued expenses 11,762 75,663 87,425
 Contracts payable 449,266            313,520 762,786
 Compensated absences payable 20,013 108,906 128,919
 Customer deposits 10,000              552,815 562,815
 Internal balances 5,208 (5,208) ‐                   
 Payable from restricted assets:
  Accrued interest payable ‐                    645,324 645,324
  Current portion of bonds payable ‐                    1,170,000 1,170,000
Noncurrent liabilities:
 Net OPEB obligation 32,052 211,948 244,000
 Compensated absences payable 52,156 101,123 153,279
 Bonds payable ‐                    40,299,752 40,299,752

Total liabilities 623,596 43,694,396 44,317,992

Net Position:
Net investment in capital assets 5,967,124 19,533,751 25,500,875
Restricted for renewal and replacement ‐                    4,001,476 4,001,476
Restricted for debt service ‐                    1,144,311 1,144,311
Unrestricted 5,623,422 17,368,426 22,991,848

Total net position $ 11,590,546 $ 42,047,964 $ 53,638,510

Coral Springs Improvement District
Statement of Net Position
September 30, 2015

 
 
 

Agenda Package 23



 

The accompanying notes to basic financial statements are an integral part of these statements. 
 
9 

Net (Expense) Revenue and
Program Revenues Changes in Net Position

Charges Operating Capital
for Grants and Grants and Governmental Business‐Type

Expenses Services Contributions Contributions Activities Activities Total
Functions/Programs:
Governmental activities:
 General government $ 428,618 $ ‐                $ ‐                $ ‐                 $ (428,618) $ ‐                $ (428,618)
 Physical environment 653,841 9,100 ‐                ‐                 (644,741) ‐                (644,741)
 Provision for depreciation 82,825 ‐                ‐                ‐                 (82,825) ‐                (82,825)

Total governmental activities 1,165,284 9,100 ‐                ‐                 (1,156,184) ‐                (1,156,184)

Business‐type activities:
 Personal services 4,084,840 213,472       ‐                ‐                 ‐                (3,871,368) (3,871,368)
 Materials, supplies and services 2,976,574 12,939,344 ‐                ‐                 ‐                9,962,770 9,962,770
 Provision for depreciation
  and amortization 4,349,317 ‐                ‐                ‐                 ‐                (4,349,317) (4,349,317)
 Interest expense 1,964,095 ‐                ‐                ‐                 ‐                (1,964,095) (1,964,095)

Total business‐type activities 13,374,826 13,152,816 ‐                ‐                 ‐                (222,010) (222,010)

Total primary
 government $ 14,540,110 $ 13,161,916 $ ‐                $ ‐                 (1,156,184) (222,010) (1,378,194)

General revenues:
 Property taxes 1,811,819 ‐                1,811,819
 Interest income 15,179 27,316 42,495
 Miscellaneous income 30,116 39,909 70,025
 Realized gain on investments ‐                7,799 7,799

     Total general revenues 1,857,114 75,024 1,932,138

          Change in net position 700,930 (146,986) 553,944

Net position, October 1, 2014 10,889,616 42,194,950 53,084,566

Net position, September 30, 2015 $ 11,590,546 $ 42,047,964 $ 53,638,510

Coral Springs Improvement District
Statement of Activities
For the Year Ended September 30, 2015

 

Agenda Package 24



 

The accompanying notes to basic financial statements are an integral part of these statements. 
 

10 

General
Fund

Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 5,956,401
Investments 260,928
Accrued interest receivable 3,622
Prepaid items 26,067

Total assets $ 6,247,018

Liabilities:
Accounts payable  $ 43,139
Accrued expenditures 11,762
Contracts payable 449,266
Due to proprietary fund 5,208
Deposits 10,000

Total liabilities 519,375

Fund Balance:
Nonspendable:
 Prepaid items 26,067
Assigned to:
 Capital projects 2,400,000
 First quarter operating reserves 450,000
 Emergency 2,000,000
Unassigned:
 General Fund 851,576

Total fund balance 5,727,643

Total liabilities and fund balance $ 6,247,018

Coral Springs Improvement District
Balance Sheet ‐ Governmental Fund
September 30, 2015

 
 

Agenda Package 25



 

The accompanying notes to basic financial statements are an integral part of these statements. 
 

11 

Total Fund Balance ‐ Governmental Fund  $ 5,727,643

Amounts reported for governmental activities in
 the statement of net position are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not
 financial resources and, therefore, are not reported
 in the governmental fund.

Cost of capital assets $ 12,450,259
Less accumulated depreciation  (6,483,135) 5,967,124

Certain liabilities are not due and payable in the
 current period and, therefore, are not reported
 in the governmental fund.

Net OPEB obligation (32,052)
Compensated absences payable (72,169) (104,221)

Net Position of Governmental Activities $ 11,590,546

Coral Springs Improvement District
Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet of the Governmental Fund
to the Statement of Net Position
September 30, 2015

 
 

Agenda Package 26



 

The accompanying notes to basic financial statements are an integral part of these statements. 
 

12 

General
Fund

Revenues:
Assessments $ 1,811,819
Miscellaneous income 30,116
Interest income 15,179
Permit fees 9,100

Total revenues 1,866,214

Expenditures:
Current:
 General government:
  Personal services 170,782
  Operating 246,297

Total general government 417,079

Flood control:
 Personal services 453,871
 Operating 199,970

Total flood control 653,841

Capital outlay 4,303,155

Total expenditures 5,374,075

Net change in fund balance (3,507,861)

Fund Balance, October 1, 2014 9,235,504

Fund Balance, September 30, 2015 $ 5,727,643

For the Year Ended September 30, 2015

Coral Springs Improvement District
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Change in Fund Balance ‐ Governmental Fund

 
 

Agenda Package 27



 

The accompanying notes to basic financial statements are an integral part of these statements. 
 

13 

Net Change in Fund Balance ‐ Governmental Fund $ (3,507,861)

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the
 statement of activities are different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as 
 expenditures.  However, in the statement of activities,
 the cost of those assets is depreciated over their
 estimated useful lives.

Expenditures for capital assets $ 4,303,155
Current year provision for depreciation (82,825) 4,220,330

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities
 are not reported in the governmental funds because 
 they have no effect on current financial resources.

Change in net OPEB obligation (5,702)

Payment of compensated absences uses current
 financial resources and is recorded as an expenditure
 in the governmental fund but reduces the liability in
 the government‐wide statement of net position. (5,837)

Change in Net Position of Governmental Activities $ 700,930

For the Year Ended September 30, 2015

Coral Springs Improvement District
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes
in Fund Balance of the Governmental Fund to the Statement of Activities

 
 

Agenda Package 28



 

The accompanying notes to basic financial statements are an integral part of these statements. 
 

14 

Original Amended &
Budget Final Budget Actual Variance

Revenues:
Assessments $ 1,781,795 $ 1,781,795 $ 1,811,819 $ 30,024
Miscellaneous income 30,116 30,116 30,116 ‐                 
Interest income 2,400              2,400              15,179 12,779
Permit fees 1,000              1,000              9,100 8,100

Total revenues 1,815,311 1,815,311      1,866,214 50,903

Expenditures:
Current:
 General government:
  Personal services 154,872 173,872 170,782 3,090
  Operating 261,611 242,611 246,297 (3,686)

Total general government 416,483 416,483         417,079 (596)

Flood control:
 Personal services 431,588 431,588 453,871 (22,283)
 Operating 482,575 232,575 199,970 32,605

Total flood control 914,163 664,163         653,841 10,322

Capital outlay: 1,831,300 4,331,300 4,303,155 28,145

Total expenditures 3,161,946 5,411,946 5,374,075 37,871

Excess (deficiency)
 of revenues
 over expenditures (1,346,635) (3,596,635)     (3,507,861) 88,774

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Appropriation of prior years'
  fund balance 2,096,635 3,596,635      ‐                    (3,596,635)    
Reserved for first quarter operating (450,000)        ‐                  ‐                    ‐                 
Reserved for projects and emergency (300,000)        ‐                  ‐                    ‐                 

Total other financing
 sources (uses) 1,346,635 3,596,635      ‐                    (3,596,635)    

Net change in fund balance ‐                  ‐                  (3,507,861)       (3,507,861)    

Fund Balance, October 1, 2014 ‐                  ‐                  9,235,504 9,235,504

Fund Balance, September 30, 2015 $ ‐                  $ ‐                  $ 5,727,643 $ 5,727,643

Coral Springs Improvement District
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Change in Fund Balance ‐
Budget and Actual ‐ General Fund
For the Year Ended September 30, 2015

 
 

Agenda Package 29



 

The accompanying notes to basic financial statements are an integral part of these statements. 
 

15 

Water and 
Sewer Fund

Assets:
 Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 17,265,868
Investments 257,486
Accounts receivable 1,206,785
Due from other sources 506,562
Due from other governments 60,982
Due from general fund 5,208
Accrued interest receivable 4,675
Prepaid items 290,712
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 5,145,787

 Noncurrent assets:
Depreciable (net) 59,226,866
Nondepreciable 1,776,637

Total assets 85,747,568

Liabilities:
 Current liabilities:
Accounts payable 220,553
Accrued expenses 75,663
Contracts payable 313,520
Compensated absences payable 108,906
Customer deposits 552,815
Payable from restricted assets:
  Accrued interest payable 645,324
  Current portion of bonds payable 1,170,000

 Noncurrent liabilities:
Net OPEB obligation 211,948
Compensated absences payable 101,123
Bonds payable 40,299,752

Total liabilities 43,699,604

Net Position:
Net investment in capital assets 19,533,751
Restricted for renewal and replacement 4,001,476
Restricted for debt service 1,144,311
Unrestricted 17,368,426

Total net position $ 42,047,964

Coral Springs Improvement District
Statement of Net Position ‐ Proprietary Fund
September 30, 2015

 

Agenda Package 30



 

The accompanying notes to basic financial statements are an integral part of these statements. 
 

16 

Water and 
Sewer Fund

Operating Revenues:
Charges for services:
 Water $ 6,741,665
 Sewer 5,992,744
 Contract personnel fees 213,472
 Miscellaneous utility fees 121,352
 Technology sharing fees 26,000
 Rentals 57,583

Total operating revenues 13,152,816

Operating Expenses:
Personal services 4,084,840
Materials, supplies and services 2,976,574
Provisions for depreciation and amortization 4,349,317

Total operating expenses 11,410,731

Operating income 1,742,085

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses):
Interest income 27,316
Miscellaneous revenue 39,909
Realized gain on investments 7,799
Interest expense (1,964,095)

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) (1,889,071)

Change in net position (146,986)

Net Position, October 1, 2014 42,194,950

Net Position, September 30, 2015 $ 42,047,964

Coral Springs Improvement District
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Change in Net Position ‐ Proprietary Fund
For the Year Ended September 30, 2015

 
 

Agenda Package 31



 

The accompanying notes to basic financial statements are an integral part of these statements. 
 

17 

Water and 
Sewer Fund

Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Cash received from customers and users $ 13,247,413
Cash paid to employees for services (4,004,062)
Cash paid to suppliers for goods and services (2,955,393)

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 6,287,958

Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Activities:
Cash received for miscellaneous activities 39,909

Net cash provided by (used in) noncapital financing activities 39,909

Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities:
Interest paid (1,978,156)
Bond principal payments (1,125,000)
Purchase of capital assets (2,330,215)

Net cash provided by (used in) capital and related financing activities (5,433,371)

Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
Interest received 26,370
Realized gain on investments 7,799

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities 34,169

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 928,665

Cash and Cash Equivalents, October 1, 2014 21,482,990

Cash and Cash Equivalents, September 30, 2015 $ 22,411,655

Coral Springs Improvement District
Statement of Cash Flows ‐ Proprietary Fund
For the Year Ended September 30, 2015

 
 

Agenda Package 32



 

The accompanying notes to basic financial statements are an integral part of these statements. 
 

18 

Water and 
Sewer Fund

Reconciliation of Operating Income to Net Cash
 Provided by Operating Activities:
Operating income  $ 1,742,085

Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash
 provided by operating activities:
  Provision for depreciation 4,318,794
  Provision for amortization 30,523
  Changes in assets and liabilities:
   (Increase) decrease in accounts receivable 75,732
   (Increase) decrease in due from other sources (47,702)
   (Increase) decrease in due from other governments (46,032)
   (Increase) decrease in prepaid items 76,793
   (Increase) decrease in due from general fund 24,724
   Increase (decrease) in accounts payable 653
   Increase (decrease) in accrued expenses 12,859
   Increase (decrease) in contracts payable 12,745
   Increase (decrease) in compensated absences payable 36,621
   Increase (decrease) in customer deposits 18,865
   Increase (decrease) in net OPEB obligation 31,298

Total adjustments 4,545,873

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities $ 6,287,958

For the Year Ended September 30, 2015

Coral Springs Improvement District
Statement of Cash Flows ‐ Proprietary Fund (continued)

 
 

Agenda Package 33



 

19 

Coral Springs Improvement District 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
September 30, 2015 
 
 
Note 1 ‐ Organization and Operations 
 

The Coral Springs  Improvement District  (the "District") was  incorporated under  the provisions of 
Chapter  70‐617,  Laws  of  Florida,  for  the  purpose  of  constructing  and maintaining  systems  of 
drainage,  flood  control  and water  and  sewer  utilities within  the  boundaries  of  the District.    Its 
utilities currently service approximately 9,500 customers. 

 
 
Note 2 ‐ Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 
 

The  basic  financial  statements  of  the District  have  been  prepared  in  conformity with  generally 
accepted accounting principles as applied  to governmental units.   The District's more  significant 
accounting policies are described below. 
 
Reporting  entity:    The  criteria  used  for  including  component  units  consists  of  identification  of 
legally  separate  organizations  for which  the  Board  of  Supervisors  of  the  District  are  financially 
accountable.    This  criteria  also  includes  identification of organizations  for which  the nature  and 
significance of their relationship with the primary government are such that exclusion would cause 
the reporting entity's basic financial statements to be misleading or  incomplete.   Based upon this 
review, there were no potential component units of the District. 

 
The District's basic financial statements  include both government‐wide (reporting the District as a 
whole) and fund financial statements (reporting the District's major funds).  Both the government‐
wide  and  fund  financial  statements  categorize  primary  activities  as  either  governmental  or 
business‐type.  The District has both governmental and business‐type activities. 
 
In the government‐wide statement of net position, the governmental activities column is presented 
on a consolidated basis,  if applicable, and  is  reported on a  full‐accrual, economic  resource basis, 
which  recognizes  all  noncurrent  assets  and  receivables  as  well  as  all  noncurrent  debt  and 
obligations.    The  effect  of  inter‐fund  activity  has  been  eliminated  from  the  government‐wide 
financial statements. 
 
The government‐wide  statement of activities  reports both  the gross and net cost of each of  the 
District's  functions.    The  net  costs,  by  function,  are  also  supported  by  general  revenues,  other 
revenue, etc.   The  statement of activities  reduces  gross expenses by  related program  revenues, 
operating  and  capital  grants.    Program  revenues must  be  directly  associated with  the  function.  
Operating  grants  include operating‐specific  and discretionary  (either operating or  capital)  grants 
while the capital grants column reflect capital‐specific grants. 
 
This  government‐wide  focus  is more  on  the  ability  to  sustain  the  District  as  an  entity  and  the 
change in the District's net position resulting from the current year's activities. 
 
The accounts of the District are organized on the basis of funds, each of which is considered to be a 
separate accounting entity.  The operations of each fund are accounted for with a separate set of 
self‐balancing accounts that comprise its assets, liabilities, fund balance/net position, revenues and 
expenditures  (expenses).    The  various  funds  are  summarized  by  type  in  the  basic  financial 
statements.  The following fund types are used by the District: 

 
General  Fund  ‐  The  General  Fund  is  established  to  account  for  all  financial 
transactions not properly accounted for in another fund. 

Agenda Package 34



 

20 

Coral Springs Improvement District 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
September 30, 2015 
 

 
Note 2 ‐ Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

 
Water  and  Sewer  Fund  ‐  The Water  and  Sewer  Fund  is  a  proprietary  fund 
established to account for operations that are to be financed and operated  in a 
manner similar to private business enterprises.  The costs of providing services to 
customers are to be recovered primarily through user charges. 

 
Measurement focus, basis of accounting, and presentation:  Basis of accounting refers to the point 
at which  revenues or expenditures/expenses are  recognized  in  the accounts and  reported  in  the 
basic  financial statements.    It  relates  to  the  timing of  the measurements made  regardless of  the 
measurement  focus  applied.    Governmental  funds  use  the  current  financial  resources 
measurement  focus  and  the  government‐wide  statements  use  the  economic  resources 
measurement focus. 
 
Governmental  activity  in  the  government‐wide  financial  statements  is  presented  on  the  accrual 
basis of  accounting.   Revenues  are  recognized when earned  and expenses are  recognized when 
incurred. 
 
The governmental fund is accounted for using the modified accrual basis of accounting.  Revenues 
are  recognized when  they become measurable  and  available  for use.    "Measurable" means  the 
amount of the transaction can be determined and "available" means collectible within the current 
period or soon enough thereafter to be used to pay  liabilities of the current period.   The District 
considers revenues available if they are collected within sixty days after year end.  Expenditures are 
generally  recognized  when  the  liability  is  incurred,  except  that  interest  payable  on  debt  is 
recognized only when due. 
 
The Proprietary Fund uses the accrual basis of accounting.  Revenue is recognized when earned and 
expenses are recognized when incurred. 

 
Budgets  and budgetary  accounting:    The District's  annual budgets  are  adopted  for  the General 
Fund and Water and Sewer Fund and approved by the Board of Supervisors.  The budget amounts 
presented in the accompanying basic financial statements are as originally adopted by the District's 
Board of Supervisors.  Any amendments to the budget are reflected in the amended budget. 
 
The General  Fund  budget  is  prepared  on  a  basis  consistent with  generally  accepted  accounting 
principles (GAAP).   This budget  is a financial plan approved  in the manner authorized by  law, but 
not subject to appropriation. 

 
Encumbrances:  The District does not utilize encumbrance accounting. 

 
Cash  equivalents:    For  purposes  of  the  statement  of  cash  flows,  the Water  and  Sewer  Fund 
considers all highly liquid investments (including restricted assets) with a maturity of three months 
or less when purchased to be cash equivalents. 
 
Investments:    Investments are stated at their fair value, which  is based on quoted market prices.  
Unrealized  gains  and  losses  in  fair  value  are  recognized.    Certain  investments  are  stated  at 
amortized cost if they have a remaining maturity of one year or less when purchased. 

 
Accounts  receivable:    Accounts  receivable  reflected  in  the  Water  and  Sewer  Fund  consist  of 
charges to customers for service  including sewer revenues on services which have been rendered 
whether billed or not.  No allowance for doubtful accounts is considered necessary. 

 

Agenda Package 35



 

21 

Coral Springs Improvement District 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
September 30, 2015 
 
 
Note 2 ‐ Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 
 

Prepaid  items:   Certain payments  reflect  costs applicable  to a  future accounting period and are 
recorded as prepaid items in both the government‐wide and fund financial statements. 

 
Capital  assets:    Capital  assets,  which  include  land,  buildings,  infrastructure,  machinery  and 
equipment  and  construction‐in‐progress,  are  reported  in  the  governmental  or  business‐type 
activities  columns  in  the  government‐wide  financial  statements.   All  capital  assets are  valued at 
historical cost or estimated cost when actual historical cost is not available.  Donated capital assets 
are valued at their estimated fair value on the date donated.  The District defines capital assets as 
assets with an initial individual cost of more than $ 1,000 and an estimated useful life in excess of 
one year.  Depreciation on all capital assets is charged to operations using the straight‐line method 
over the assets’ estimated service lives, ranging from 5 to 40 years. 
 
The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the capital asset or 
materially extend its life are not capitalized. 

 
Due to/from other funds:   Short‐term  inter‐fund advances, when applicable, are recorded by the 
advancing  fund  as  a  receivable  with  a  corresponding  payable  recorded  by  the  receiving  fund.  
Repayments reduce the corresponding receivable and payable.  Inter‐fund balances are eliminated 
in the government‐wide financial statements. 

 
Deferred outflows/inflows of resources:  In addition to assets, the statement of financial position 
will  sometimes  report  a  separate  section  for  deferred  outflows  of  resources.    This  separate 
financial  statement  element,  deferred  outflows  of  resources,  represents  a  consumption  of  net 
position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an outflow of resources 
(expense/expenditure) until then.  The District does not have any items that qualify for reporting in 
this category.   
 
In  addition  to  liabilities,  the  statement  of  financial  position  will  sometimes  report  a  separate 
section  for  deferred  inflows  of  resources.    This  separate  financial  statement  element,  deferred 
inflows of resources, represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a future period(s) and 
so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time.  The District does not 
have any items that qualify for reporting in this category.   

 
Net position:   Net position  is  classified  in  three  categories.    The  general meaning of  each  is  as 
follows: 

 
a.  Net  investment  in  capital  assets  ‐  consists  of  capital  assets  including 

restricted capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and reduced by 
the  outstanding  balances  of  any  bonds  or  other  borrowings  that  are 
attributable  to  the  acquisition,  construction  or  improvement  of  those 
assets. 

 
b.  Restricted  ‐ consists of net position with constraints placed on their use 

either by 1) external groups such as creditors, grantors, contributors, or 
laws  or  regulations  of  other  governments,  or  2)  law  through 
constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. 

 
c.  Unrestricted  ‐  all other net position  that do not meet  the definition of 

"restricted" or "net investment in capital assets." 
 
 

Agenda Package 36



 

22 

Coral Springs Improvement District 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
September 30, 2015 
 
 
Note 2 ‐ Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 
 

Fund balance:   The District previously adopted GASB Statement No. 54, Fund Balance Reporting 
and Governmental Fund Type Definitions.  This statement requires that governmental fund financial 
statements present fund balances based on classifications that comprise a hierarchy that  is based 
primarily on the extent to which the District is bound to honor constraints on the specific purposes 
for which amounts in the respective governmental funds can be spent.  The classifications used in 
the governmental fund financial statements are as follows: 

 
Nonspendable:  This  classification  includes  amounts  that  cannot  be  spent 
because  they  are  either  (a)  not  in  spendable  form  or  (b)  are  legally  or 
contractually required to be maintained intact.   

 
Restricted: This classification  includes amounts for which constraints have been 
placed  on  the  use  of  the  resources  either  (a)  externally  imposed  by  creditors 
(such as through a debt covenant), grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations 
of other governments, or (b) imposed by law through constitutional provisions or 
enabling legislation.  Debt service resources are to be used for future servicing of 
the revenue note and are restricted through debt covenants.  
 
Committed:  This  classification  includes  amounts  that  can  be  used  only  for 
specific  purposes  pursuant  to  constraints  imposed  by  formal  action  of  the 
District Board of Supervisors (the “Board”).   These amounts cannot be used for 
any other purpose unless  the Board  removes or  changes  the  specified use by 
taking  the  same  type  of  action  (ordinance  or  resolution)  that was  employed 
when  the  funds  were  initially  committed.    This  classification  also  includes 
contractual  obligations  to  the  extent  that  existing  resources  have  been 
specifically committed for use in satisfying those contractual requirements.  
 
Assigned:  This  classification  includes  amounts  that  are  constrained  by  the 
District’s  intent to be used  for a specific purpose but are neither restricted nor 
committed.  This  intent  can  be  expressed  by  the  Board  or  through  the  Board 
delegating  this  responsibility  to  the  District  manager  through  the  budgetary 
process.  This classification also includes the remaining positive fund balance for 
all governmental funds except for the General Fund.   
 
Unassigned: This classification includes the residual fund balance for the General 
Fund. 

 
When the District has expenditures  for which committed, assigned or unassigned  fund balance  is 
available, the District would consider committed funds to be spent first, then assigned funds and 
lastly unassigned funds. 
 
Property  tax  calendar  (assessments):   Property  tax assessments are validated with  the Broward 
County Property Appraiser and collected by the Broward County Tax Collector.  The key dates in the 
property tax cycle are as follows: 

 
  Preceding Fiscal Year: 
 
  Enforceable lien date  January 1 
  Tax roll validated  July 1 
  Taxes levied  July 15 

 
 

Agenda Package 37



 

23 

Coral Springs Improvement District 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
September 30, 2015 
 
 
Note 2 ‐ Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 
 
  Current Fiscal Year: 
 
  Beginning of fiscal year for which 
   Taxes have been levied  October 1 
  Tax bills rendered  November 1 
  Tax due date  March 31 
  Delinquent tax lien  April 30 
  Tax certificates sold  June 1 
 

Use of estimates:   The preparation of financial statements  in conformity with generally accepted 
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain 
reported amounts and disclosures.  Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates. 

 
Date  of  management  review:    Subsequent  events  were  evaluated  by  management  through 
January 7, 2016, which is the date the financial statements were available for issuance. 

 
 
Note 3 ‐ Deposits and Investments 
 

Deposits:    The  District’s  deposits must  be  placed with  banks  and  savings  and  loans which  are 
qualified  as  public  depositories  prior  to  receipt  of  public  monies  under  Chapter  280,  Florida 
Statutes.   These deposits are  insured by the FDIC up to $ 250,000.   Monies deposited  in amounts 
greater  than  the  insurance coverage are  secured by  the banks pledging  securities with  the State 
Treasurer  in the collateral pool.   At year end, the carrying amount of the District’s bank deposits 
was $ 11,995,657 and the bank balance was $ 12,176,796.  In addition, the District had $ 10,500 in 
petty cash. 

 
Investments:   The  investment of funds  is authorized by Florida Statutes, which allows the District 
to  invest  in the Local Government Surplus Funds Trust or any  intergovernmental  investment pool 
authorized pursuant to the Florida Interlocal Cooperation Act, SEC registered money market funds 
with the highest credit quality rating, interest‐bearing time deposits or savings accounts in qualified 
public depositories and direct obligations of the United States Treasury.  Certain investments of the 
enterprise fund are governed by Bond Indentures. 

 
Investments as of September 30, 2015 were as follows: 

Reported
Amount ‐
Fair Value

or Amortized
Cost Maturity

Money Market mutual funds $ 16,354,196
Certificates of Deposit 518,414
SBA (State Investment Pool)‐
 Fund B 7,703

$ 16,880,313      

29 days

Between 6/8/16 and 10/1/2016
N/A

 

Agenda Package 38



 

24 

Coral Springs Improvement District 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
September 30, 2015 
 

 
Note 3 ‐ Deposits and Investments (continued) 
 

These deposits and  investments are  reflected  in  the accompanying  statement of net position as 
cash and cash equivalents of $ 28,368,056 and investments of $ 518,414. 

 
Credit risk:   Florida Statutes require the money market mutual funds held by the District to have 
the highest  credit quality  rating  from a nationally  recognized  rating agency.   The money market 
mutual  funds held by  the District  are  rated AAAm by  Standard  and Poor's  and Aaa by Moody's 
Investors Service.   

 
Interest  rate  risk:    Florida  Statutes  state  that  the  investment  portfolio  be  structured  in  such  a 
manner  as  to  provide  sufficient  liquidity  to  pay  obligations  as  they  come  due.    The  District’s 
investments are not subject to interest rate risk. 
 
Custodial credit risk:   For an  investment, custodial credit risk  is  the risk  that,  in  the event of  the 
failure of the counterparty, the District will not be able to recover the value of  its  investments or 
collateral  securities  that  are  in  the  possession  of  an  outside  party.    None  of  the  District’s 
investments are subject to custodial credit risk. 
 
Restricted cash and cash equivalents:   The proprietary fund maintains cash and cash equivalents 
restricted for the following purposes: 

     

Future debt service $ 1,144,311
Renewal and replacement of
 capital assets 4,001,476

Total restricted cash
 and cash equivalents $ 5,145,787

 
 
Note 4 ‐ Due From Other Sources 
 

The District’s water and wastewater plants were placed  into  service during  the prior  fiscal year.  
The District paid the project engineer certain funds at the beginning of the project for design work 
based on  initial projections of  total  construction  costs.   When  the project was bid,  there was  a 
substantial  reduction  in  overall  costs which  resulted  in  a  proportionate  reduction  of  the  design 
costs for both plants.  The resulting reduction in design costs are represented as a receivable from 
the engineer  in the amount of $ 506,562 and are deemed collectible by the District. This amount 
was collected subsequent to year end. 
 

Agenda Package 39



 

25 

Coral Springs Improvement District 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
September 30, 2015 
 

 
Note 5 ‐ Capital Assets 
 

The following is a schedule of changes in capital assets during the year ended September 30, 2015: 

Balance, Balance,
October 1, September 30,

2014 Additions Deletions Transfers 2015
Governmental Activities:
 Capital assets, not being depreciated:
   Construction in progress $ 236,242          $ 4,222,555      $ ‐                 $ ‐                   $ 4,458,797
   Land 553,200 ‐                   ‐                 ‐                   553,200        

Total capital assets,
 not being depreciated 789,442 4,222,555      ‐                 ‐                   5,011,997

 Capital assets, being depreciated:
  Infrastructure 6,688,222 78,248            ‐                 ‐                   6,766,470
  Machinery and equipment 669,440 2,352              ‐                 ‐                   671,792

Total capital assets, being depreciated 7,357,662 80,600            ‐                 ‐                   7,438,262

Less accumulated depreciation for:
  Infrastructure 5,780,690 60,185            ‐                 ‐                   5,840,875
  Machinery and equipment 619,620 22,640            ‐                 ‐                   642,260

Total accumulated depreciation 6,400,310 82,825            ‐                 ‐                   6,483,135

Total capital assets, being
 depreciated, net 957,352 (2,225)             ‐                 ‐                   955,127

   Governmental activities
    capital assets, net $ 1,746,794 $ 4,220,330      $ ‐                 $ ‐                   $ 5,967,124

Business‐Type Activities:
 Capital assets, not being depreciated:
   Construction in progress $ 302,840 $ 1,585,539      $ ‐                 $ (868,479)         $ 1,019,900
   Easement 394,998 ‐                   ‐                 ‐                   394,998
   Land  361,739 ‐                   ‐                 ‐                   361,739

Total capital assets,
 not being depreciated 1,059,577 1,585,539      ‐                 (868,479)         1,776,637

 Capital assets, being depreciated:
  Infrastructure 122,902,442 596,887          ‐                 572,557           124,071,886
  Buildings 1,568,765 44,799            ‐                 ‐                   1,613,564
  Machinery and equipment 3,451,230 102,990          129,158         295,922           3,720,984

Total capital assets, being depreciated 127,922,437 744,676          129,158         868,479           129,406,434

Less accumulated depreciation for:
  Infrastructure 63,098,288 3,995,879      ‐                 ‐                   67,094,167
  Buildings 1,387,298 19,602            ‐                 ‐                   1,406,900
  Machinery and equipment 1,504,346 303,313          129,158         ‐                   1,678,501

Total accumulated depreciation 65,989,932 4,318,794      129,158         ‐                   70,179,568

Total capital assets, being
 depreciated, net 61,932,505 (3,574,118)     ‐                 868,479           59,226,866

   Business‐type activities
    capital assets, net $ 62,992,082 $ (1,988,579)     $ ‐                 $ ‐                   $ 61,003,503

Agenda Package 40



 

26 

Coral Springs Improvement District 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
September 30, 2015 
 

 
Note 5 ‐ Capital Assets (continued) 
 

Provision for depreciation was charged to functions as follows: 

     

Total provision for depreciation ‐
 governmental activities $ 82,825

Total provision for depreciation ‐
 business‐type activities $ 4,318,794

 
 
Note 6 ‐ Commitments 
 

The District has various ongoing construction contracts.   As of September 30, 2015, commitments 
on uncompleted construction contracts totaled $ 388,108. 

 
 
Note 7 ‐ Debt 
 

a.  Summary of debt of business‐type activities: 
 

Debt at September 30, 2015 included the following: 
 

 
The following is a summary of the changes that occurred in the Water and Sewer Fund debt during 
the year ended September 30, 2015: 

Balance, Balance, Due

October 1, Provision for September 30, Within

2014 Additions Deletions Amortization 2015 One Year

Subordinate Water and

 Sewer Bonds, 

 Series 2007 $ 42,564,229 $ ‐                $ 1,125,000    $ 30,523          $ 41,469,752 $ 1,170,000     

$ 42,564,229 $ ‐                $ 1,125,000    $ 30,523          $ 41,469,752 $ 1,170,000     

 
b.  Summary of significant bond terms of business‐type activities: 

 
$ 43,255,000  Subordinate Water  and  Sewer  Revenue  Bonds,  Series  2007  ‐  The  District 
previously  issued  $ 43,255,000  of  Series  2007  Subordinate  Water  and  Sewer  Revenue 
Bonds.   The bonds bear  interest at rates ranging from 3.75% to 4.75% and mature  in June 
2037.  Interest is payable on the first day of June and December. 

  $ 43,255,000 Subordinate Water and Sewer Revenue Bonds, 
Series  2007; due  in  annual  installments  through  June  2037; 
interest payable semi‐annually at rates ranging from 3.75% to 
4.75% (net of unamortized bond discount of $ 660,248).

 

$  41,469,752
       
 
       
      $  41,469,752

Agenda Package 41



 

27 

Coral Springs Improvement District 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
September 30, 2015 
 

 
Note 7 ‐ Debt (continued) 

 
The Bonds are payable from the net revenues of the water and sewer system of the District.  
The District covenants to maintain utility rates which will be sufficient to pay  its operating 
expenses and 110% of the annual required principal and  interest on the Bonds.    In  lieu of 
funding the Series 2007 Reserve Fund with cash and/or securities, the District purchased a 
debt  service  reserve  surety  bond  which  guarantees  the  payment  of  any  installment  of 
principal  and/or  interest  as  such payments become due on  the  2007 Bonds.    The  Series 
2007 Bonds maturing after June 1, 2017 are subject to redemption prior to maturity at the 
option of the District.   The Series 2007 Bonds maturing on June 1, 2022 through 2037 are 
subject  to  mandatory  sinking  fund  redemption  in  part  by  lot  prior  to  their  scheduled 
maturity as outlined  in the Bond  Indenture.    In addition, the Bonds established a Renewal 
and Replacement Fund as discussed in Note 8. 
 

c.  Summary of future debt service requirements: 
 

The annual debt service requirements are as follows: 

   

Year Ending
September 30, Principal Interest Total

2016 $ 1,170,000 $ 1,935,968 $ 3,105,968
2017 1,215,000 1,889,168 3,104,168
2018 1,265,000 1,840,568 3,105,568
2019 1,320,000 1,785,226 3,105,226
2020 1,380,000 1,727,476 3,107,476

2021‐2025 7,850,000 7,672,202 15,522,202
2026‐2030 9,800,000 5,730,116 15,530,116
2031‐2035 12,335,000 3,188,200 15,523,200
2036‐2037 5,795,000 416,100 6,211,100

$ 42,130,000 $ 26,185,024 $ 68,315,024

 
 
Note 8 ‐ Restricted Net Position 
 

Proprietary  Fund:   Pursuant  to  the  2007  Series Bond  Indentures,  reserve  funds  are  required  to 
meet  the maximum  principal  and  interest  requirement  for  any  succeeding  year.    The  District 
satisfied  this  requirement  by  purchasing  debt  service  reserve  surety  bonds  that  guarantee  an 
amount equal to the maximum debt service of any succeeding year. 
 
The 2007 Series Bonds established a Renewal and Replacement Account to be used for the purpose 
of  paying  the  costs  of  nonrecurring  maintenance  expenditures,  extensions,  improvements  or 
additions to, or the replacement of the water and sewer system.   The minimum required balance 
for  the  Renewal  and  Replacement  Account  is  $ 1,000,000.    The  balance  in  the  Renewal  and 
Replacement Account at September 30, 2015 was $ 4,001,472 which  is reflected as restricted net 
position in the accompanying statement of net position for the proprietary fund.  
 

Agenda Package 42



 

28 

Coral Springs Improvement District 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
September 30, 2015 
 

 
Note 9 ‐ Compensated Absences Payable 
 

Employees of the District accumulate unused sick time and vacation time up to a specified number 
of hours depending on the employee's length of employment.  Accumulated vacation time can be 
redeemed in cash at retirement.  Accumulated sick time is not generally payable in cash except for 
the sick time of one employee  in the General Fund which was grandfathered  in when the District 
changed its policy regarding payment for accumulated sick time.  The accumulated liability for the 
unused  compensated  absences  at  September 30, 2015 of  the General  Fund  is  considered  to be 
payable  from  future  resources  and,  accordingly,  is  only  recorded  in  the  governmental  activities 
column of the statement of net position. 
 
The following is a schedule of the changes in compensated absences of the General Fund: 

Balance, Balance, Due 
October 1, Net September 30, within

2014 increase 2015 one year

Vacation time $ 42,817         $ 1,000           $ 43,817          $ 20,013         
Sick time 23,515         4,837           28,352          ‐                

Total $ 66,332         $ 5,837           $ 72,169          $ 20,013         

 
The following is a schedule of the changes in compensated absences of the Proprietary Fund: 

Balance, Balance, Due 
October 1, Net September 30, within

2014 increase 2015 one year

Vacation time $ 173,408       $ 36,621         $ 210,029       $ 108,906       

Total $ 173,408       $ 36,621         $ 210,029       $ 108,906       

 
 

Note 10 ‐ Retirement Plan 
 
The District has a defined contribution pension plan qualified under Sections 401(a), 403(a), and a 
501(a)  of  the  Internal  Revenue  Code.    The  Plan  is  administered  by  independent  trustees.    All 
employees who meet the one year of service requirement are qualified to participate.  Employees 
are  prohibited  from  making  voluntary  contributions  to  the  Plan.    The  District's  required 
contribution  is 6% of  the  total  salaries of qualified participants.   Total  salaries  for  the year were 
$ 3,349,976.    Total  salaries  of  qualified  participants were  $ 3,310,370.    Each  participant's  non‐
forfeitable percentage of his employer's contribution account increases (vests) at 20% for each year 
of  service.    Employer  contributions  for  the  year,  less  forfeitures  from  terminated  employees, 
totaled $ 198,192 and are included in personal services of the General and Water and Sewer Funds.  

 
The District has a money purchase contribution plan qualified under Section 457(b) of the Internal 
Revenue Code.  The Plan is administered by an independent trustee.  All full time employees who 
meet  the  3  consecutive month(s)  of  employment  and  are  of  18  years  of  age  are  qualified  to 
participate.    The District maximum  contribution  is  4%  of  total  salaries  of  qualified  participants. 
Total  salaries  for  the  year  were  $ 3,349,976.    Total  salaries  of  qualified  participants  were 
$ 3,249,773.    Employer  contributions  for  the  year,  less  forfeiture  from  terminated  employees, 
totaled $ 131,191 and are included in personal services of the General and Water and Sewer Funds. 

 

Agenda Package 43



 

29 

Coral Springs Improvement District 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
September 30, 2015 
 
 
Note 11 ‐ Post‐Employment Benefits 
 

Funding Policy  
 

The District provides no post‐retirement benefits to retired employees but is required by state law 
to provide the availability for retirees to enroll in the health plan offered to its employees on a cost 
reimbursement basis. 

 
The District does not directly make a contribution  to provide retired employees with health care 
benefits.   Retirees and their beneficiaries pay the same group rates as are charged to the District 
for active employees by its healthcare provider.  However, the District’s actuaries, in their actuarial 
valuation, calculate an offset to the cost of these benefits as an employer contribution, based upon 
an  implicit rate subsidy.   This offset equals the total age‐adjusted costs paid by the District or  its 
active employees for coverage of the retirees and their dependents for the year net of the retiree’s 
own payments for the year. 
 
The District’s annual other post‐employment benefit (OPEB) cost is calculated based on the annual 
required contribution (ARC) of the employer, an amount actuarially determined in accordance with 
GASB  Statement  No.  45  Accounting  and  Financial  Reporting  by  Employers  Benefits  Other  Than 
Pensions.   The ARC represents a  level of funding that,  if paid on an ongoing basis,  is projected to 
cover normal cost each year and to amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities over a period not to 
exceed 30 years. 

 
The annual OPEB cost for the District for the current year and the related information is as follows: 

   

Required contribution rates:
  Employer Pay‐as‐you‐go
  Plan members $ ‐                
Annual required contribution 53,000          
Interest on net OPEB obligation 8,000            
Adjustment to annual required contribution (18,000)        
Annual OPEB cost 43,000          
Contributions made (credit for implied subsidy) (6,000)           
Increase in net OPEB obligation 37,000          
Net OPEB obligation ‐ beginning of year 207,000        
Net OPEB obligation ‐ end of year $ 244,000        

 
The annual OPEB cost,  the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed  to  the plan and  the net 
OPEB obligation for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2015 was: 

   

Annual OPEB cost $ 43,000          
Percentage of OPEB cost contributed 14%

Net OPEB obligation $ 244,000        

 
 

Agenda Package 44



 

30 

Coral Springs Improvement District 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
September 30, 2015 
 

 
Note 11 ‐ Post‐Employment Benefits (continued) 
 

Funded Status and Funding Progress 
 

The funded status of the plan as of October 1, 2014 was as follows: 

   

Actuarial accrued liability $ 249,000        
Actuarial value of plan assets ‐                

Unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) $ 249,000        

Funded ratio ‐                

Covered payroll $ 2,906,000    

UAAL as a percentage of covered payroll 8.6%

 
The  actuarial  valuation  for  the  calculation  of OPEB  involves  estimates  of  the  value  of  reported 
amounts  and  assumptions  about  the  probability  of  events  in  the  future.    Amounts  determined 
regarding the funded status of the plan and the annual required contributions of the employer are 
subject to continual revision as actual results are compared to past expectations and new estimates 
are made  about  the  future.    The  required  schedule  of  funding  progress  presented  as  required 
supplementary  information  is designed to provide multi‐year trend  information to show whether 
the  actuarial  value  of  plan  assets  is  increasing  or  decreasing  over  time  relative  to  the  actuarial 
accrued  liability  for benefits.   However, the District has not contributed assets to the plan at this 
time. 

 
Actuarial Methods and Assumptions 

 
Projections of benefits are based on the substantive plan (the plan as understood by the employer 
and plan members) and include the types of benefits in force at the valuation date and the pattern 
of  sharing  benefit  costs  between  the  District  and  the  plan members  to  that  point.    Actuarial 
calculations  reflect  a  long‐term  perspective  and  employ  methods  and  assumptions  that  are 
designed  to  reduce  short‐term volatility  in actuarial accrued  liabilities and  the actuarial value of 
assets.  Significant methods and assumptions were as follows: 

   

Actuarial valuation date October 1, 2014
Actuarial cost method Projected unit credit
Amortization method 15‐year open period;

level dollar payment
Actuarial assumptions:
  Investment rate of return 4.00% per annum *

  Healthcare cost trend rates:
     Select rates 8.00% for 2014/2015 graded

to 5.50% for 2019/2020

     Ultimate rate 5.00% per annum

* Includes inflation at 2.75% per annum

Agenda Package 45



 

31 

Coral Springs Improvement District 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
September 30, 2015 
 

 
Note 12 ‐ Risk Management 
 

The  District  is  exposed  to  various  risks  of  losses  related  to  torts;  theft  of,  damage  to,  and 
destruction  of  assets;  errors  and  omissions;  injuries  to  employees,  and  natural  disasters.    The 
District carries commercial insurance to handle these various risks of losses. 
 
Claims, expenditures, and  liabilities would have been  reported  if  it were probable  that a  loss  in 
excess of policy limits had occurred and the amount of that loss could be reasonably estimated. 
 
 

 

Agenda Package 46



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

REQUIRED 
SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION 

 

Agenda Package 47



 

32 

Coral Springs Improvement District 
Schedule of Funding Progress 
Other Post‐Employment Benefits Plan 
September 30, 2015 
 

Actuarial
Accrued UAAL as a

Actuarial Liability Unfunded Percentage
Actuarial Value of (AAL) AAL Funded Covered of Covered
Valuation Assets Entry Age (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll
Date (a) (b) (b‐a) (a/b) (c)* ((b‐a)/c)

10/1/2010 $ ‐               $ 253,000 $ 253,000 0% $ 2,222,000 11.4%
10/1/2012 $ ‐               $ 295,000 $ 295,000 0% $ 2,742,000 10.8%
10/1/2014 $ ‐               $ 249,000 $ 249,000 0% $ 2,906,000 8.6%

 
 
* Covered payroll is for the calendar year period used for the actuarial valuation. 
 

Agenda Package 48



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

OTHER 
FINANCIAL INFORMATION 

 
 

Agenda Package 49



 

33 

Water and
Sewer Fund

Administrative Operations:
Personal services $ 1,121,805
Materials, supplies and services 401,563
Provisions for depreciation and amortization 55,858

Total plant operations 1,579,226

Plant Operations:
Personal services 2,026,914
Materials, supplies and services 2,081,235
Provisions for depreciation and amortization 3,391,167

Total field operations 7,499,316

Field Operations:
Personal services 936,121
Materials, supplies and services 493,776
Provisions for depreciation and amortization 902,292

Total administrative operations 2,332,189

Total operating expenses $ 11,410,731

For the Year Ended September 30, 2015

Coral Springs Improvement District
Schedule of Operating Expenses by Department ‐ Proprietary Fund

 
 

Agenda Package 50



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

OTHER REPORTS OF 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS 

Agenda Package 51



KMCcpa.com  |  6550 N Federal Hwy, 4th Floor   Fort Lauderdale, FL 33308   Phone: 954.771.0896   Fax: 954.938.9353

 

34 

 
 
 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER 
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS 
BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN 

ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 
 
 
The Board of Supervisors 
Coral Springs Improvement District 
Coral Springs, Florida 
 
We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental 
activities, the business‐type activities, and each major fund of Coral Springs Improvement District (the 
“District”), as of and  for  the year ended September 30, 2015, and  the  related notes  to  the  financial 
statements, which collectively comprise the District’s basic  financial statements, and have  issued our 
report thereon dated January 7, 2016. 
 
Internal Control over Financial Reporting 
 
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the District’s internal 
control  over  financial  reporting  (internal  control)  to  determine  the  audit  procedures  that  are 
appropriate  in  the  circumstances  for  the  purpose  of  expressing  our  opinions  on  the  financial 
statements,  but  not  for  the  purpose  of  expressing  an  opinion  on  the  effectiveness  of  the District’s 
internal  control.  Accordingly,  we  do  not  express  an  opinion  on  the  effectiveness  of  the  District’s 
internal control. 
 
A  deficiency  in  internal  control  exists  when  the  design  or  operation  of  a  control  does  not  allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or 
detect  and  correct,  misstatements  on  a  timely  basis.  A  material  weakness  is  a  deficiency,  or  a 
combination  of  deficiencies,  in  internal  control,  such  that  there  is  a  reasonable  possibility  that  a 
material misstatement  of  the  entity’s  financial  statements will  not  be  prevented,  or  detected  and 
corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in 
internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention 
by those charged with governance. 
 
Our consideration of  internal control was  for  the  limited purpose described  in  the  first paragraph of 
this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material 
weaknesses or, significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any 
deficiencies  in  internal  control  that  we  consider  to  be  material  weaknesses.  However,  material 
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 
 

Agenda Package 52



 

35 

Coral Springs Improvement District 
 
 
Compliance and Other Matters 
 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the District's financial statements are free of 
material  misstatement,  we  performed  tests  of  its  compliance  with  certain  provisions  of  laws, 
regulations,  contracts  and  grant  agreements,  noncompliance  with  which  could  have  a  direct  and 
material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts.   However, providing an opinion 
on  compliance with  those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not 
express  such an opinion.   The  results of our  tests disclosed no  instances of noncompliance or other 
matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards. 
 
Purpose of this Report 
 
The  purpose  of  this  report  is  solely  to  describe  the  scope  of  our  testing  of  internal  controls  and 
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
entity’s  internal  control or on  compliance.    This  report  is  an  integral part of  an  audit performed  in 
accordance  with  Government  Auditing  Standards  in  considering  the  entity’s  internal  control  and 
compliance.  Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 
 
 
 
 
KEEFE McCULLOUGH  
 
 
Fort Lauderdale, Florida 
January 7, 2016 
 
 

Agenda Package 53



KMCcpa.com  |  6550 N Federal Hwy, 4th Floor   Fort Lauderdale, FL 33308   Phone: 954.771.0896   Fax: 954.938.9353

 

36 

 
 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO DISTRICT MANAGEMENT 
 
 
The Board of Supervisors 
Coral Springs Improvement District 
Coral Springs, Florida 
 
Report on the Financial Statements 
 
We have audited the financial statements of Coral Springs Improvement District (the "District"), as of 
and  for  the  year ended  September 30,  2015,  and have  issued our  report  thereon dated  January 7, 
2016. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibility 
 
We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 
of America; the standards applicable to  financial audits contained  in Government Auditing Standards 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and Chapter 10.550, Rules of Auditor General.   
 
Other Reports 
   
We have issued our Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on 
Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of the Financial Statements Performed in accordance 
with Government Auditing Standards and Independent Auditor’s Report on an examination conducted 
in accordance with AICPA Professional Standards, Section 601, regarding compliance requirements  in 
accordance with Chapter 10.550, Rules of the Auditor General.  Disclosures in those reports, which are 
dated January 7, 2016, should be considered in conjunction with this management letter. 
 
Prior Audit Findings 
 
Section  10.554(1)(i)1.,  Rules  of  the  Auditor  General,  requires  that  we  determine  whether  or  not 
corrective actions have been taken to address findings and recommendations made  in the preceding 
annual  financial  audit  report. There were no  findings  and  recommendations made  in  the preceding 
annual financial audit report. 
 
Official Title and Legal Authority 
 
Section 10.554(1)(i)4., Rules of  the Auditor General,  requires  that  the name or official  title and  legal 
authority for the primary government and each component unit of the reporting entity be disclosed in 
this management  letter,  unless  disclosed  in  the  notes  to  the  financial  statements.    Coral  Springs 
Improvement District was  established  under  the  laws  of  the  State  of  Florida  in Chapter  70‐617,  as 
amended.  The District does not have any component units.  
 

Agenda Package 54



 

37 

Coral Springs Improvement District 
 
 
Financial Condition 
 
Section 10.554(1)(i)5.a. and 10.556(7), Rules of the Auditor General, require that we apply appropriate 
procedures and report the results of our determination as to whether or not the District has met one 
or more of  the conditions described  in Section 218.503(1), Florida Statutes, and  identification of  the 
specific condition(s) met.  In connection with our audit, we determined that the District did not meet 
any of the conditions described in Section 218.503(1), Florida Statutes. 
 
Pursuant to Sections 10.554(1)(i)5.c. and 10.556(8), Rules of the Auditor General, we applied financial 
condition assessment procedures.  It  is management’s responsibility to monitor the District’s financial 
condition,  and  our  financial  condition  assessment  was  based  in  part  on  representations made  by 
management and the review of financial information provided by same. 
 
Annual Financial Report 
 
Section 10.554(1)(i)5.b. and 10.556(7), Rules of the Auditor General, require that we apply appropriate 
procedures and report the results of our determination as to whether the annual financial report for  
the District for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2015, filed with the Florida Department of Financial 
Services pursuant  to Section 218.32(1)(a), Florida Statutes,  is  in agreement with  the annual  financial 
audit  report  for  the  fiscal  year  ended  September  30,  2015.  In  connection  with  our  audit,  we 
determined that these two reports were in agreement. 
 
Monthly Financial Statements 
 
Section 10.554(1)(i)6.a and 10.556(9), Rules of the Auditor General, require that we apply appropriate 
procedures  and  report  the  results of  our  determination  as  to whether  or  not  the District provided 
monthly  financial statement(s) to  its governing board and made such monthly statement(s) available 
for  public  access  on  its Web  site.  In  connection  with  our  audit,  we  determined  that  the  District 
provided monthly financial statement(s) to  its governing board and made such monthly statement(s) 
available for public access on its Web site. 

 
Transparency 
 
Section 10.554(1)(i)6.b. and 10.556(9), Rules of the Auditor General, require that we apply appropriate 
procedures and report the results of our determination as to whether the District provided a link on its 
Web  site  to  the  Florida  Department  of  Financial  Service’s Web  site  to  view  the  District’s  annual 
financial report submitted to the Department.  In connection with our audit, we determined that the 
District provided a link on its Web site to the Florida Department of Financial Service’s Web site. 

 
Section 10.554(1)(i)6.c. and 10.556(9), Rules of the Auditor General, require that we apply appropriate 
procedures and report the results of our determination as to whether the District posted its tentative 
and final budgets on its Web site. In connection with our audit, we determined that the District posted 
its tentative and final budgets on its Web site. 
 
Other Matters 

 
Section 10.554(1)(i)2., Rules of the Auditor General, requires that we address in the management letter 
any  recommendations  to  improve  financial management.  In  connection with  our  audit, we  did  not 
have any such recommendations. 
 
Section  10.554(1)(i)3.,  Rules  of  the  Auditor General,  requires  that we  address  noncompliance with 
provisions  of  contracts  or  grant  agreements,  or  abuse,  that  have  occurred,  or  are  likely  to  have 
occurred, that have an effect on the financial statements that is less than material but which warrants 
the attention of  those charged with governance.  In connection with our audit, we did not have any 
such findings. 

Agenda Package 55



 

38 

Coral Springs Improvement District 
 
 
Purpose of this Letter 
 
Our management  letter  is  intended  solely  for  the  information  and  use  of  the  Legislative  Auditing 
Committee, members  of  the  Florida  Senate  and  the  Florida  House  of  Representatives,  the  Florida 
Auditor  General,  Federal  and  other  granting  agencies,  the  Board  of  Supervisors,  and  applicable 
management, and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified 
parties. 
 
 
 
 
KEEFE McCULLOUGH 
 
 
Fort Lauderdale, Florida 
January 7, 2016 
 

Agenda Package 56



KMCcpa.com  |  6550 N Federal Hwy, 4th Floor   Fort Lauderdale, FL 33308   Phone: 954.771.0896   Fax: 954.938.9353

 

39 

 
 
 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE 
WITH SECTION 218.415, FLORIDA STATUTES 

 
 
To the Board of Supervisors, 
Coral Springs Improvement District 
Coral Springs, Florida 
 
We  have  examined  Coral  Springs  Improvement  District  (the  “District”)  compliance  with  the 
requirements of Section 218.415, Florida Statutes, Local Government  Investment Policies, during the 
year ended September 30, 2015.  Management is responsible for the District’s compliance with those 
requirements. Our  responsibility  is  to express an opinion on  the District’s  compliance based on our 
examination. 
 
Our examination was conducted in accordance with attestation standards established by the American 
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and, accordingly, included examining, on a test basis, evidence 
about the District’s compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we 
considered necessary  in  the  circumstances. We believe  that our examination provides  a  reasonable 
basis  for  our  opinion.  Our  examination  does  not  provide  a  legal  determination  on  the  District’s 
compliance with specified requirements. 
 
In our opinion, the District complied,  in all material respects, with the aforementioned requirements 
for the year ended September 30, 2015. 
 
This  report  is  intended  solely  for  the  information  and use of management  and  the  State of  Florida 
Auditor General and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified 
parties. 
 
 
 
 
KEEFE McCULLOUGH 
 
 
Fort Lauderdale, Florida 
January 7, 2016 

Agenda Package 57



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Seventh Order of Business 
  

Agenda Package 58



Agenda Package 59



Agenda Package 60



Agenda Package 61



Agenda Package 62



Agenda Package 63



Agenda Package 64



Agenda Package 65



Agenda Package 66



Agenda Package 67



Agenda Package 68



Agenda Package 69



Agenda Package 70



Agenda Package 71



Agenda Package 72



Agenda Package 73



Agenda Package 74



Agenda Package 75



Agenda Package 76



Agenda Package 77



Agenda Package 78



Agenda Package 79



Agenda Package 80



S
H
I
P

T
O

I
S
S
U
E
D

T
O

CENTRAL PURCHASE ORDER

IMPORTANT

www.pbcgov.com

BOARD OF COUNTY
 COMMISSIONERS THE ABOVE NUMBER MUST APPEAR ON ALL SHIPPING

LABELS, PACKING SLIPS, TRANSPORT DOCUMENTS,
INVOICES AND CORRESPONDENCE.

B I L L   T OORDER DATE DELIVERY DATE

VENDOR ADDRESS

F.O.B.

BID/QUOTE/RFP NO AGREEMENT NUMBER

STATE TAX EXEMPTION NUMBER
FEDERAL EXCISE TAX EXEMPTION NUMBER
EXEMPTION CERTIFICATES WILL BE MAILED UPON REQUEST

NOTE TO VENDOR EMAIL:

PAGE NUMBER:

AUTHORIZED BY
PALM BEACH COUNTY BOARD OF
COUNTY COMMISSIONERS

85-8012622286C-8
59-74-0344K

ITEM   QUANTITY
 UNIT COMMODITY CODE UNIT PRICE

EXTENDED PRICE
ITEM DESCRIPTION

UNIT PRICE

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS
PALM BEACH COUNTY FINANCE DEPT.
P.O. BOX 4036
WEST PALM BEACH, FL 33402-4036
TELEPHONE: 561-355-2912

TAX EXEMPTION
 INFORMATION

RESP. DEPT: UNIT:PRINT DATE:

VENDOR E-MAIL:

P.B.C. PURCHASING DEPARTMENT
50 S. MILITARY TRAIL, SUITE 110
WEST PALM BEACH, FL 33415-3199
PHONE: 561 616-6800
FAX:   561 616-6811
www.pbcgov.com/purchasing

VENDOR NUMBER VENDOR CONTACT

OF

  ATTN:

     BUYER                     TELEPHONE                      

ORDER TOTAL
UNLESS AGREED TO OTHERWISE,PALM BEACH COUNTY'S STANDARD TERMS AND 
CONDITIONS ARE INCORPORATED IN THIS ORDER BY REFERENCE AT WEB
ADDRESS:WWW.PBCGOV.COM/PURCHASING. ADDITIONAL TERMS & CONDITIONS
WILL BE NOTED IN THIS ORDER WHEN APPLICABLE.

NOTE: Vendors may now choose to receive payment from Palm Beach County by Credit Card!
If you are interested, please contact the Palm Beach Clerk & Comptroller at
pbcpaymentmgr@mypalmbeachclerk.com or 561-355-3295.

fferreira@pbcwater.com

UTILITIES (561) 381-5351 CPO 680 ZG122815000000000034
O & M DIVISION/#9 PLANT
22438 SW 7TH STREET
BOCA RATON FL  33433

TOM DINEEN

American Water Chemicals, Inc.
Alkema Solutions 12-28-2015 01-04-2016 Destination
1802 Corporate Center Lane

VC0000009895 AD003 PC00217Plant City FL  33563

813-246-5448Jessaca Townsend

ZULMA GASCA 561-616-6848

zgasca@pbcgov.org
zgasca@pbcgov.org 35,892.00

1 1

680 680112/28/15

customerservice@membranechemicals.com

1 12.0000 DRUM 88594 1,508.000000 18,096.00
HIGH PH MEMBRANE CLEANER, 55 GALLON DRUM (580 LBS/DRUM)

PER ALL TERMS, CONDITIONS AND SPECIFICATIONS OF RFQ 112315-126/ZG, SUBMITTED BY
AMERICAN WATER CHEMICALS, RUDY CANEZO, ON 12/09/15.

15-78940 JMORALES2
MSDS: Material Safety Data Sheet is required
HAZARDOUS MATERIAL:
.

MANUFACTURER: AWC
PART NO: C-237

2 12.0000 DRUM 88594 1,483.000000 17,796.00
MEMBRANE CLEANER, 55 GALLON DRUM (625 LBS/DRUM)

15-78938 JMORALES2
MSDS: Material Safety Data Sheet is required
HAZARDOUS MATERIAL:
.

MANUFACTURER: AWC
PART NO: C-236

Agenda Package 81



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Eighth Order of Business 
  

Agenda Package 82



Agenda Package 83



 

 
 
FINANCE AND ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES DEPARTMENT 
PURCHASING DIVISION 
115 S. Andrews Avenue, Room 212 • Fort Lauderdale, Florida 33301 • 954-357-6065 • FAX 954-357-8535 
 

 
 

Broward County Board of County Commissioners 
Sue Gunzburger • Dale V.C. Holness • Kristin Jacobs • Martin David Kiar • Chip LaMarca • Stacy Ritter • Tim Ryan • Barbara Sharief • Lois Wexler 

www.broward.org 
 

 
 
 

April 7, 2014 
 
 

Florida Fish Farms, Inc.    
9684 CR 705    
Center Hill, FL  33514 

 
REFERENCE:  Quote No. Y1227120Q1  
 
FOR: Triploid Grass Carp 
 
Dear Mr. Slay: 
 
This is to confirm that the Director of Purchasing has accepted your Bid on the above-referenced 
solicitation. 
 
A Bid tabulation is enclosed with the item awarded to your firm indicated. 
 
The Contract is in effect for the period beginning April 7, 2014 and ending April 6, 2015. Purchase 
Order(s) will be placed by each Using Agency as and when required. 
 
A copy of this Notice, with a copy of your Bid submittal, including all terms and conditions, is being 
forwarded to the lead Using Agency, Water and Wastewater Services. 
 
Thank you for your interest in doing business with Broward County. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
Brenda J. Billingsley, Director 
Purchasing Division 
 
 
By: ____________________________ 
      Marie Williams, CPPB 
      Purchasing Agent III 
 
 
cc: Ellie O’Connell, Water and Wastewater Services 
 
 
 
Letter 4 (Contracts)Rev.  
11/30/09 

Agenda Package 84



4/7/2014
Quote Tabulation (09/12/2011) Page 1 of 1

Quotation No. Y1227120Q1 Date Quote Posted: 03/06/14
Triploid Grass Carp Date Quote Due: 03/13/14
Agency:  Water and Wastewater Services Quote Submittals:   1
Purchasing Agent: Marie Williams Declinations:  1

Item
Commodity Code No. 98889

Description
Qty Unit  Unit Price Total Price

1

Triploid Grass Carp:
Live, Certified, Must measure between 10” - 12", as per 
Attachment “A”, Specifications and Requirements.

3500 Each $4.00 $14,000.00

Total: $14,000.00
AWD

Prepared By:  Marie Williams

AWD = Recommendation for award.

Tabulation of Quotations
 Florida Fish Farms, Inc. 

 9684 CR 705 
 Center Hill, FL  33514 

Agenda Package 85



Quotations for furnishing items or QUOTATION REQUEST Quotation No.: Y1227120Q1 
services stated below subject to 

Board of County Commissioners, Broward terms and conditions provided, 
County, Florida Date: 3/6/2014 

will be received by the Director of 
Purchasing, attention of the Purchasing Agent: Marie Williams 
Purchasing Agent stated at the PURCHASING DIVISION 
address indicated. 115 S. Andrews Avenue Room 212 Phone number: 954-357-5856 
Until the close of business Fort Lauderdale, Florida 33301-1801 
at 5:00 pm on 03/13/14. 
Quotes may be faxed to Requisition No. RQS FOD021914*09 
954- 357-8535. 

QUOTATION MUST BE SIGNED IN INK 
By signature I acknowledge and agree to pages 1 thru 17 and abide by all conditions contained in this quotation as well as any special 
instruction sheet(s) if applicable. Payment terms 30 Days from receipt of materials and/or services and receipt of a proper invoice; delivery 
FOB Destination. 

Company Name: ~tO"\Io-~~:!:1 \-,~"'-~'"'""~ 1:-.'tc. Signature: <Q..,...,u>Q9'7' l S«g.,b <ee.U)q. 
(Please Print) ' . I 

Address: .._._ <;;.a I..\ ~~ l"-tcS 
Nameffitle: Ro~!!.~!l: 'f") • S \..,.'=I t ~"rt 01:..~. 

(Please Print) 

CEi!."'-~"- \\ ·, \.\. .. 1l='-.. ?z 2~ \~ Date: 3--1'1-l'+ 

PH: (.~-s;U "t~ 2-4 ?...?\. "\ FX:(~~;.oJ !'\~"!>-~~ Email: ""Q "'- ~ 1 '"' 1 lis) s 0 tl\'\..• Y'\. "e + 

1. Open-End Contract: 
Quotations are hereby requested on an open-end basis to provide Triploid Grass Carpfor the Broward 
County Water and Wastewater Services and various other Broward County agencies that may have 
need of these services and products in accordance with the specifications as set forth in this quotation 
request. 

The initial contract period shall start on date of award or upon expiration of the current contract, 
whichever is later, and shall terminate one year from that date. The Purchasing Director may renew 
this contract for two additional one (1) year periods, subject to satisfactory vendor performance, vendor 
acceptance and determination that the renewal is in the best interest of Broward County. 

All prices, terms, conditions and specifications shall remain fixed for the initial contract period. 
In addition, all prices, terms, conditions and specifications shall remain fixed for the renewal of 
the contract. There will be no allowable price escalations for fuel or any other type of escalation 
throughout any contract period(s), unless otherwise specified in this document. 

Quantities listed within this quotation are not a guarantee, but solely an estimate of anticipated annual 
usage. 

2. Terms & Conditions: 
Attached Terms and Conditions dated 1/17/2013, numbered 1 thru 33, apply to this solicitation. 

For quotations over $50,000, an original signed copy of the Quote Request must be submitted to 
the Purchasing Division prior to award. 

Quotations must be received in the Purchasing Division by the time and date requested. Refer 
to the upper left corner of this document for submittal information. 

Prices shall be quoted F.O.B. Destination, freight included, and inclusive of all costs. Current 
and/or anticipated applicable fuel costs should be considered and included in the price quoted. 

Quotation Form 103-29 (Rev. 12/30/2013) Page 1 of 17 
A Service of the Broward County Board of County Commissioners 

Excellence in Public Procurement- Our Best. Nothing Less. 

Agenda Package 86



Quotations for furnishing items or QUOTATION REQUEST Quotation No.: Y1227120Q1 
services stated below subject to Board of County Commissioners, Broward terms and conditions provided, will County, Florida Date: 31612014 
be received by the Director of 
Purchasing, attention of the 

PURCHASING DIVISION Purchasing Agent: Marie Williams 
Purchasing Agent stated at the 
address indicated. 115 S. Andrews Avenue Room 212 

Phone number: 954-357-5856 Until the close of business at Fort Lauderdale, Florida 33301-1801 
5:00 pm on 03113114. Quotes 
may be faxed to 954- 357- Requisition No. RQS FOD021914*09 
8535. 

Company Name: t:" l. 12 ]!;~,~~ E'-2:\... ~-~v-:; :CrAsz 
(Please Print) 1 

Signature: ~~q{.<~IZ~ 0-~ 

' 
3. Contacts: 

For technical questions regarding the commodities/services listed in this quote, contact Adam Gardner 
of Water and Wastewater Services at 954-831-0754 or by email at adgardner@broward.org. No 
change(s) and no interpretation(s) shall be considered binding unless provided to all bidders in 
writing by an addendum issued by the Purchasing Division. 

For information regarding bidding procedures, terms and conditions, contact Marie Williams of the 
Purchasing Division, preferably by email, at mariwilliams@broward.org or at 954-357-5856. 

4. Office of Economic and Small Business Development Requirements: 
Not applicable for this solicitation. 

5. For All Contracts: 
Quotation responses shall be on this form and must be signed or they may be declared non-responsive. 
Quotations must be typed or printed in ink. Signatures should be in "blue" ink. 

If a specific basis for award is not established in this quotation request, the award shall be to the 
responsible vendor with the lowest responsive quotation meeting the written specifications. 

6. Addenda to Quotation Requests: 
Quotation Requests may require Addenda be issued to them. An Addendum in some way modifies 
information from the original quotation request, i.e., to announce changes in the quote opening date, 
specifications, terms, conditions, or modifications to the bid sheet. In addition, some addenda are 
mandatory (i.e. MUST be acknowledged and returned with your quotation prior to the opening). Anyone 
quoting or contemplating quoting should check the Purchasing Division's website for posted addenda if 
you did not receive the initial quotation request by e-mail. All vendors shall be responsible for monitoring 
this website for posted addenda. 

7. Award Options: 
As the best interest of the County may require, the right is reserved to make award(s) by individual 
commodities, group of commodities, all or none or any combination thereof. 

8. Local Business Tax Receipt Requirements: 
All vendors maintaining a business address within Broward County must have and provide a copy of a 
current Broward County Local Business Tax Receipt prior to contract award. The Contractor should 
provide a copy of their Local Business Tax Receipt within three (3) business days upon the request of 
the Purchasing Agent. Failure to do so may result in your quote being deemed non-responsive. For 
further information on obtaining or renewing your firm's Local Business Tax Receipt, contact the 
Records, Taxes and Treasury Division at (954) 357-6200. 

9. Special Notice/OSHA: 
Special notice: In accordance with OSHA Regulation 29 CFR 1926.1101 (k) (2), vendors are notified of 
the presence of asbestos containing material and/or presumed asbestos containing material at some 
Broward County locations. 
Quotation Form 103-29 (Rev. 12/30/2013) Page 2 of 17 

Agenda Package 87



Quotations for furnishing items or 
services stated below subject to 
terms and conditions provided, will 
be received by the Director of 
Purchasing, attention of the 
Purchasing Agent stated at the 
address indicated. 
Until the close of business at 
5:00 pm on 03113114. Quotes 
may be faxed to 954- 357-
8535. 

QUOTATION REQUEST 
Board of County Commissioners, Broward 

County, Florida 

PURCHASING DIVISION 
115 S. Andrews Avenue Room 212 

Fort Lauderdale, Florida 33301-1801 

Quotation No.: Y1227120Q1 

Date: 316/2014 

Purchasing Agent: Marie Williams 

Phone number: 954-357-5856 

Requisition No. RQS FOD021914*09 

Company Name: '- \o-... ~·..., £, ;..v... F.."'""'=$ J" "" , 
(Please Print) ' 

Signature: ~ .cFr-<-~. 2.A.Q:>. 
I 

10. Public Records: 
Broward County is a public agency subject to Chapter 119, Florida Statutes. As required by 
Chapter 119, Florida Statutes, the Contractor and all sub-contractors for services shall comply with 
Florida's Public Records Law. Specifically, the Contractor and sub-contractors shall: 

1 0.1. Keep and maintain public records that ordinarily and necessarily would be required by 
the County in order to perform the service; 

10.2. Provide the public with access to such public records on the same terms and conditions 
that the County would provide the records and at a cost that does not exceed that 
provided in Chapter 119, Fla. Stat., or as otherwise provided by law; 

10.3. Ensure that public records that are exempt or that are confidential and exempt from 
public record requirements are not disclosed except as authorized by law; and 

10.4. Meet all requirements for retaining public records and transfer to the County, at no cost, 
all public records in possession of the contractor upon termination of the contract and 
destroy any duplicate public records that are exempt or confidential and exempt. All 
records stored electronically must be provided to the County in a format that is 
compatible with the information technology systems of the agency. 

10.5. The failure of Contractor to comply with the provisions set forth in this Article shall 
constitute a Default and Breach of this Contract and the County shall enforce the Default 
in accordance with the provisions set forth in the General Terms and Conditions, Article 
15. 

11. Insurance Requirements: 
Insurance Requirements for Automobile Liability are not applicable where delivery will be made by a 
third party carrier. All vendors that will be making deliveries in their own vehicles are required to provide 
proof of insurance for Automobile Liability and other pertinent coverages per the attached sample, prior 
to award. If deliveries are being made by a third party carrier, other pertinent coverages listed on the 
certificate are still required. 

If available, vendor should submit Certificate of Insurance (COl) with their Quotation. The vendor 
recommended for award should submit satisfactory COl no later than three (3) business days of 
request or their Quotation may be rejected. 

Prior to submission, vendor should ensure that all insurance requirements conform to attached 
sample (Attachment "0"). 

Quotation Form 103-29 (Rev. 12/30/2013) Page 3 of 17 

Agenda Package 88



Quotations for furnishing items or QUOTATION REQUEST Quotation No.: Y1227120Q1 
services stated below subject to Board of County Commissioners, Broward terms and conditions provided, will County, Florida Date: 3/6/2014 
be received by the Director of 
Purchasing, attention of the Purchasing Agent: Marie Williams 
Purchasing Agent stated at the PURCHASING DIVISION 
address indicated. 115 S. Andrews Avenue Room 212 

Phone number: 954-357-5856 Until the close of business at Fort Lauderdale, Florida 33301-1801 

5:00 pm on 03/13/14. Quotes 
may be faxed to 954- 357-
8535. 

Requisition No. RQS FOD021914*09 

Company Name:~\.~~~!! ~12 "--~!!!.~ ;l:!i!l:!.• Signature: ~cw· .<..Stg-~ ,:£" Q~. 
(Please Print) 

12. Contractor Responsibilities: 
Contractor will be responsible for the prov1s1on, installation and performance of all equipment, 
materials, services, etc. offered in their Quote. Contractor is in no way relieved of the responsibility for 
the performance of all equipment furnished, or of assuring the timely delivery of materials, equipment, 
etc. even though it is not of their own manufacture. 

The Contract Administrator will document the contractor's performance by completing a Vendor 
Performance Evaluation Form. A blank Performance Evaluation Form may be viewed at: 
http://www. broward. org/Purchasing/documents/vendorperformanceevaluationrequ i rements. pdf and 
will be completed by the Contract Administrator based upon the following factors: 

i. For any fixed construction or services contract valued at $50,000 or more upon completion of 
the contract. 

ii. For any hardware or software implementation contracts valued at $20,000 or more as part of 
the final acceptance. 

iii. For any fixed commodities contract valued at $250,000 or more upon complete delivery of the 
commodities 

iv. For Master (open-end) Agreements and other continuing contracts by each using agency 
whose cumulative annual usage of the agreement exceeds $50,000, prior to any renewal, 
termination and upon the agreement expiration. 

v. For Work Authorizations valued at $30,000 or more, issued under a Library of Professional 
Consultant Services, a Library of Environmental Consultant Services, or other two-party 
agreement, upon project completion. 

vi. For contracts where the Office of Economic and Small Business Development (OESBD) has 
established goals, based on compliance with established goals and requirements. 

vii. The Contract Administrator may also initiate an interim evaluation at any time during the term 
for any contract. 

13. Subcontracting: 
The Contractor shall submit a listing of all non-certified subcontractors and/or suppliers, if any, and the 
portion of the Project they will perform (Vendors List - Attachment "B") within three (3) business days of 
request by County and prior to award. This list shall be kept up-to-date for the duration of the project and 
shall include major material suppliers to the Prime that provide construction material for construction 
contracts or commodities for service contracts in excess of $50,000 to the Contractor. If subcontractors are 
stated, this does not relieve the Contractor from the prime responsibility of full and complete satisfactory 
and acceptable performance under any awarded contract. 

Quotation Form 103-29 (Rev. 12/30/2013) Page 4 of 17 

Agenda Package 89



Quotations for furnishing items or QUOTATION REQUEST Quotation No.: Y1227120Q1 
services stated below subject to Board of County Commissioners, Broward terms and conditions provided, will 

County, Florida Date: 3/6/2014 
be received by the Director of 
Purchasing, attention of the Purchasing Agent: Marie Williams 
Purchasing Agent stated at the PURCHASING DIVISION 
address indicated. 115 S. Andrews Avenue Room 212 Phone number: 954-357-5856 Until the close of business at Fort Lauderdale, Florida 33301-1801 
5:00 pm on 03/13/14. Quotes 
may be faxed to 954- 357- Requisition No. RQS FOD021914*09 
8535. 

Company Name: f= l o"; '-~ ~{sk.~""" ... ~ -:c~s.. Signature: ~~Q'.~~ \~g;lJ2~ 
(Please Print) 

~ cS 

14. Litigation History Requirement: 
14.1. The County will consider a vendor's litigation history information in its review and determination 

of responsibility. All vendors are required to disclose to the County all "material" cases filed or 
resolved in the three (3) year period ending with the solicitation response due date, whether 
such cases were brought by or against the vendor, any parent or subsidiary of the vendor, or 
any predecessor organization. 

14.2. For purpose of this disclosure requirement, a "case" includes lawsuits, administrative hearings 
and arbitrations. A case is considered to be "material" if it relates, in whole or in part, to any of 
the following: 

14.2.1. A similar type of work that the vendor is seeking to perform for the County under 
the current solicitation; 

14.2.2. An allegation of negligence, error or omissions, or malpractice against the vendor 
or any of its principals or agents who would be performing work under the current 
solicitation; 

14.2.3. A vendor's default, termination, suspension, failure to perform, or improper 
performance in connection with any contract; 

14.2.4. The financial condition of the vendor, including any bankruptcy petition (voluntary 
and involuntary); or 

14.2.5. A criminal proceeding or hearing concerning business-related offenses in which 
the vendor or its principals (including officers) were/are defendants. 

14.3. Notwithstanding the descriptions listed in paragraphs above, a case is not considered to be 
"material" if the claims raised in the case involve only garnishment, auto negligence, personal 
injury, or a proof of claim filed by the vendor. 

14.4. For each material case, the vendor is required to provide all information identified in the form 
included in the Vendor Questionnaire. 

14.5. A Vendor is also required to disclose to the County any and all case(s) that exist between the 
County and any of the vendor's subcontractors/subconsultants proposed to work on this project. 

14.6. Failure to disclose any material case, or to provide all requested information in connection with 
each such case, may result in the vendor being deemed non-responsive. Prior to making such 
determination, the vendor will have the ability to clarify the submittal and to explain why an 
undisclosed case is not material. 

15. Self-Certification- Owner Ethnicity/Gender (Optional): 
Vendor is requested to fill out and submit Attachment "C". The information requested is voluntary and 
not a requirement to respond to a Broward County solicitation. However, in the event that your 
company becomes the recommend vendor for award, this information will be required prior to award. 
Recommended vendor for award must submit within three business days of County's request. 

Quotation Form 103-29 (Rev. 12/30/2013) Page 5 of 17 

Agenda Package 90



Quotations for furnishing items or QUOTATION REQUEST Quotation No.: Y1227120Q1 
services stated below subject to Board of County Commissioners, Broward terms and conditions provided, will County, Florida Date: 3/6/2014 
be received by the Director of 
Purchasing, attention of the Purchasing Agent: Marie Williams 
Purchasing Agent stated at the PURCHASING DIVISION 
address indicated. 115 S. Andrews Avenue Room 212 

Phone number: 954-357-5856 Until the close of business at Fort Lauderdale, Florida 33301-1801 
5:00 pm on 03/13/14. Quotes 
may be faxed to 954- 357- Requisition No. RQS FOD021914*09 
8535. 

Company Name: ~ ~::b~~!:! ~,.~\... ~~"~ 'l:.~oe· 
(Please Print) 

1 
Signature: ~-II!·~Ci1.~,~~' 

16. Non-Collusion Statement: 
By signing this offer, the vendor certifies that this offer is made independently and free from collusion. 
Vendor shall disclose below, to their best knowledge, any Broward County officer or employee, or any 
relative of any such officer or employee as defined in Section 112.3135 (1) (c), Fla. Stat. (2012), who is 
an officer or director of, or has a material interest in, the vendor's business, who is in a position to 
influence this procurement. Any Broward County officer or employee who has any input into the writing 
of specifications or requirements, solicitation of offers, decision to award, evaluation of offers, or any 
other activity pertinent to this procurement is presumed, for purposes hereof, to be in a position to 
influence this procurement. For purposes hereof, a person has a material interest if he or she directly 
or indirectly owns more than 5 percent of the total assets or capital stock of any business entity, or if he 
or she otherwise stands to personally gain if the contract is awarded to this vendor. 

Failure of a vendor to disclose any relationship described herein shall be reason 
for debarment in accordance with the provisions of the Broward County 
Procurement Code. 

NAME RELATIONSHIPS 

In the event the vendor does not indicate any relationship by leaving the above section 
blank, the County will take this to mean the vendor means no such relationships exist. 

NAME OF COMPANY: -----"~:...-\...;.o...;."'-_:_~_-_-___;;~_ ... ...;.->...;.\.L_~:....""....;..;..-.....;<M...:..;;;;..;;~~--:t.~~..:..;'!:-" _____ _ 

Quotation Form 103-29 (Rev. 12/30/2013) Page 6 of 17 

Agenda Package 91



Quotations for furnishing items or QUOTATION REQUEST Quotation No.: Y1227120Q1 
services stated below subject to 

Board of County Commissioners, Broward 
terms and conditions provided, will 

County, Florida Date: 316/2014 
be received by the Director of 
Purchasing, attention of the Purchasing Agent: Marie Williams 
Purchasing Agent stated at the PURCHASING DIVISION 
address indicated. 115 S. Andrews Avenue Room 212 

Phone number: 954-357-5856 Until the close of business at Fort Lauderdale, Florida 33301-1801 
5:00 pm on 03113114. Quotes 
may be faxed to 954- 357- Requisition No. RQS FOD021914*09 
8535. 

Company Name: \-:-lu~\';!.,., ~V.."-t:"..f\.-.fV'" ;IV\o<",.-
(Please Print) ~ 

Signature: ~91'-~~ ,"~ 
iJ 

Specifications: Additional specifications and requirements for the line item below, follow on pages 12 - 13 
as Attachment "A". 

All prices submitted are to be on the form below. Prices quoted should be in unit of measure 
shown. Prices shall be quoted F.O.B. Destination, freight included, and inclusive of all costs. 
Current and/or anticipated applicable fuel costs should be considered and included in the price 
quoted. 

Basis of Award: The award shall be to the lowest responsive, responsible bidder by total bid price. 

Commodity No. 98889/ Annual Total Unit 
Line Estimated Unit Price 

Description 
Qty./ Unit 

Price 

1. Triploid Grass Carp: 3,500 I 
Live, Certified, Must measure between 10"- 12", as Each S\...l.OO !\: \'"\ t CCC~ 
per Attachment "A", Specifications and Requirements. 

Total Price $ t \ '-l \ o<:)C .. Ol') 

Delivery: 
Delivery is desired within 30 calendar days after receipt of Purchase Order. Failure to meet this 
delivery date may be deemed as non-responsive 

Please indicate delivery time after receipt of Purchase Order: '"3 o 

Please indicate if delivery will be made by: 

Addenda: 

Common Carrier 
Company Vehicle 
Other 

calendar days. 

v 

List below all addenda (identified by number) that your Company has received and hereby 
acknowledges since issuance of this quote: 

Deliverv/Ship To coordinated through: 

Water and Wastewater Services/ Water Management Division 
2555 West Copans Road 
Pompano Beach, FL 33069 
Attn. Adam Gardner, Water Resources Operations Supervisor 
954 831-0754, 954 831-3285 

Quotation Form 103-29 (Rev. 12/30/2013) Page 7 of 17 

Agenda Package 92



QUOTATION NO. Y1227120Q1 

VENDOR QUESTIONNAIRE 

The completed Vendor Questionnaire should be submitted with the solicitation response but must be 
submitted within three business days of County's request. Where a response requires additional 
information, the Vendor should attach a written detailed response; each response should be 
numbered to match the question number. The completed questionnaire and attached responses will 
become part of the procurement record. It is imperative that the person completing the Vendor Questionnaire 
be knowledgeable about the proposing Vendor's business and operations. Failure to provide the completed 
questionnaire timely may result in the Vendor being deemed non-responsive. 

2. FEDERAL EMPLOYER I.D. NO. (FEIN): __ 'i.....,__~..J.--.....l\......;"'\;l...~....__.\......:'=l.._\:::....:!SOI!....-___________ _ 

4. DOING BUSINESS AS/ FICTITIOUS NAME (if applicable):_.:..-N~{..:..f\~-----------

5. WEBSITE ADDRESS (if applicable): w u.n.~ , ;: ld.;..I.:!:..,.,~),.."'-.Si t>,v-·wv$ .. c~ ""-

6. PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS ADDRESS: __ q~<;,. ..... "?J""-'+:::..........;C.-.......R=-l'J:..>o......;;;o .... 5"---------

C~~,._ \-\,\\ , ~l- -~·35'\'t 

8. TYPE OF BUSINESS (check appropriate box): 0 Sole Proprietor 0 Limited Liability Corporation (LLC) 

~ Corporation (Specify the State of Incorporation): _'£.1.....:\:.:::o::..:,;_.:..:\~~::;...:... ___________ _ 

0 Limited Partnership 0 General Partnership (State and County filed in) ---------

0 Other-Specify--------------------------

9. LIST NAME AND TITLE OF EACH PRINCIPAL, OWNER, OFFICER, AND MAJOR SHAREHOLDER: 

a) 

b) 

c) 

d) 

\coAl 

10. AUTHORIZED CONTACT FOR YOUR FIRM: 

Name: 'B..·=·~·"'-\~ 1> , S ' "'1 
Telephone Number: (~) 1'1~~ ··4";l,4 

. 
Title: ~y,e.c:;·~~ ..... ""t 

Fax Number: C.~5;;:l.) "tt~·3- ~<R~~'i:J 

E-maii: __ Y'..:....._o:.· ...:.""'....:........;;S .... \~...:.,.~l+-..-.:€:s-5..e..=;.l.;:>..:.vv...~,...:."-..... e ...... ~_,_ __________________ _ 

11. Specify the type of services or commo~itie§.. your firm offers: \ .. _/. ~ \..,;.. J.. ~ -~ c.. .... .,..~ - ""~ 

12. How many years has your firm been in business while providing the services and/or products offered within 

this solicitation? __ ....::·~~<lr~· --------------------------
Quotation Form 103-29 (Rev. 12/30/2013) Page 8 of 17 

Agenda Package 93



QUOTATION NO. Y1227120Q1 

13. Provide at least three (3) individuals, corporations, agencies, or institutions for which your firm has completed 
work of a similar nature or in which your firm sold similar commodities in the past three (3) years. Contact 
persons shall have personal knowledge of the referenced project/contract. Only one (1) Broward County 
Board of County Commissioners agency reference may be submitted. If any of the following references 
are inaccessible or not relevant, additional references may be requested by the County. 

Reference No. 1 : 

ScopeofWork: y r-o>(lG.<::.. \ ooo \~~~\o~~ c;."'"""-..,.<i c., ... ~ 
Contract/Project Title: i= ast l o<J.. ·"),_ o q -3. 

Contact NamefTitle: Ca"' ~ \ f:\ ,..s;.k.;..__ 

Contact Telephone: ~ ~ 4:) ~ ? \- o., c; ? 

Contract/Project Dates 
(MonthandYear): C)c:...-\ 9 \:.s:..,.. 7-='~ 

Contract Amount: ~ '3 ~o o . o o 

Reference No. 2: 

ScopeofWork: e"t'o··«•~c:.... ?.l'\G'~3'v-:~d.,.;,e, c.;..,_,.,.,. c ... ""'Cf 

Contract/Project Title: ? , D. \ ~ t ~ '~ 

Contact NamefTitle: l\J\~"' k we.'~~"~ 1 s v ~~YI'i ,;=v-... 
Contact Telephone: C..~-s-~)~ t,').. -~ \:).<,: Email: ""'-\.)Je LY'\ \rv\.7 2 'n'\..._ .... ~.,~~\-c:.o"M 

Contract/Project Dates 
(Month and Year): ·~v \1\.... -,..o' 3> ·- c;e "'~0!!..~\o~ .... ?,c \].? 

Contract Amount: 

Reference No. 3: 

Contract/Project Title: No 'W\.,.. 

Contact Telephone: (.~'i~) 4"!>:;a.,-~\\O Email: 1 
Contract/Project Dates 
(Month and Year): -v=-.~._,...,,..,1 ?.o\'1:- Fc:..b"""' ... ,."t ?teO\." 

Contract Amount: 

NameofVendor: --~'~··~\~o~~-:_~--~~~·~;~k~l:~~~~~~~~~,~:L=~~~:-__________ __ 

Quotation Form 103-29 (Rev. 12/30/2013) Page 9 of 17 

Agenda Package 94



QUOTATION NO. Y1227120Q1 

14. Is your firm's business regularly engaged in and routinely selling the product(s) or GfYes D No 
services offered within this solicitation? 

15. Does your firm affirm that it is currently authorized by the manufacturer as a 
dealer/seller of the product(s) offered herein, and warranty offered is the 
manufacturer's warranty with Broward County recorded as the original purchaser? The 
County reserves the right to verify prior to a recommendation of award. 

16. Has your firm ever failed to complete any services and/or delivery of products during 
the last three (3) years? If yes, specify details in an attached a written response. 

17. Is your firm or any of its principals or officers currently principals or officers of another 
organization? If yes, specify details in an attached a written response. 

18. Have any voluntary or involuntary bankruptcy petitions been filed by or against your 
firm, its parent or subsidiaries or predecessor organizations during the last three 
years? If yes, specify details in an attached a written response. 

19. Has your firm, its principals, officers or predecessor organization(s) been debarred or 
suspended by any government entity within the last three years? If yes, specify details 
in an attached a written response. 

20. Has your firm's surety ever intervened to assist in the completion of a contract or have 
Performance and/or Payment Bond claims been made to your firm or its predecessor's 
sureties during the last three years? If yes, specify details in an attached a written 
response, including contact information for owner and surety company. 

21. If requested, will your firm extend the same price, terms and conditions to other 
governmental entities during the period covered by this contract? 

22. Would your firm accept a Visa credit card as payment from Broward County? 

23. Living Wage solicitations only: In determining what, if any, fiscal impacts(s) are a result 
of the Ordinance for this solicitation, provide the following for informational purposes 
only. Response is not considered in determining the award of this contract. 
Living Wage had an effect on the pricing. 
If yes, Living Wage increased the pricing by __ % or decreased the pricing by_%. 

DYes D No 

~/A (if service) 

DYes @'No 

DYes [}t-No 

DYes [9-'No 

DYes ~o 

DYes @'No 

ffi'Yes D No 

DYes (]1qo 

DYes D No 
[]..N-!A 

Questions 23 - 26 are only applicable to construction or service (repair, maintain or furnish and 
install) solicitations: 
24. What is the last contract of this nature that your firm has completed, or what similar on-going contracts is 

your firm working on? If additional space is required, provide on separate sheet. \' "'9.,; l~~ .x ,...;y19\~ 
~ Y:. a_ ~S e,..., 'I"" \) 5 9 '/'. c ~ ...,\ ~ Y'<>W.., ...._ e l) t" !.)! "'?'b• J? ;.;tt.,;_,S..--r• 

25. Has your firm completely inspected the project site(s) prior to submitting response? ~es D No 

26. Will your firm need to rent or purchase any equipment for this contract? If yes, please DYes Ql-rro 
specify details in an attached a written response. 

27. What equipment does your firm own that is available for this contract? I"\. :e s; ,·, "'-~ .... "' '5. .... ~ 

"= \ l CL"ZS c:. ~-; :o. ~ '=S< Pl.-" l V .,;.. -.:.:n~ 

Quotation Form 103-29 (Rev. 12/30/2013) Page 10 of 17 

Agenda Package 95



QUOTATION NO. Y1227120Q1 

LITIGATION HISTORY FORM 

Failure to disclose any material case, or to provide all requested information in connection with each case, 
may result in the Vendor being deemed non-responsive. Prior to making such determination, the Vendor will 
have the ability to clarify the submittal and to explain why an undisclosed case is not material. Refer to the 
Quotation Request, Section 14, for further instructions. 

Vendor Name: 

~re are no material cases for this Vendor; or 

0 Material Case(s) are disclosed below: 

Is this for a: (check type) If Yes, Name of Parent/Subsidiary/Predecessor: 
0 Parent, 0 Subsidiary, or 
0 Predecessor Firm? or NoD 

Party Vendor is Plaintiff D Vendor is Defendant D 

Case Number, Name, 
and Date Filed 

Name of Court or other tribunal 

Type of Case Bankruptcy D Civil D Criminal D Administrative/Regulatory D 

Claim or Cause of Action and 
Brief description of each Count 

Brief description of the 
Subject Matter and Project 

Involved 

Pending D Settled D Dismissed D 
Disposition of Case 

(Attach copy of any applicable 
Judgment Vendor's Favor D Judgment Against Vendor D 

Judgment, Settlement If Judgment Against, is Judgment Satisfied? Yes D NoD 
Agreement and Satisfaction of 

Judgment.) 

Name: 

Opposing Counsel Email: 

Telephone Number: 

Quotation Form 103-29 (Rev. 12/30/2013) Page 11 of 17 

Agenda Package 96



ATTACHMENT "A" 
SPECIFICATIONS AND REQUIREMENTS 

QUOTATION NO. Y1227120Q1 

VENDORS SHOULD SHOW WHAT IS OFFERED INCLUDING ANY DEVIATIONS FROM THE DESCRIPTION AND 
SPECIFICATIONS. THE SERVICE/PRODUCT OFFERED BY THE BIDDER MUST ON AN OVERALL BASIS BE EQUAL OR 
GREATER IN QUALITY OR PERFORMANCE THAN THE BID SPECIFICATIONS. BROWARD COUNTY RESERVES THE RIGHT TO 
BE THE SOLE JUDGE OF WHAT IS EQUAL AND ACCEPTABLE. BIDS WHICH DO NOT COMPLY WITH THESE REQUIREMENTS 
ARE SUBJECT TO REJECTION. 

SCOPE: 
This open-end contract is for the procurement of Triploid Grass Carp. The Triploid Grass Carp are an integral 
part of the County's effort to maintain canals and water bodies in our jurisdictions. The use of this fish is a 
proven method for controlling aquatic vegetation. Contractor shall provide all labor, materials, transportation 
and equipment required to furnish and deliver, upon request, varying quantities of Triploid Grass Carp to 
various locations throughout Broward County as defined herein. A typical delivery may consist of 500 to 
1,000 Triploid Grass Carp per tank transported to 1 to 20 sites in a day. Unit prices quoted are inclusive of 
all costs. 

DESCRIPTION Com(!l~? Comments 

Triploid Grass Carp: YES NO 

1. Only Live, Certified 100% Triploid Grass Carp can be 
supplied on this contract; Certified by the Florida Fish and w 0 
Wildlife Conservation Commission. 

2. Size: Minimum 10 inches, Maximum 12 inches. ~ 0 

3. Contractor shall subject Triploid Grass Carp to a w D 
treatment for control of ecto-parasites prior to delivery. 

4. Delivery shall be in lots of no more than 1,000 each [9-'" 0 
unless agreed upon by the Water Management Division. 

5. Delivery shall be to all locations requested by the Water 1.5 0 
Management Division at quantities ranging from one (1) 
to 1,000 for each location. 

6. Contractor shall remove the Triploid Grass Carp from 
tanks in nets and place in the water until movement of w 0 
the Triploid Grass Carp is confirmed. 

7. Contractor shall use the following treatments and 
specifications for transporting Triploid Grass Carp: 

a. 41bs NaC11100 gallon water. [3" 0 

b. Add CaC12 and MG S04 if total hardness is less 
than 150 ppm to bring up total hardness up to 150 [g" 0 
ppm. 

C. Transport shall not have less than 8 ppm of DO and 8' 0 
not more than 12 ppm. 

8. Triploid Grass Carp shall be tempered prior to 
introduction to a water body by following the following cg... 0 
tempering schedule: 
0-5 Degrees Fahrenheit for 20 Minutes 
5-10 Degrees Fahrenheit for 30 minutes 
10-20 degrees Fahrenheit for 45 Minutes 
20-25 Degrees Fahrenheit for 90-120 Minutes 

Quotation Form 103-29 (Rev. 12/30/2013) Page 12 of 17 

Agenda Package 97



QUOTATION NO Y1227120Q1 . 
DESCRIPTION Com Ill~? Comments 

9. Conditions where no other species of fish are dying within 
a body of water that has recently been stocked with live ~ D 
triploid grass carp, then these carp will be warranted 
against mortality for a period of thirty (30) days after the 
stocking. 

10. Contractor (supplier) must have a current Triploid Grass 5r D 
Carp Permit to possess and raise Triploid Grass Carp 
from the Florida Fish and Wildlife Conservation 
Commission at the time of Quote submittal. 

REMAINDER OF PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK. 

Quotation Form 103-29 (Rev. 12/30/2013) Page 13 of 17 

Agenda Package 98



QUOTATION NO. Y1227120Q1 

ATTACHMENT "B" 
VENDORS LIST (NON-CERTIFIED SUBCONTRACTORS AND SUPPLIERS INFORMATION) 

This fonn should be submitted with the bid; if not submitted with bid, it must be submitted within three 
(3) business days of request from the County. Provide the following information for any non-certified 
subcontractors and major material suppliers to the Contractor for this solicitation. If none, state "none" on this 
form. Information included in this form is subject to verification by Broward County. Use additional sheets as 
needed. 

1. Subcontracted Firm's Name: __ N.~.....::~u.o~Y\.:~..::C:..=-------------------------

Subcontracted Firm's Address: -----------------------------

Subcontracted Firm's Telephone Number: 

Contact Person's Name and Position: ---------------------------

Contact Person's E-Mail Address: ----------------------------

Estimated SubcontracUSupplies Contract Amount:-----------------------

Type of Work/Supplies Provided: 

2. Subcontracted Firm's Name: -----------------------------

Subcontracted Firm's Address: -----------------------------

Subcontracted Firm's Telephone Number: 

Contact Person's Name and Position: ---------------------------

Estimated SubcontracUSupplies Contract Amount:-----------------------

Type of Work/Supplies Provided: 

3. Subcontracted Firm's Name: -----------------------------

Subcontracted Firm's Address: -----------------------------

Subcontracted Firm's Telephone Number: 

Contact Person's Name and Position: ---------------------------

Contact Person's E-Mail Address: ----------------------------

Estimated SubcontracUSupplies Contract Amount:-----------------------

Type of Work/Supplies Provided: 

I certify that the infonnation submitted in this report is in fact true and correct to the best of my knowledge. 

Signature 
P+c--e.:;;.. I ~=tA.' . £-\.:. "'-: ~ ~.-!,.L. r-.... ~::.."I:i==..,!o::::-=~-=----......:?:::...-_T't_:_·--'-'*...l.---

Titlef Firm Name ., Date 

Quotation Form 103-29 (Rev. 12/30/2013) Page 14 of 17 

Agenda Package 99



QUOTATION NO. Y1227120Q1 
ATTACHMENT "C" 

SELF-CERTIFICATION- OWNER ETHNICITY/GENDER (OPTIONAL) 

The information requested is voluntary and not a requirement to respond to a Broward County solicitation. 
However, in the event that your company becomes the recommend vendor for award, this information will be 
required prior to award. Recommended vendor for award must submit within three business days of County's 
request. 

In order for the County to ensure that all prospective vendors have an equal opportunity to participate in 
County procurements, the following information is requested regarding each prospective vendor. Please read 
the following and determine which is applicable. 

The following gender:.!p_glies to the primary owner of firm: 
D Female lJrMale D Equally-Owned (Female and Male) 

The following ethnicity applies to the primary owner of firm: 
D African American/Black/Afro-Caribbean D Native American 
D ~ian Pacific D Subcontinent Asian 
~aucasian/White D Other 
D Hispanic/Latina 

Under penalties of perjury, I declare that I have read the foregoing document and that the facts stated 
in it are true. 

-~9f-.<...~,~~~ 

(Vendor signature) 

STATE OF £/Ht 'o/0. 
COUNTY o6tl k£1&(__ 

QC:.)'.A U:. \) . s '""' '( . Pw:.:o 
(Print Vendor Name) 

1 

~foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this 'J.__d~y of ?'7:7 a-.,....e-/"'(' , 20L:${by 

Ko !OrJ ~ I ..<' as ____:.72...¥::;..j,/L~~U=/S__;-;.__ ________ of 
Nam or p~ who's gnature is being notarized) (Title) 

. .1/r -?-{ /il/f'.RJ1:.1 · n..to me to be the person described herein, or who produced 
~(Name of Corporation/Company) 

/"'( .KtJ L11J /C) as identification, and who did/did not take an oath. 
(Type of Identification) - . ..-.... --.. 

~' LAURA R 81Y~0;JRANT 
f,.: ~-\ Commissbn it ::E ;on37 
- • : : Expires Au~·1s; 29, 2015 

• Bonded Thru Troy F.;. b'ltllance 8Q0..18&.7019 

Quotation Form 103-29 (Rev. 12/30/2013) Page 15 of 17 

Agenda Package 100



Digitally signed by 
FRANCISCO VASQUEZ 
Date: 2014.04.01 
15:20:42 -04'00'

Agenda Package 101



CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE 
THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. 

THIS CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AMEND, EXTEND ORAL TEA THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES LISTED BELOW. 

FLORIDA FARM BUREAU INSURANCE COMPANIES COMPANIES AFFORDING COVERAGES: 

P.O. BOX 147030 
Company 
Letter A: -

GAINESVILLE, FLORIDA 32614·7030 Florida Farm Bureau General Ins. Co. 

Company 
NAME AND ADDRESS OF INSURED: Letter B: -
RONALD D SLAY Florida Farm Bureau Casualty Ins. Co. 
&/OR FLORIDA FISH FARMS INC 
9684 COUNTY ROAD 705 

CENTER HILL, FL 33514-4722 

The policies of insurance listed below have been issued to the insured named above and are in force at this time. Notwithstanding any requirement, term or 
condition of any contract or other document with respect to which this certificate may be issued or may pertain, the insurance afforded by the policies 
described herein is subject to all the terms, exclusions and conditions of such policies. 

co. 
LTR 

A 

TYPE OF INSURANCE 

ALL OWNED AUTOS 

POLICY NUMBER 

CPP 9502266 2 

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS/LOCATIONS/VEHICLES: 

SEE FORM CG 20 10 10 93 

POLICY EFFECTIVE 
DATE (MM/DD/YY) 

POLICY EXPIRATION 
DATE (MM/DD/YY) 

BODILY 
INJURY (Per $ 
Person) 

BODILY 
INJURY \Per 
Accident 

$ 

CANCELLATION: Should any of the above described policies be cancelled before the expiration date thereof, the issuing company will endeavor to 
mail 1 0 days written notice to the below named certificate holder, but failure to mail such notice shall impose no obligation or liability of any kind 
upon the company. 

NAME AND ADDRESS OF CERTIFICATE HOLDER: 

BROWARD COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY 
COMMISSIONERS, PURCHASING DIVISION 
ATTN: BARBARA RAFFONE 
115 S ANDREWS AVE 
FORT LAUDERDALE FL 33301-1818 

County Code_....;6:::...:<..0 _-..:::0 __ Date Issued _ ____;0~6:::...L../.=2...:.7J../-=2::...;0~1=3 __ 

Serviced by SUMTER County Farm Bureau 

MARK A PETERSON 
AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE 

W42 93-7-692 (Rev. 5/93) 

Agenda Package 102



Bf\HWARD 
COUNTY 

FLORIDA 

Finance and Administration Sew ices Depar1ment 
PURCHASING DIVISION 

QUOTATION NO. Y1227120Q1 

115 S. Andrews Averue, Room 212, Fort Lauderdale. Florida 33301 1954-357-6)66 I FAX 954-357-8535 I browad.~UICha5i!g 
Hours of Operation: Mo~1hroLVh FridayS:~ a.m. to 5:00p.m. 

ATTENTION 

Dear Vendor: 

Thank you for your interest in doing business with Broward County. We look forward to 
a very successful procurement process. 

Please take notice of the response submittal requirements outlined in this solicitation. 
Read and follow the instructions very carefully, as any misinterpretation or failure to 
comply with instructions could lead to your submittal being rejected. Any change(s) to 
this solicitation will be conveyed through the written addenda process. Notifications of 
addenda are sent electronically to vendors registered under the applicable commodity 
codes at the time the original solicitation was created. In addition, all addenda are 
posted on the Purchasing Division's website, VWJW.broward.org/purchasing which can 
be accessed by selecting Current Solicitations. Please read carefully and follow all 
instructions provided on the addendum, as well as the instructions provided in the 
original solicitation. It is the responsibility of all potential vendors to monitor the 
Purchasing Division's website for any changing infonnation prior to submitting 
their reply. 

It is the intent of the Purchasing Division to provide quality services. If you have any 
questions, please visit our website to view the information provided on "How to Do 
Business with Broward County- A Vendor's Guide," or feel free to contact the agent of 
concern. Again, thank you for your continued interest in doing business with Broward 
County. 

Sincerely, 

Brenda J. Billingsley, Director 
Broward County Purchasing Division 

Quotation Form 103-29 (Rev. 12/30/2013) Page 17 of 17 

Agenda Package 103



Page 1 of 3 STANDARD QUOTATION REQUEST TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

ALL QUOTATIONS ARE SUBJECT TO THE FOLLOWING TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

DEFINITIONS • The Board of County Commissioners is hereinafter referred to as ''the Board". The Director of Purchasing is hereinafter referred to as "the Director." This 
Quotation Request implies no obligation on the part of the Broward County Purchasing Division. The Director reserves the right to reject any or all quotations, or to 
accept any part of any quotation and reject the other part if in his or her opinion such action would be in the best interest of the Board. 

Upon acceptance of this quotation by the County, the terms of the quotation shall apply to all orders issued as a result of such acceptance. The Vendor agrees that the 
provisions included within this quotation form shall prevail over any conflicting provision within any standard form contract of the Vendor regardless of any language in 
Vendor's contract to the contrary. Any order resulting from this quotation will be subject to the following express conditions and agreements on the part of the successful 
Vendor. 

• DO NOT INCLUDE MORE THAN ONE QUOTE PER ENVELOPE -

1. VENDOR: 
a. EXECUTION OF QUOTE: A. Quote must contain the signature of an individual 

authorized to bind the quoter. Quote must be typed or printed in ink. The ink should be blue 
ink. All corrections made by quoter to their quote must also be initialed. The Vendor' s 
company name should also appear on each page of the quote sheet W required. B. No award 
will be made to a quoter who is delinquent in payment of any taxes, fees, fines. contractual 
debts, judgments, or any other debts due and owed to the County, or is in defaun on any 
contractual or regulatory obligation to the County. By signing and submitting this quote, 
quoter attests that it is not delinquent in payment of any taxes, fees, fines, contractual debts, 
judgments or any other debts due and owed to the County, nor is it in default on any 
contractual or regulatory obligation to the County. In the event the quote(s statement is 
discovered to be false, quoter will be subject to debarment and the County may terminate any 
contract it has with quater. C. Quoter certifies by signing the quote that no principals or 
corporate officers of the firm were principals or corporate officers in any other firm which may 
be presenUy suspended or debarred from doing business with Broward County, unless so 
noted in the quote documents. D. By signing this quote, quoter attests that any and all 
statements, oral, written or otherwise, made in support of this quote, are accurate, true and 
correct. Quoter acknowiedges that inaccurate, untruthful, or incomect statements made in 
support of this quote may be used by the County as a basis for rejection of this quote. 
rescission of the award. or termination of the contract acknowiedges that the termination of 
the contract because of a determination of an inaccurate, untruthful, or incorrect statement 
made in support of this quote may also serve as the basis for debarment of quoter pursuant 
to Section 21-119 of the Broward County Administrative Code. 

b. PRICING - Vendor shall insert unit price and extension against each item. In 
the event of a discrepancy between the untt price and the extension Group and/or Total, the 
unit price will govern. 

c. The vendor, in submitting this quotation certifies that the prices quoted herein 
are not higher than the prices at which the same ttem(s) or seiVice(s) is sold in approximately 
similar quantities under similar terms and conditions to any purchaser whornsoe-. 

d. DISCOUNTS - Vendor may offer a cash disoount for prompt payment. 
However, such discounts wiN not be consi- in determining the lowest net cost for quote 
evaluation purposes. Vendor should reflect any disoounts to be ~ in the quote 
evaluation in the untt price quoted. Payment discounts should be for a peliod of at least 30 
calendar days. 

e. UNBALANCED QUOTATIONS- A group quote, showing evidence of obviously 
unbalanced quoting, may be deciared unacceptable and rejected. 

F.O.B. DELIVERY POINT - All prices quoted must be F.O.B. delivery point, 
unloaded inside and assembled unless otherwise indicated. Vendor must indicate F.O.B 
point and approXimate shipping cost, end method of shipment W quoting other than delivery 
to destination. TiUe and risk of loss or damage to all tterns shall be the responsibility of the 
contractor until accepted by the County. 

g. TAXES - Broward County is eXOO>pt from Federal Excise and Florida Sates taxes 
on direct purchase of tangible property. Exemption numbers appear on the purchase order 
The Contractor shall pay all applicable sales, consumer, land use, or other similar taxes 
required by law. The Contractor is responsible for reviewing the pertinent State Statutes 
involving the sales tax and complying with all requirements. 

h. OR "EQUAL • QUOTING - Unless otherwise stated, when a standard is used 
it indicates character and quality of the article and the Vendor may offer an equal subject to 
approval by the Director. If vendor fails to name a substitute, he or she will be required to 
furnish the standard specified. 

i. Quotations to be considered shall be received no later than the day stated. 
Quotations sent by Email/fax/mail are sent at the risk of the vendor. 

j. Quotation Requests will not be accepted from vendor in arrears to the Board 
upon debt or contract nor from a defaulter upon obligations to the Board. 

k. TIE QUOTES - The award on tie quotes will be decided by the Director in 
accordance with the provisions of the Procurement Code. 

MISTAKES - Quoters are cautioned to examine all specifications, drawings, 
delivery instructions, unit prices, extensions and all other special conditions pertaining to the 
quote. Failure of the quoter to examine all pertinent documents shall not entitle them to any 
relief from the conditions imposed in the contract. In case of mistakes in extension, the unit 
price shall govern. Multiplication or addition errors are deemed clerical errors and shall be 
corrected by the County. 

2. INTERPRETATIONS: Any questions concerning conditions and specifications of this 
quote shall be directed in writing to the Punchasing Division a minimum of 24 hours prior to 
quote opening. No interpretation(s) shall be considered binding unless provided to all Quoters 
in writing by the Director of Purchasing. 

3. SAMPLES: Samples, or drawings requined shall be delivened free of charge as 
requested. ~not mutilated or destroyed in the examination, Vendor will be notified to remove 
same at their expense. If samples ara not removed within thirty (30) calendar days after 

Quotation Request-Tenns & Conditions 1·33 
Revised 0111712013 

written notice to the Vendor, they shall be considened as abandoned and the County shall 
have the right to dispose of them as tts own property. 

4. AWARDS: 
a. ~a specific basis of award is not established in the Quotation Request, the award shall 

be to the responsible Vendor with the lowest responsive quote meeting the written specifications. 

b. As the best interest of the County may require, the right is reserved to make award(s) 
by individual commodities or services, group of commodities or services, all or none or any 
combination thereof. When a group is specified, all items within the group must be quoted. A 
vendor desiring to quote "No Charge" on an item in a group must so indicate; otherwise the quote 
for the group will be construed as incomplete and may be rejected. However, d all vendors do not 
quote all items within a group, the County reserves the right to award on an ttem by item basis. 

c. The Director reserves the right, in accordance with the Procurement Code, to waive 
any informaltties, technicaltties, and irregularities, or to reject any or all quotations, or any part of any 
quotations, and accept the quotations deemed most advantageous and in the best interest of the 
County. 

5. TIME FOR PERFORMANCE: In all instances when the Quotation Request fails to state the 
time within which performance is to be completed and the vendor fails to state a time, the time for 
full and complete performance shall be twenty (20) calendar days from date of purchase order. 
Delivery time will be computed in calendar days from the date on the order. 

6. DEUVERY: 
a. INSPECTION shall be made at the point of delivery unless otherwise specified. 

b. CONTAINERS AND REELS -All containers and reels shall become the property of the 
Board unless otherwise specified. 

c. DELIVERY HOURS - Delivery shall be made between 9 A.M. and 4 P.M. Monday 
through Friday except holidays and at other times by special arrangements. 

d. MARKING - Each container or multiple untts. or ~ems otherwise packaged shall bear a 
label, imprint, stencil or other legible markings stating name of manufacturer or supplier, Purchase 
Order Number and any other mar1<ings required by spe<:ificalions or other acceptable means of 
identifying Vendor and Purchase Onder Number. The goods must be surtably packed for shipment 
by common carrier. 

e. NEW MERCHANDISE - Unless otherwise stated in the quotation, deliveries must 
consist only of new and unused merchandise and shall be the current standard production model 
available at the time of quote. 

f. DELIVERY TIME - DeHvery time shan be computed in calendar days from the 
issuance date of purchase order. Although, actual requested date or number of calendar days for 
delivery may be specified, state number of calendar days required to make delivery and installation 
after issuance of purchase order or request for seiVices in space provided. However goods required 
for daily consumption, or where the delivery is en emergency, a replacement. or is overdue, the 
convenience of the Division shall govern. ~. in calculating the number of calendar days from the 
order date, the delivery date falls on a Saturday, Sunday or holiday, delivery shall be made no later 
than next succeeding business day. Delivery time may be considened in determining award. 

7. DELAYS/NON-DELIVERY/REJECTIONS: 
a. VENDOR' S FAULT- ~the vendor fails to make delivery within the time specified or W 

the delivery is rejected, the Director may obtain such commodities or any part thereof from other 
sources in the open market or on contract. Additional costs incurred and/or liquidated damages 
may become charges against the Vendor. 

b. BEYOND VENDOR' S CONTROL - When, due to causes beyond the Vendor' s 
control, the vendor fails to make delivery, or delivery is rejected, the Director may allow additional 
time or may obtain the supplies elsewhere without liability on the part of the Vendor to the Board or 
the Board to the Vendor. 

c. REJECTED MERCHANDISE -The Director may withhold acceptance of, or reject any 
goods which are found, upon examination, not to meet the specification requirements. Upon written 
notification of rejection, goods shall be removed within five (5) calendar days by the Vendor. 
Rejected goods left longer than thirty (30) calendar days will be regarded as abandoned and the 
Board shall have the right to dispose of them as rts own property. On foodstuffs and drugs, no 
written notice or rejection need be given. Upon vernal notice to do so. the Vendor shall immediately 
remove and replace such rejected merchandise at the Vendor' s expense. Rejection for non
conformance, failure to provide services conforming to specifications, or failure to meet delivery 
schedules may result in contractor being found in default. 

B. PAYMENT AND COLLECTION OF CHARGES: Payment for all goods and services shall be 
made in a timely manner and in a<Xordance with Florida Statutes, Section 218.70, Florida Prompt 
Payment Ad and the Broward County Prompt Payment Ordinance (No. 89-49), as amended. All 
Applications for Payment shall be submitted to Broward County Accounting Division. Payment will 
be made by the County after commodities/services have been received, accepted and property 
invoiced as indicated in the contract and/or order. Invoices must bear the purchase order number 

Agenda Package 104



Page 2 of3 

STANDARD QUOTATION REQUEST TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

ALL QUOTATIONS ARE SUBJECT TO THE FOLLOWING TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

9. WARRANTIES AND GUARANTEES: The Vendor shall obtain all manufacturers' 
warranties and guarantees of all equipment and materials required by this quotation and any 
resunant orders in the name of the Board and shall deliver same to the point of delivery. 

10. EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY: No Contractor may discriminate on 
the basis of race, color, sex, religion, national origin, disability, age, marital status, political 
affiliation, sexual orientation, pregnancy, or gender identity and expression in the performance 
of this contract. Such actions shall include, but not be lim~ed to the following: employment, 
upgrading, demotion, or transfer, reauitment or reauitment advertising, layoff or termination, 
rates of pay or other forms of compensation, and selaction of training, including 
apprenticeship. The Contractor agrees to post in conspicuous places available to employees 
and applicants for employment, notices setting forth the provisions of this non-<liscrimination 
dause. 

The contractor selected to perform wor1< on a County project must include the foregoing or 
similar language in its contracts with any subcontractors or sub consultants, except that any 
project assisted by U.S. Department of Transportation funds shall comply with the non
discrimination requirements in Ti~e 49 C.F.R. Parts 23 and 26, as amended. The 
Subcontractors, ~ any, will be made aware of and will comply with this nondiscrimination 
clause. Failure to comply with above requirements is a material breach of the contract, and 
may result in the termination of this contract or such other remedy as the County deems 
appropriate. 

11. SAFETY STANDARDS: Unless otherwise stipulated in the quote, all manufactured 
items and fabricated assemblies shall comply with applicable requirements of OcaJpational 
Safety and Heanh Act and any standards thereunder. In compliance with Chapter 442, Florida 
Statutes, any toxic substance listed in Section 38F-41.03 of the Florida Administrative Code 
delivered from an order resulting from this quote must be accompanied by a Material Safety 
Data Sheet (MSDS). A Material Safety Data Sheet (MSDS) should also be submitted to the 
Broward County Risk Management Division, 115 South Andrews Avenue, Room 210, Fort 
Lauderdale, Florida 33301-1803. The MSDS must include the following information. 

a. The chemical name and the common name of the toxic substance. 

b. The hazards or other risks in the use of the toxic substance, 
including: 
1. The potential for fire, explosion, corrosivity, and reacti~y; 

2. The known arute and chronic heaflh effects of risks from 
exposure, including the medical conditions which are generally recognized as being 
aggravated by exposure to the toxic substance; 

c The proper precautions, handling practices, necesSSI)' personal 
protective equipment and other .-y substances, including appropliate emergency treatment 
in case of owrexposure. 

d. The emergency procedure tor spills, fire, disposal, and first aid. 

e. A description in lay tenns of the known specific potential health 
risks posed by the toxic substance intended to alert any person reading this information. 

f. The year and month, if available, that the information was compiled 
and the name, address, and emergency telephone number of the manufacturer responsible for 
preparing the information. 

12. RESOLVE PROTESTED SOUCITATIONS AND PROPOSED AWARDS: In 
accordance with the Broward County Procurement Code, Sections 21.118 and 21.120 set forth 
procedural requirements that apply ~ a vendor intends to protest a solicitation or proposed 
award of a contract and state in part the following: 

a. Any protest concerning the solicilalion specifications or 
requirements must be made and received by the County within seven (7) business days from 
the posting of the solidtation or addendum on the Purchasing Division' s _e_ Such 
protest must be made in writing to the Purchasing Director. Failure to timely protest the 
spedfications or requirements is a waiver of the ability to protest. 

b. Any actual or prospectiw vendor or offeror who has a substantial 
interest in and is aggrieved in connectiOn with the proposed award of a contract which does 
not exceed the amount of the award authority of the Director of Punchasing, may protest to the 
Director of Punchasing. The protest shall be submmed in writing and received within three (3) 
business days from the posting of the recommendation at award on the Punchasing Division's 
web~e. 

c. For purposes a/this section, a business day is defined as Moriday 
through Friday between 8:30a.m. and 5:00p.m. Failure to timely file a protest within the time 
prescribed for a solidtation or proposed contract award shall be a waiver of the vendo~s right 
to protest. 

d. As a condition of initiating any protest, the protestor shall present 
the Director of Purchasing with a nonrefundable filing fee for the purposes of defraying the 
costs in administering the protest payable in accordance with the schedule provided below: 

Estimated Contract Amount Filing Fee 
$ 30,000 to $250,000 $ 500 
$250,001-$500,000 $1,000 
$500,001 - $5 m~fion $3,000 
Oller$5 mNiion $5,000 

The estimated contract amount shaH be based upon the contract quote amount Slbmmed by 
the protestor. If no contract quote amount was submitted, the estimated contract amount shall 
be the County' s estimated contract price for the project. The County may accept cash, 

Quotation R~-Terms & ~ 1-33 
Revised 01/1712013 

money order, certified check, or cashier' s check, payable to Broward County Board of 
County Commissioners. 

13. QUOTE WITHDRAWAL: No Vendor may withdraw their quote before the expiration of 
one hundred and twenty (120) days from the date of the quote. Any quote submitted which 
alters the one hundred and twenty (120) day requirement shall be deemed non-responsive. 

14. ADDENDA TO QUOTE: Broward County reserves the right to amend this soli~ation 
prior to the quote opening date indicated. Only written addenda will be binding. 

15. TERMINATION: 

a. AVAILABIL TV OF FUNDS: If the term of this contract extends beyond a single 
fiscal year of the County, the continuation of this Contract beyond the end of any fiscal year 
shall be subject to the availability of funds from the County in accordance with Chapter 129, 
Florida Statutes. The Broward County Board of County Commissioners shall be the final 
authority as to availability of funds and how such available funds are to be allotted and 
expended. In the event funds for this project/purchase are not made available or othe!Wise 
allocated Broward County may terminate this contract upon thirty (30) days prior written notice 
to the Contractor. 

b. NON PERFORMANCE: The Contract may be terminated for cause by the 
Awarding Authority for the County ~the party in breach has not corrected the breach within ten 
(10) days after written notice from the aggrieved party identifying the breach. Cause for 
termination shall include, but not be limited to, failure to suitably perform the wor1<, failure to 
suitably deliver goods in accordance with the specifications and instructions in the Quote, 
failure to continuously perform the wor1< in a manner calculated to meet or accomplish the 
objectives of the County as set forth in this Quote, or muniple breach of the provisions of this 
Quote notwithstanding whether any such breach was previously waived or cured. 

c. TERMINATION FOR CONVENIENCE: The Awarding Authority may terminate 
the Contract for convenience upon no less than thirty (30) days written notice. In the event the 
Contract is terminated for convenience, Quoter shall be paid for any goods property delivered 
and services property performed to the date the Contract is terminated; however, upon being 
notified of County' s election to terminate, Quoter shall cease any deliveries, shipment or 
carriage of goods, and retrain from performing further services or incurring additional expenses 
under the terms of the Contract. In no ewnt will payment be made for lost or future profits. 
Quoter acknowledges and agrees that ten dollars ($10.00) of the compensation to be paid by 
County, the adequacy of which is hereby acknowledged by Quoter, is given as spedfic 
consideration to Quoter tor the County' s right to tenninate this Contract. 

16. CONlRACT EXPIRATION: In the event services are scheduled to end because of the 
expiration of this contract, the contractor shal continue the service upon the request of the 
Director. The extension period shall not extand for more than ninety (90) days beyond the 
expiration date of the existing contract. The contractor shall be compensated for the service at 
the rate in effect when this extension clause is invoked by the County. 

17. GOVERNMENTAL RESTRICTIONS: In the event any governmental restrictions may 
be imposed which would ne~e Bneration of the material quality, wor1<manship or 
performance of the ~ems offered on this quote prior to their delivery, it shall be the 
responsibility of the successful wndor to notify the County at once, indicating in a letter the 
spedfic regulation which required an _ration_ The Board of County Commissioners reserves 
the right to accept any such Bneration, indu<ing any price adjustments occasioned thereby, or 
to cancel the contract at no further expense to the County. 

18. LEGAL REQUIREMENTS: Applicable provisions of all Federal, State, County and local 
laws, and of all ordinance, rules and regulations including the Procurement Code of Broward 
County shall govern development, submittal and evaluation at quotes received in response 
hereto and shall Q01191T1 any and all claims and disputes which may arise between person(s) 
submitting a quote in response hereto and Broward County by and through its officers, 
employees and authorized representatiw or any other person natural or othe!Wise. Lack of 
knowledge by any Vendor shall not constitute a recognizable defense against the legal effect 
thereof 

19. PATENTS AND ROYALTIES: The Quoter, without exception, shall indemnify and save 
harmless and defend the County, ~officers, agents and emplOyees from liability of any nature 
or kind, including but not limited to anorney' s fees, costs and expenses for or on account of 
any copyrighted, patented or unpatented invention, process, or article manufactured or used in 
the performance of the contract, including its use by the County. If the Quoter uses any 
dlesign, device, or materials coll9red by letters, patent or copyright, tt is mutually agreed and 
understood without exception that the quote prices shall include all royalties or cost arising 
from the use of such design, device, or materials in any way involved in the work. This 
provision shall survive the expiration or earlier termination of the contract. 

20. ASSIGNMENT, SUBCONTRACT: Contractor shall not transfer, convey, pledge, 
subcontract or assign the performance required by this quote without the prior written consent 
of the Director. Any Award issued pursuant to this quotation request and the monies which 
may become due hereunder are not assignable, transferable, or othe!Wise disposable except 
with the prior written consent of the Director. 

21. QUAUACATIONS OF QUOTER: Quotes will be considered only from firms normally 
engaged in providing the types of commodities/services spedfied herein. The Director of 
Purchasing or the Board of County Commissioners, reserves the right to inspect the facil~ies, 
equipment, personnel and organization or to take any other action necessary to determine 
ability to perform in accordance with spedfications, terms and conditions. The Director of 
Punchasing or the Board of County Commissioners wiH detennine whether the evidence of 
ability to perform is satisfactory and reserves the right to reject quotess where evidence or 
evaluation is detennined to indicate onability to perform. The Director of Punchasing or the 
Board of County Commissioners reserll9s the right to consider a quoter's history of citations 

Agenda Package 105



Page 3 of3 

STANDARD QUOTATION REQUEST TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

ALL QUOTATIONS ARE SUBJECT TO THE FOLLOWING TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

and/or violations of Environmental regulations in detennining responsibility. Quoter should 
submit with his proposal a complete history of all Citations and/or violations notices and 
dispositions thereof. Failure of a Quoter to submit such information may be grounds for 
termination of any contract awarded to successful Quoter. Quoter shall notify the County 
immediately of notice of any citations or violations which they may receive after the Quote or 
Proposal opening date and during the lime of performance under any Contract awarded to 
them. 

22. NOTICE TO SELLER TO DEUVER: No delivery shall become due or be acceptable 
without a written order of shipping instruction by the County, unless otherwise provided in the 
Contract. Such order will contain the quantity, time of delivery and other pertinent data. 
However, on items urgenUy requined, the seller may be given telephone notice, to be confirmed 
by an order in writing. 

23. MODIFICATIONS: All changes to purchase orders shall be by issuance of a change 
order. Any modWications or changes to any contract entered into as a result of this quote must 
be by written amendment with the same formal~y and of equal dignity prior to the initiation of 
any such change. 

24 PUBUC ENTITY CRIMES ACT: Vendor represents that its response to this Quotation 
will not violate the Public Entity Crimes Act, Section 287.133, Florida Statutes, which 
essentially provides that a person or affiliate who is a contrector, consultant or other provider 
who has been placed on the convicted vendor list following a conviction of a Public Entity 
Crime may not submit a quote on a contrect to provide any goods or services to the County, 
may not subm~ a quote on a contrect with the County for the construction or repair of a public 
building or public work, may not subm~ quotes on leases of real property to the County, may 
not be awarded or perform work as a contractor supplier, subcontractor, or consultant under a 
contiract with the County, and may not transact any business with the County in excess of the 
threshold amount provided in Section 287.017, Florida Statutes, for category two purchases for 
a period of 36 months from the date of being placed on the convicted vendor list. Vendor 
represents that its response to this Quotation is not a violation of Section 287.134, Florida 
Statutes, which essentially states that the County, as a public entity, cannot do business with 
an entity that is on the "discriminatory vendor list" i.e., has been found by a court to have 
discriminated as defined therein. Violation of this section shall result in cancellation of the 
County purchase and may result in debarment. 

25. PURCHASE BY OTHER GOVERNMENTAL AGENCIES: Each governmental un~ 
which avails ~self of this contiract will establish ~s own contract, place its own orders, issue its 
own purchase orders, be invoiced therefrom and make its own payments and issue its own 
exemption certificates as required by the Vendor. It is understood and agreed that Broward 
County is not a legally binding party to any contractual agreement made between any other 
governmental unit and the Vendor as a result of this quote. 

26. PUBUC RECORDS: Any material submitted in response to this Quotation Request will 
become a public document pursuant to Section 119.071, Florida Statutes. This indudes 
material which the responding quoter might consider to be confidential or a trade secret. Any 
daim of confidentially is waived upon submission, effective after opening pursuant to Section 
119.071, Florida Statutes. 

27. INDEMNIFICATION: CONTRACTOR shall at all times hereafter indemnify, hold 
harmless and, defend COUNTY, its officers, agents, servants, and employees from and 
against any and all causes of action, demands, daims, losses, liabilities and expend~ures of 
any kind, induding attorney fees, court costs, and expenses, caused or alleged to be caused 
by intentional or negligent act of, or omission of, CONTRACTOR, its employees, agents, 
servants, or officers, or accruing, resulting from, or related to the subject matter of this 
Agreement induding, without limitation, any and all claims, losses, liabilities, expenditures, 
demands or causes of action of any nature wihatsoever resulting from injuries or damages 
sustained by any person or property. In the event any lawsuit or other proceeding is brought 
against COUNTY by reason of any such claim, cause of action or demand, CONTRACTOR 
shall, upon written notice from COUNTY, resist and defend such lawsu~ or proceeding by 
counsel satisfactory to COUNTY or, at COUNTY' s option, pay for an attorney selected by 
County Attorney to defend COUNTY. To the extent considened necessary by the Contiract 
Administrator and the County Attorney, any sums due CONTRACTOR under this Agreement 
may be retained by COUNTY until all of COUNTY's claims for indemnification pursuant to this 
Agreement have been settled or otherwise resolved; and any amount withheld shall not be 
subject to payment of interest by COUNTY. The provisions and obligations of this section shall 
survive the expiration or ea~ier termination of this Agreement. 

28. NOTICE: Written notice provided pursuant to this Contract shall be sent by certified 
United States Mail, postage prepaid, return receipt requested, or by hand-<lelivery with a 
request for a written receipt of acknowiedgment of delivery, addressed to the party for whom it 
is intended at the place last specified. The place for giving notice shall remain the same as set 
forth herein until changed in writing in the manner provided in this section. For the present, the 
County designates: 

Director, Broward County Purchasing Division 
115 S. Andrews Avenue, Room 212 
Fort Lauderdale, FL 33301-1801 

Quoter shall identify in the quote a designated person and address to whom notice shall be 
sent when required by the Contract. 

29. JURISDICTION, VENUE, WAIVER OF JURY TRIAL: The Contiract shall be interpreted 
and construed in accordance with and governed by the laws of the State of Florida. Any 
controversies or legal disputes arising out of the Contract and any action involving the 
enforcement or interpretation of any rights hereunder shall be submitted to the jurisdiction of 
the State courts of the Seventeenth JudiCial Circuit of Broward County, Florida, the venue 
sites, and shall be governed by the laws of the State of Florida. By entering into this Contiract, 

Quotation Request-Terms & Conditions 1-33 
Revised 0111712013 

quoter and County hereby expressly waive any rights either party may have to a trial by jury of 
any Civil litigation related to this Contract. 

30. BATIERY DISPOSAL: In accordance with Florida 1993 Solid Waste Act, the 
manufacturers of heavy metal batteries or the manufacturers of products powered by such 
batteries are solely responsible for the reclamation and disposal of such used batteries as 
purchased by the County. The County shall not be held liable for any cost assoCiated with the 
reclamation and disposal of such batteries. 

31. OWNERSHIP OF DOCUMENTS: All finished or unfinished documents, data, studies, 
surveys, drawings, maps, models, photographs, specifications and reports prepaned or 
provided by CONSULTANT in connection with this Agreement shall become the property of 
COUNTY, whether the Project for which they are made is completed or not, and shall be 
delivened by CONSULTANT to Contract Administirator ~hin fifteen (15) days of the receipt of 
the written notice of termination. If applicable, COUNTY may withhold any payments then due 
to CONSULTANT until CONSULTANT complies with the provisions of this section. 

32. AUDIT RIGHT AND RETENTION OF RECORDS: COUNTY shall have the right to 
audit the books, records and accounts of CONTRACTOR that are related to this Project. 
CONTRACTOR shall keep such books, records, and accounts as may be necessary in order 
to record complete and conrect entries related to the Project. CONTRACTOR shall preserve 
and make available, at reasonable times for examination and audit by COUNTY, all finanCial 
records, supporting documents, statistical records, and any other documents pertinent to Uhis 
Agreement for the requined retention period of the Florida Public Records Act (Chapter 119, 
Fla. Stat.), W applicable, or, if tihe Florida Public Records Act is not applicable, for a minimum 
period of tihree (3) years after termination of this Agreement ~any audit has been inttiated and 
audit findings have not been resolved at the end of the retention period or three (3) years, 
whichever is longer, the books, records, and accounts shall be retained until resolution of the 
audit findings. If the Florida Public Records Act is determined by COUNTY to be applicable to 
CONTRACTOR's records, CONTRACTOR shall comply with all requirements thereof; 
however, no confidentiality or non-<lisclosure requirement of either federal or state law shall be 
violated by CONTRACTOR. Any incomplete or incorrect entry in such books, records, and 
accounts shall be a basis for COUNTY's disallowance and recovery of any payment upon such 
entry. 

33. STATE OF FLORIDA DIVISION OF CORPORATIONS REQUIREMENT: It is the 
vendor' s responsibility to comply with all state and local business requirements. All vendors 
located within Broward County and/or providing a service within the County must have a 
current Broward County Local Business Tax Receipt (forme~y known as an Occupational 
License Tax). All corporations and partnerships must have the authority to transact business in 
the State of Florida and be in good standing with the Florida Secretary of State. For further 
information, contact Broward County Records, Taxes and Treasury Division and the Florida 
Department of State, Division of Corporations 

The County will review the vendor' s business status based on the information provided in 
response to this solicitation. ~ the vendor is an out-of-state or foreign corporation or 
partnership, the vendor must obtain the authority to conduct business in the State of Florida. 
Corporations or partnerships tihat are not in good standing with the Florida Secretary of State 
at the time of a submission to this solicitation may be deemed non-responsible. 

If successful in obtaining a contract award under this soliCitation, the vendor must remain in 
good standing throughout the contractual period of performance. 

Agenda Package 106



 
 
FINANCE AND ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES DEPARTMENT 
PURCHASING DIVISION 

115 S. Andrews Avenue, Room 212 • Fort Lauderdale, Florida 33301 

FLORIDA FISH FARMS INC

We hereby accept your written offer to renew the above referenced contract.

Attn: RONALD D. SLAY

Email: ronslay@sum.net

Reference: Contract No. Y1227120Q1, Triploid Grass Carp

This renewal is subject to all terms/conditions contained in the original contract.  This contract renewal is in 
effect for the period beginning 4/7/2016 and ending 4/6/2017.

A copy of this notice is being forwarded to the appropriate User(s).  Purchase Order(s) will be placed as and 
when required.

Thank you for your interest in doing business with Broward County.

Sincerely,

By: ___________________________________________

August 12, 2015 Transmitted via Email

Dear RONALD D. SLAY:

cc:        Ellie O'Connell, Water & Wastewater Services

Amy Almanzar, Purchasing Agent III

 
Broward County Board of County Commissioners 

 

www.broward.org 

Agenda Package 107



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Ninth Order of Business 
  

Agenda Package 108



1/11/2018 
 

   
Project Field-2016-02 

Valve Exercise and Assessment Program 

 

 

Board of Supervisors, 

 

On December 10 and, December 17,  2015 the Coral Springs 

Improvement District published an invitation to bid for this project in the 

Sun Sentinel newspaper.  

 

We conducted a pre-bid meeting on January 5th 2016 three companies  

responded and attended the pre-bid meeting as mandated in the bid spec. The 

three companies submitted bids and the bid opening was held on 1/11/2016. 

 

The bid tabulation sheet is attached for your review. The lowest bid was 

submitted by Madsen/ Barr Corporation. Madsen/ Barr has done work as a 

subcontractor on projects for the District in the past and the responses from 

their references have been very complimentary. 

 

 We recommend award of the project to the Madsen/ Barr Corporation based 

on the low bid of $28,347.25 for this project. 

 

 

Sincerely, 

 

 

Curt Dwiggins  

C.S.I.D. Drainage Manager 

 

Agenda Package 109



Agenda Package 110



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Tenth Order of Business 
  

Agenda Package 111



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

10A. 
  

Agenda Package 112



Page 1 of 7 

WORK AUTHORIZATION 109 
NO.   GT-155105 

 

Pursuant to the provisions contained in the "Contract for Professional Engineering 

Consulting and Design-Build Services on a Continuing Contract Basis " between 

the CORAL SPRINGS IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT, hereinafter referred to as 

"OWNER", and  Globaltech, Inc., hereinafter referred to as "FIRM", dated July 1, 

2012  (hereinafter referred to as "AGREEMENT"), this Work Authorization, 

executed this          day of ____________ 2016, authorizes the FIRM to provide 

services under the terms and conditions set forth herein and in the AGREEMENT, 

which is incorporated herein by reference as though set forth in full. 

 

The OWNER desires engineering design services related to Wastewater 

Treatment Plant (WWTP) Blower Study, hereinafter referred to as the “Specific 

Project”. 

 

Section 1 – Terms 
The FIRM shall be defined as an individual, corporation or contractor having 

a direct contract with the OWNER or with any other subcontractor in the 

performance of a part of the work contracted for under the terms of this 

Work Authorization with the OWNER. 

 
Section 2 – Scope of Work 

The FIRM will provide the following services in accordance with the 

AGREEMENT: 

 
The blowers at the WWTP feed the aeration basins and the digesters.  All 

of the blowers are constant-speed blowers that are controlled via manual 

discharge-side valves.  Several of the blowers are aging and should be 

replaced soon.   Aeration energy costs can account for up to 60% of the 

energy costs at a WWTP and the OWNER is interested in evaluating new 

Agenda Package 113



Page 2 of 7 

blower options to reduce energy costs and have better control over their 

aeration processes.     

 

The OWNER has recently installed real-time on-line dissolved oxygen 

analyzers in several of their basins but all of the blowers and aeration 

control valves are manually operated.  The OWNER would like the ability to 

automatically adjust the air feed based the actual on-line field 

measurements    

 

Lastly, it is not possible to accurately control the air flow into some of the 

facilities as some of the air piping is common to multiple facilities.  The 

OWNER would like to be able to accurately and independently control the 

air flow into each of the respective aeration basins and digesters. 

 

This Work Authorization is for preparation of a study to evaluate different 

blower options and aeration control options as well as develop air piping 

modification recommendations.  The study will include construction cost 

estimates for the new blowers, controls and air piping modifications as well 

as estimated energy costs savings.     

 

Task 1 – Engineering  
FIRM shall perform the following:   

1. Meet with the OWNER to discuss scope of project and collect 

information on the existing blowers, aeration controls and air piping 

configurations. 

2. Install a power data logger on the existing blowers.  The preliminary 

plan is collect electrical demand data for each blower for up to a week 

at a time.  Plant staff will assist with installation of the power data 

logger and will secure the electrical cabinets while the power data 

logger is collecting data.  The FIRM will collect and compile the 

electrical demand data from the power data logger. 

Agenda Package 114



Page 3 of 7 

3. Review the blower options; centrifugal, positive displacement, 

turbine, with or without variable frequency drives in relation to energy 

and other O&M costs, capital costs and controllability.  

4. Review the current aeration system controls and recommend control 

upgrades, in particular, in relation to automation and automatic-

control based on the existing on-line dissolved oxygen, or other, 

analyzers.    

5. Review the existing air piping configurations and make 

recommendations for improvements.   

6. Develop construction and O&M costs for the recommended 

improvements and compare them to the existing blower energy 

costs.  Develop a “pay-back” schedule based on anticipated energy 

savings. 

7. Prepare a Technical Memorandum (TM) summarizing the results of 

this study.  Submit five (5) draft copies of the TM to the OWNER for 

review.  Meet with the OWNER to review their comments.  

Incorporate the review comments into a final TM.  Submit five (5) 

copies of the TM to the OWNER.   

 

Assumptions 
 

Assumptions for the project are as follows: 

• OWNER shall provide access to the WWTP site. 

• OWNER will assist with installation of the power data logger into the 

electrical panels and will secure the panels while the power data logger 

is collecting information.  

• No drawings will be provided in the TM.  

  

Section 3 – Location 
The services to be performed by the FIRM shall be on the following site or 

sites: Wastewater Treatment Plant  

  

Agenda Package 115



Page 4 of 7 

Section 4 – Project Reference 

The OWNER desired services to be performed by the FIRM shall be 

referred to as the Wastewater Treatment Plant (WWTP) Blower Study. 

 

Section 5 – Deliverables 
The FIRM will provide the following Deliverables to OWNER: 

• Technical Memorandum. 

 

Section 6 - Time of Performance 
Project will commence after execution of this Work Authorization and a 

Notice to Proceed is issued by OWNER. The FIRM and OWNER agree to 

the following schedule: 

 

Task Time Elapsed to Subtask Completion 
Notice to Proceed (NTP) 0 Days 
Data Collection 60 Days following issuance of NTP 
Technical Memorandum 120 days after NTP 

 
 
Section 7 - Method and Amount of Compensation 

1. The FIRM shall be paid by the OWNER in accordance with the Florida’s 

Prompt Payment Act Florida Statute 218.70-79 and in accordance with the 

payment method as set forth in Section 6 of the AGREEMENT.  The 

calculations shall begin using the date the invoice was received.   

2. Total job price:  $20,390.00.  No allowance is included in the proposed fee.  
 

3. The cost for the above scope of services is a Lump Sum (LS).  The LS is 

based on the materials, methods and assumptions presented in e scope 

of services.  The LS shall not be greater than the stated amount unless 

there is an approved increase in the scope of services.   

 
4. A Budget Summary for the above LS is provided in Attachment A. 

 
 

Agenda Package 116



Page 5 of 7 

Section 8 – Responsibilities 
The FIRM shall, under no circumstance, look to the OWNER to provide any 

labor or equipment for the FIRM.  The FIRM shall provide all of the labor 

and equipment necessary to perform the job or services contracted for at 

the expense of the FIRM.  Property of any kind that may be on the premises, 

which are the site of the performance of this contract, during the 

performance of this Work Authorization, shall be at the sole risk of the FIRM. 

 
8.1 The OWNER hereby designates Tim Martin  as the OWNER's 

representative. 

8.2 In addition to applicable provisions of the AGREEMENT, the 

OWNER will: 

• Provide copies of existing drawings and equipment cut sheets if 
requested by FIRM 

• Pay for any required permit fees 
 

The FIRM acknowledges and understands that it is an independent 

contractor in its relationship with the OWNER.  The FIRM hereby designates 

David Schuman as the FIRM’s representative.  

 

Section 9 – Insurance 
The FIRM shall provide certificate of insurance to the OWNER setting forth 

the type and amount of insurance carried by the FIRM and conforming to 

the minimum requirements set forth in the AGREEMENT.   

 
Section 10 – Level of Service 

The OWNER shall have the right to terminate said Agreement by giving the 

FIRM thirty (30) days written notice if the service that is being provided is 

not maintained at levels necessary to provide the required service.  The 

OWNER will determine in its sole judgment what constitutes a satisfactory 

level of service. 

 

Agenda Package 117



Page 6 of 7 

Section 11 – Indemnification 
The Firm shall indemnify and hold harmless the Owner and its officers and 

employees as set forth in Section 11 of the Agreement. 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Work Authorization, consisting of  seven (7)  

pages and Attachment A has been caused fully executed on behalf of the FIRM 

by its duly authorized officer, and the OWNER has the same to be duly name and 

in its behalf, effective as of the date herein above written. 

 
  

Agenda Package 118



Page 7 of 7 

(SEAL) 

 

ATTEST:  
 
 
_____________________________ 
 
_____________________________ 
Printed name of Witness 

_____________________________ 
 

CORAL SPRINGS IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 
 

_________________________________ 

President 

 
 
______________________________ 
Printed name 
 
______________________________ 
Date 

 
_____________________________ 
Printed name of Witness 
 
_____________________________ 
Printed name of Witness 

Approved as to form and legality 

 
_________________________________ 
District Counsel 

State of Florida 
County of Palm Beach 
 
 
The foregoing instrument was 
acknowledged before me on this 

  
___ day of _________, 2016 by  
 
_________________________  
who is personally known to me OR 
produced ____________________ 
as identification. 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Signature of Notary  

ENGINEER 
 
_Globaltech Inc.  _______________________  
Company  
 
 
_____________________________________ 
Signature 
 
Troy L. Lyn, Vice President 
____________________________________ 
Name and title (typed or printed) 
 
 
________________________________ 
Date 

 

Agenda Package 119



 

  

Attachment A 
 

Budget Summary 
 

Agenda Package 120



Officer E6 E4 CADD Adm 3 Adm 1

$210.00 $175.00 $150.00 $85.00 $75.00 $50.00
1 Project Coordination and Review 4 4 4

Scoping Meeting w/site visit 8 8
Subtotal Task 1 0 12 8 0 4 4  $     3,800.00 

2 Engineering - Design
Collect Power Data Logger Information 12  $        750.00 
Review Blower Options 8 4
Review Control Options 6 4
Review Piping Configuration/Modifications 8
Develop Capital and O&M Costs 12 4
Prepare Draft TM 16 8 2
Review Meeting 4
Prepare Final TM 8
 

Subtotal Task 2 0 62 32 0 0 2  $   15,750.00 
Labor Subtotal Hours 0 74 40 0 4 6
Labor Subtotal $0 $12,950 $6,000 $0 $300 $300 $19,550    

Labor Total  $   19,550.00 
Subconsultant Labor Total  $        750.00 
Subconsultant Multiplier 1.12
Subcontract Total  $        840.00 

PROJECT TOTAL  $   20,390.00 

ATTACHMENT  A
Engineering - WWTP Blower Study

Engineering Budget Summary 

Task Task Description
Expense/ 

Subconsul. Total Labor

Expense/ 
Subconsul. 

Fee

Agenda Package 121



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

10B. 
  

Agenda Package 122



Page 1 of 10 

WORK AUTHORIZATION 110 
NO.   GT-155104 

 

Pursuant to the provisions contained in the "Contract for Professional Engineering 

Consulting and Design-Build Services on a Continuing Contract Basis " between 

the CORAL SPRINGS IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT, hereinafter referred to as 

"OWNER", and  Globaltech, Inc., hereinafter referred to as "FIRM", dated July 1, 

2012  (hereinafter referred to as "AGREEMENT"), this Work Authorization, 

executed this          day of ____________ 2016, authorizes the FIRM to provide 

services under the terms and conditions set forth herein and in the AGREEMENT, 

which is incorporated herein by reference as though set forth in full. 

 

The OWNER desires design-build services related to Degasifier Cleaning Pump, 

hereinafter referred to as the “Specific Project”. 

 

Section 1 – Terms 
The FIRM shall be defined as an individual, corporation or contractor having 

a direct contract with the OWNER or with any other subcontractor in the 

performance of a part of the work contracted for under the terms of this 

Work Authorization with the OWNER. 

 
Section 2 – Scope of Work 

The FIRM will provide the following services in accordance with Sections 1 

and 2 of the AGREEMENT: 

 
The membrane plant and associated degasifiers 

have been in service on a continuous basis for 

over two years.  The degasifiers have worked 

well and have not shown a lot of pressure loss 

across the media; however, inspection by staff 

indicate the degasifiers should be cleaned.   

 

Agenda Package 123



Page 2 of 10 

This Work Authorization is for the procurement of a trailer mounted 

degasifier cleaning pump and the installation of power supply and drainage 

needed for operation of the cleaning pump.   

Task 1 – Project Coordination/Review  
The FIRM will meet and coordinate with the OWNER via site visit to collect 

dimensions of related equipment and the site layout and discuss timing of 

installation.   

 

Task 2 – Engineering and Project Management 
FIRM shall perform the following:   

1. Site visits to determine equipment needed and logistics for 

improvements.  

2. Coordinate material and equipment purchases. 

3. Schedule and conduct meetings, inspections, and testing with 

OWNER’s staff, as needed. 

No record drawing or specific operation and maintenance documents shall 

be prepared for this project.  Submittal information and manual for pump 

shall be provided to OWNER.   

 

Task 3 – Construction of Improvements 
The following work is proposed for the construction of this project: 

 

1. Furnish a 25 hp seal less mag drive Finish Thompson pump on a 

trailer with lights.  The pump will be rated for 500 gpm at 80 ft TDH.  

The pump motor shall be TEFC rated.  A control panel for the pump 

shall also be mounted on the trailer and wired to the pump.  The 

control shall have a NEMA 4X enclosure with HOA selector switch, 

push Start/Stop/Reset button and a 24/7 timer.  Pump shall be 

furnished with a 50 ft electrical pigtail.   

2. Furnish and install 4-inch swing check valve and quick connect hose 

fittings for pump suction and discharge.  Quick connect hose fitting 

Agenda Package 124



Page 3 of 10 

shall be PE or PVC.  Owner shall provide interconnecting hose from 

pump to degasifier.  

3. Furnish and install a new 50 amp breaker bucket in MCC-40-1-1, a 

new 100 amp NF disconnect, wire, conduit and electrical receptacle 

for pump.   Receptacle shall be mounted on channel strut next to 

existing blowers.   

4. Furnish and install 3-inch PVC drain line from clearwell to strainer pit.  

Strainer pit shall be core drilled to install the drain line discharge.  

The drain line connection at the clearwell will be provided with PE or 

PVC quick connect hose connection.  Restoration of asphalt will be 

performed by Owner.  Restoration of dirt/grassy area, if 

required/desired, at the end of the project will be handled as an 

allowance item.   

 
Assumptions 
 

Assumptions for the project are as follows: 

• OWNER shall provide waste disposal for construction debris.   

• OWNER will isolate plant flow to assist with installation of drain lines.   

• OWNER shall provide interconnect hoses from degasifier to pump and 

from degasifier to drain connection.   

• No building department or health department construction permit is 

required for repair work.   

 
Section 3 – Location 

The services to be performed by the FIRM shall be on the following site or 

sites: Water Treatment Plant  

 

Section 4 – Project Reference 

The OWNER desired services to be performed by the FIRM shall be 

referred to as the Degasifier Cleaning Pump. 

Agenda Package 125



Page 4 of 10 

 

Section 5 – Deliverables 
The FIRM will provide the following Deliverables to OWNER: 

• Hand sketches of modifications. 

 

Section 6 - Time of Performance 
Project will commence after execution of this Work Authorization and a 

Notice to Proceed is issued by OWNER. The FIRM and OWNER agree to 

the following schedule: 

 

Task Time Elapsed to Subtask Completion 
Notice to Proceed (NTP) 0 Days 
Substantial Completion 90 Days following issuance NTP 
Final Completion 30 days after Substantial Completion 

 
 
Section 7 - Method and Amount of Compensation 

1. The FIRM shall be paid by the OWNER in accordance with the Florida’s 

Prompt Payment Act Florida Statute 218.70-79 and in accordance with the 

payment method as set forth in Section 6 of the AGREEMENT.  The 

calculations shall begin using the date the invoice was received.   

2. Total job price:  $68,627.  Price includes a $5,000 allowance. Breakdown of 
cost is provided in table below and Attachment A.   
 

3. On the terms contained in the FIRM’s said proposal for the doing of said 

work and the said award therefore, and the specifications herein specifically 

referred to and made a part of this contract.  

4. The cost for the above scope of services is a Guaranteed Maximum Price 

(GMP).  The GMP is based on the materials, methods, and assumptions 

presented in the scope of services and may be adjusted downward based 

on final detail design and alternative selections or omissions.  The GMP 

shall not be greater than the stated amount unless there is an approved 

increase in the scope of services.  The final stipulated sum (adjusted 

Agenda Package 126



Page 5 of 10 

GMP) submitted herein shall be an amount to be billed on the basis of 

“percent complete” and stored materials turned over to the OWNER.  

5. Unless otherwise prescribed by law, at the end of each month, the FIRM 

shall submit to the OWNER for review, an Application for Progress Payment 

filled out and signed by the FIRM covering the Work completed as of the 

date of the Application and accompanied by such supporting documentation 

as is required by the AGREEMENT.  

6. The Application for Progress Payment shall identify the amount of the FIRM 

Total Earnings to Date based upon value of original contract Work 

performed to date as approved by fully executed Change Orders.  

7. Payment shall be based upon percentage of work completed based upon 

the approved schedule of values. Retainage in the amount of 10% will be 

withheld on the calculated value of any work, with the exception of stored 

materials which may be paid at the supplier's invoiced cost. At FIRM's 

request, after 50% completion of the work has been achieved, the OWNER 

will implement a reduction in retainage to 5% of all future pay requests. If 

retainage is reduced, FIRM may not withhold more than 5% retainage from 

subcontractors or suppliers and will be required to certify compliance with 

F.S. 218.70 et seq on each subsequent pay application. Notwithstanding 

the foregoing, in no instance can the amount retained be less than the value 

of OWNER's good faith claims plus the value of the work the OWNER 

determines remains to be put in place or required to be performed as 

remedial activities. For the purposes of this section, 50% completion shall 

be that point in time when OWNER determines that half of the Work 

required by the Contract has been completed. In no event shall the Work 

be determined to be 50% completed before the OWNER has paid 50% of 

the Contract amount and 50% of the Contract time has expired. The amount 

of previous Pay Estimate payments shall then be subtracted to equal the 

Balance Due during the Pay Estimate period.  

8. When the OWNER determines the Work to be Substantially Complete, the 

OWNER may reduce the retainage to five percent (5%) of the dollar value 

Agenda Package 127



Page 6 of 10 

of all Work satisfactorily completed to date, provided that the FIRM is 

making satisfactory progress toward Final Completion of the Work, that in 

the opinion of both the Engineer and the OWNER there is no specific cause 

for a greater retainage, and the FIRM obtains the written consent of the 

Surety Companies furnishing the required Public Construction Bond on 

consent forms provided by the OWNER. The OWNER may reinstate the 

retainage up to ten percent (10%) if the OWNER determines, at its 

discretion or the Engineer's discretion, that the FIRM is not making 

satisfactory progress toward final completion of the Work or where there is 

other specific cause for such withholding.  

9. Partial payment may be made for the delivered cost of stored materials 

planned for incorporation into the Work, provided such materials meet the 

requirements of this Contract, the Contract Drawings, and the 

Specifications, and are delivered and suitably stored at the project site, or 

at another location acceptable to the OWNER.  Such material must be 

stored in a secure manor acceptable to the OWNER, and in accordance 

with the manufacturer's recommendations.   

10. The delivered cost of such stored or stockpiled materials may be included 

in any subsequent application for payment provided the FIRM meets the 

following conditions:  

a. An applicable purchase order or supplier's invoice is provided listing 

the materials in detail, the cost of each item, and identifies this 

specific contract by name. 

b. The materials are fully insured against loss or damage (from 

whatever source) or disappearance prior to incorporation into the 

Work.  

c. Stored materials approved for payment by the OWNER shall not be 

removed from the designated storage area except for incorporation 

into the Work. 

d. Evidence that the FIRM has verified quantity and quality of the 

materials delivered (verified packing list). 

Agenda Package 128



Page 7 of 10 

11. It is further agreed between the parties that the transfer of title and the 

OWNER's payment for any stored or stockpiled materials pursuant to these 

General Conditions, and any applicable provisions of the Supplementary 

General Conditions, shall in no way relieve the FIRM of the responsibility of 

ensuring the correctness of those materials and for furnishing and placing 

such materials in accordance with the requirements of this Contract, the 

Contract Drawings, the Technical Specifications, and any approved 

changes thereto. 

12. The following monthly Application for Progress Payment shall be 

accompanied by Bills of Sale, copies of paid invoices, releases of lien, or 

other documentation warranting that the FIRM has received the stored 

materials and equipment free and clear of all liens, charges, security 

interests, and encumbrances (which are hereinafter in these General 

Conditions referred to as "Liens") and evidence that the stored materials 

and equipment are covered by appropriate property insurance and other 

arrangements to protect the OWNER's interest therein, all of which shall be 

satisfactory to the OWNER.  

13. The FIRM shall warrant and guarantee that title to all Work, materials, and 

equipment covered by an Application for Progress Payment, whether 

incorporated in the Work or not, will pass to the OWNER no later than the 

time of Final Payment free and clear of all liens or other encumbrances.  

14. In the event any dispute with respect to any payment or pay request cannot 

be resolved between the FIRM and OWNER's project staff, FIRM may, in 

accordance with the alternative dispute resolution requirements of Florida 

Statute section 218.72, et seq, demand in writing a meeting with and review 

by the OWNER’S (agency) director. In the absence of the agency director, 

a deputy director may conduct the meeting and review. Such meeting and 

review shall occur within ten (10) business days of receipt by OWNER of 

FIRM’s written demand. The OWNER’s manager shall issue a written 

decision on the dispute within ten (10) business days of such meeting. This 

Agenda Package 129



Page 8 of 10 

decision shall be deemed the OWNER's final decision for the purposes of 

the Local Government Prompt Payment Act.  

 

Section 8 – Responsibilities 
The FIRM shall, under no circumstance, look to the OWNER to provide any 

labor or equipment for the FIRM.  The FIRM shall provide all of the labor 

and equipment necessary to perform the job or services contracted for at 

the expense of the FIRM.  Property of any kind that may be on the premises, 

which are the site of the performance of this contract, during the 

performance of this Work Authorization, shall be at the sole risk of the FIRM. 

 
8.1 The OWNER hereby designates Joe Stephens as the OWNER's 

representative. 

8.2 In addition to applicable provisions of Section 2 of the AGREEMENT, 

the OWNER will: 

• Provide copies of existing drawings and equipment cut sheets if 
requested by FIRM 

• Pay for any required permit fees 
 

The FIRM acknowledges and understands that it is an independent 

contractor in its relationship with the OWNER.  The FIRM hereby designates 

Bruce Rahmani as the FIRM’s representative.  

 

Section 9 – Insurance 
The FIRM shall provide certificate of insurance to the OWNER setting forth 

the type and amount of insurance carried by the FIRM and conforming to 

the minimum requirements set forth in the AGREEMENT.   

 
Section 10 – Level of Service 

The OWNER shall have the right to terminate said Agreement by giving the 

FIRM thirty (30) days written notice if the service that is being provided is 

not maintained at levels necessary to provide the required service.  The 

Agenda Package 130



Page 9 of 10 

OWNER will determine in its sole judgment what constitutes a satisfactory 

level of service. 

 

Section 11 – Indemnification 
The Firm shall indemnify and hold harmless the Owner and its officers and 

employees as set forth in Section 11 of the Agreement. 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Work Authorization, consisting of  ten (10)  

pages and Attachment A has been caused fully executed on behalf of the FIRM 

by its duly authorized officer, and the OWNER has the same to be duly name and 

in its behalf, effective as of the date herein above written.  

Agenda Package 131



Page 10 of 10 

(SEAL) 

 

ATTEST:  
 
 
_____________________________ 
 
_____________________________ 
Printed name of Witness 

_____________________________ 
 

CORAL SPRINGS IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 
 

_________________________________ 

President 

 
 
______________________________ 
Printed name 
 
______________________________ 
Date 

 
_____________________________ 
Printed name of Witness 
 
_____________________________ 
Printed name of Witness 

Approved as to form and legality 

 
_________________________________ 
District Counsel 

State of Florida 
County of Palm Beach 
 
 
The foregoing instrument was 
acknowledged before me on this 

  
___ day of _________, 2016 by  
 
_________________________  
who is personally known to me OR 
produced ____________________ 
as identification. 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Signature of Notary  

ENGINEER 
 
_Globaltech Inc.  _______________________  
Company  
 
 
_____________________________________ 
Signature 
 
Troy L. Lyn, Vice President 
____________________________________ 
Name and title (typed or printed) 
 
 
________________________________ 
Date 

 

Agenda Package 132



 

  

Attachment A 
 

Budget Summary 
 

Agenda Package 133



01/19/16 

1  General Conditions

Temporary Facilities

Job Site Trailer 365.70

General Conditions

Submittal Labor 369.39

Progress Meeting 228.11

Scheduling Labor 369.39

Construction PM 1,846.94

Construction Superintendent 807.19

Safety 369.39

Office Admin 303.16

Item Total: 4,659.27
2  Sitework

Mobilization

Construction PM 369.39

Construction Superintendent 161.44

3 man Crew 625.47

Trenching, Backfilling, and Compaction

Cut & Remove Asphalt 625.47

Trench Area from Degasifier to BWW Pump Station 2,501.87

Backfill & Compaction 625.47

Construction PM 738.78

Demob

Construction PM 184.69

Construction Superintendent 161.44

3 man Crew 625.47

Item Total: 6,619.49
5  Misc Metals

SS Unistrut 146.28

SS Unistrut Hardware 121.90

Item Total: 268.18

Order Date: 

To: Coral Springs Improvement Dist
10300 NW 11th Manor
Attn: Ken Cassel
Coral Springs FL 33071  

Project: 155104 

CSID Degasifier Cleaning Syste
10300 NW 11th Manor
Attn: Ken Cassel
Coral Springs FL 33071  

Client Job No.: 

Plans Attached 

Specifications Attached 

Job Estimate 

Agenda Package 134



11  Equipment

Booster pump 20,268.13

Item Total: 20,268.13
15  Mechanical

SCH 80 PVC Pipe & Ftgs 1,828.50

Concrete Core 365.70

Linkseal 182.85

Cam-Lok Fittings (PVC) 365.70

Flange Kits & Misc Materials 243.80

Check Valve & Accessories 1,828.50

Installation 2,501.87

Construction PM 923.47

Item Total: 8,240.39
16  Electrical

Electrical Sub 16,453.80

Construction PM (Elec/I&C) 656.36

Item Total: 17,110.16
18  Rental Equipment

Mini Excavator 2,316.10

Compactor 5000-7000LB 548.55

Saw Blade 109.71

Misc Tools 243.80

Equipment Fuel 243.80

Item Total: 3,461.96
25  Allowance

Allowance 5,000.00

Item Total: 5,000.00
50  Engineering/Record Drawing

Engineering 3,000.00

Item Total: 3,000.00

Total Estimate Amount: 68,627.58

GLOBALTECH:  __________________________________ DATE:   _________________________

OWNER:   _________________________________________ DATE:   _________________________

Agenda Package 135



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

10C. 
  

Agenda Package 136



Page 1 of 8 

WORK AUTHORIZATION 111 

NO.   ___________ 

 

Pursuant to the provisions contained in the "Contract for Professional Engineering 

Consulting and Design-Build Services on a Continuing Contract Basis " between 

the CORAL SPRINGS IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT, hereinafter referred to as 

"OWNER", and  Globaltech, Inc., hereinafter referred to as "FIRM", dated July 1, 

2012  (hereinafter referred to as "AGREEMENT"), this Work Authorization, 

executed this          day of ____________ 2016, authorizes the FIRM to provide 

services under the terms and conditions set forth herein and in the AGREEMENT, 

which is incorporated herein by reference as though set forth in full. 

 

The OWNER desires design-build services related to Train 3 Flow Meter Repair, 

hereinafter referred to as the “Specific Project”. 

 

Section 1 – Terms 

The FIRM shall be defined as an individual, corporation or contractor having 

a direct contract with the OWNER or with any other subcontractor in the 

performance of a part of the work contracted for under the terms of this 

Work Authorization with the OWNER. 

 

Section 2 – Scope of Work 

The FIRM will provide the following services in accordance with Sections 1 

and 2 of the AGREEMENT: 

 
The venturi flow meter on top of Train 3 

appears to be incorrectly installed based 

on the flow arrow on the flow meter.  The 

Firm shall disassemble the venturi flow 

meter.  Inspect flow tube with Owner and 

reassemble venturi flow meter as needed.   

 

Agenda Package 137



Page 2 of 8 

Assumptions 
 

Assumptions for the project are as follows: 

 OWNER will isolate plant flow to assist with work on flow meter.   

 No building department or health department construction permit is 

required for repair work.   

 
Section 3 – Location 

The services to be performed by the FIRM shall be on the following site or 

sites: Water Treatment Plant  

Section 4 – Project Reference 

The OWNER desired services to be performed by the FIRM shall be 

referred to as the Train 3 Flow Meter Repair. 

 

Section 5 – Deliverables 

None Identified.  

 

Section 6 - Time of Performance 

Project will commence after execution of this Work Authorization and a 

Notice to Proceed is issued by OWNER. The FIRM and OWNER agree to 

the following schedule: 

 

Task Time Elapsed to Subtask Completion 

Notice to Proceed (NTP) 0 Days 

Substantial Completion 90 Days following issuance NTP 

Final Completion 30 days after Substantial Completion 

 
 
Section 7 - Method and Amount of Compensation 

1. The FIRM shall be paid by the OWNER in accordance with the Florida’s 

Prompt Payment Act Florida Statute 218.70-79 and in accordance with the 

payment method as set forth in Section 6 of the AGREEMENT.  The 

calculations shall begin using the date the invoice was received.   

Agenda Package 138



Page 3 of 8 

2. Total job price:  $2229.  Breakdown of cost is provided in table below and 
Attachment A.   
 

3. On the terms contained in the FIRM’s said proposal for the doing of said 

work and the said award therefore, and the specifications herein specifically 

referred to and made a part of this contract.  

4. The cost for the above scope of services is a Guaranteed Maximum Price 

(GMP).  The GMP is based on the materials, methods, and assumptions 

presented in the scope of services and may be adjusted downward based 

on final detail design and alternative selections or omissions.  The GMP 

shall not be greater than the stated amount unless there is an approved 

increase in the scope of services.  The final stipulated sum (adjusted 

GMP) submitted herein shall be an amount to be billed on the basis of 

“percent complete” and stored materials turned over to the OWNER.  

5. Unless otherwise prescribed by law, at the end of each month, the FIRM 

shall submit to the OWNER for review, an Application for Progress Payment 

filled out and signed by the FIRM covering the Work completed as of the 

date of the Application and accompanied by such supporting documentation 

as is required by the AGREEMENT.  

6. The Application for Progress Payment shall identify the amount of the FIRM 

Total Earnings to Date based upon value of original contract Work 

performed to date as approved by fully executed Change Orders.  

7. Payment shall be based upon percentage of work completed based upon 

the approved schedule of values. Retainage in the amount of 10% will be 

withheld on the calculated value of any work, with the exception of stored 

materials which may be paid at the supplier's invoiced cost. At FIRM's 

request, after 50% completion of the work has been achieved, the OWNER 

will implement a reduction in retainage to 5% of all future pay requests. If 

retainage is reduced, FIRM may not withhold more than 5% retainage from 

subcontractors or suppliers and will be required to certify compliance with 

F.S. 218.70 et seq on each subsequent pay application. Notwithstanding 

the foregoing, in no instance can the amount retained be less than the value 

Agenda Package 139



Page 4 of 8 

of OWNER's good faith claims plus the value of the work the OWNER 

determines remains to be put in place or required to be performed as 

remedial activities. For the purposes of this section, 50% completion shall 

be that point in time when OWNER determines that half of the Work 

required by the Contract has been completed. In no event shall the Work 

be determined to be 50% completed before the OWNER has paid 50% of 

the Contract amount and 50% of the Contract time has expired. The amount 

of previous Pay Estimate payments shall then be subtracted to equal the 

Balance Due during the Pay Estimate period.  

8. When the OWNER determines the Work to be Substantially Complete, the 

OWNER may reduce the retainage to five percent (5%) of the dollar value 

of all Work satisfactorily completed to date, provided that the FIRM is 

making satisfactory progress toward Final Completion of the Work, that in 

the opinion of both the Engineer and the OWNER there is no specific cause 

for a greater retainage, and the FIRM obtains the written consent of the 

Surety Companies furnishing the required Public Construction Bond on 

consent forms provided by the OWNER. The OWNER may reinstate the 

retainage up to ten percent (10%) if the OWNER determines, at its 

discretion or the Engineer's discretion, that the FIRM is not making 

satisfactory progress toward final completion of the Work or where there is 

other specific cause for such withholding.  

9. Partial payment may be made for the delivered cost of stored materials 

planned for incorporation into the Work, provided such materials meet the 

requirements of this Contract, the Contract Drawings, and the 

Specifications, and are delivered and suitably stored at the project site, or 

at another location acceptable to the OWNER.  Such material must be 

stored in a secure manor acceptable to the OWNER, and in accordance 

with the manufacturer's recommendations.   

10. The delivered cost of such stored or stockpiled materials may be included 

in any subsequent application for payment provided the FIRM meets the 

following conditions:  

Agenda Package 140



Page 5 of 8 

a. An applicable purchase order or supplier's invoice is provided listing 

the materials in detail, the cost of each item, and identifies this 

specific contract by name. 

b. The materials are fully insured against loss or damage (from 

whatever source) or disappearance prior to incorporation into the 

Work.  

c. Stored materials approved for payment by the OWNER shall not be 

removed from the designated storage area except for incorporation 

into the Work. 

d. Evidence that the FIRM has verified quantity and quality of the 

materials delivered (verified packing list). 

11. It is further agreed between the parties that the transfer of title and the 

OWNER's payment for any stored or stockpiled materials pursuant to these 

General Conditions, and any applicable provisions of the Supplementary 

General Conditions, shall in no way relieve the FIRM of the responsibility of 

ensuring the correctness of those materials and for furnishing and placing 

such materials in accordance with the requirements of this Contract, the 

Contract Drawings, the Technical Specifications, and any approved 

changes thereto. 

12. The following monthly Application for Progress Payment shall be 

accompanied by Bills of Sale, copies of paid invoices, releases of lien, or 

other documentation warranting that the FIRM has received the stored 

materials and equipment free and clear of all liens, charges, security 

interests, and encumbrances (which are hereinafter in these General 

Conditions referred to as "Liens") and evidence that the stored materials 

and equipment are covered by appropriate property insurance and other 

arrangements to protect the OWNER's interest therein, all of which shall be 

satisfactory to the OWNER.  

13. The FIRM shall warrant and guarantee that title to all Work, materials, and 

equipment covered by an Application for Progress Payment, whether 

Agenda Package 141



Page 6 of 8 

incorporated in the Work or not, will pass to the OWNER no later than the 

time of Final Payment free and clear of all liens or other encumbrances.  

14. In the event any dispute with respect to any payment or pay request cannot 

be resolved between the FIRM and OWNER's project staff, FIRM may, in 

accordance with the alternative dispute resolution requirements of Florida 

Statute section 218.72, et seq, demand in writing a meeting with and review 

by the OWNER’S (agency) director. In the absence of the agency director, 

a deputy director may conduct the meeting and review. Such meeting and 

review shall occur within ten (10) business days of receipt by OWNER of 

FIRM’s written demand. The OWNER’s manager shall issue a written 

decision on the dispute within ten (10) business days of such meeting. This 

decision shall be deemed the OWNER's final decision for the purposes of 

the Local Government Prompt Payment Act.  

 

Section 8 – Responsibilities 

The FIRM shall, under no circumstance, look to the OWNER to provide any 

labor or equipment for the FIRM.  The FIRM shall provide all of the labor 

and equipment necessary to perform the job or services contracted for at 

the expense of the FIRM.  Property of any kind that may be on the premises, 

which are the site of the performance of this contract, during the 

performance of this Work Authorization, shall be at the sole risk of the FIRM. 

 

8.1 The OWNER hereby designates Joe Stephens as the OWNER's 

representative. 

8.2 In addition to applicable provisions of Section 2 of the AGREEMENT, 

the OWNER will: 

 Provide copies of existing drawings and equipment cut sheets if 
requested by FIRM 

 Pay for any required permit fees 
 

Agenda Package 142



Page 7 of 8 

The FIRM acknowledges and understands that it is an independent 

contractor in its relationship with the OWNER.  The FIRM hereby designates 

Bruce Rahmani as the FIRM’s representative.  

 

Section 9 – Insurance 

The FIRM shall provide certificate of insurance to the OWNER setting forth 

the type and amount of insurance carried by the FIRM and conforming to 

the minimum requirements set forth in the AGREEMENT.   

 

Section 10 – Level of Service 

The OWNER shall have the right to terminate said Agreement by giving the 

FIRM thirty (30) days written notice if the service that is being provided is 

not maintained at levels necessary to provide the required service.  The 

OWNER will determine in its sole judgment what constitutes a satisfactory 

level of service. 

 

Section 11 – Indemnification 

The Firm shall indemnify and hold harmless the Owner and its officers and 

employees as set forth in Section 11 of the Agreement. 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Work Authorization, consisting of  eight (8)  

pages and Attachment A has been caused fully executed on behalf of the FIRM 

by its duly authorized officer, and the OWNER has the same to be duly name and 

in its behalf, effective as of the date herein above written.  

Agenda Package 143



Page 8 of 8 

(SEAL) 

 

ATTEST:  
 
 
_____________________________ 
 
_____________________________ 
Printed name of Witness 

_____________________________ 
 

CORAL SPRINGS IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 

 

_________________________________ 

President 

 
 
______________________________ 
Printed name 
 
______________________________ 
Date 

 
_____________________________ 
Printed name of Witness 
 
_____________________________ 
Printed name of Witness 

Approved as to form and legality 

 
_________________________________ 
District Counsel 

State of Florida 
County of Palm Beach 
 
 
The foregoing instrument was 
acknowledged before me on this 

  
___ day of _________, 2016 by  
 
_________________________  
who is personally known to me OR 
produced ____________________ 
as identification. 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Signature of Notary  

ENGINEER 
 
_Globaltech Inc.  _______________________  
Company  
 
 
_____________________________________ 
Signature 
 
Troy L. Lyn, Vice President 
____________________________________ 
Name and title (typed or printed) 
 
 
________________________________ 
Date 

 

Agenda Package 144



 

  

Attachment A 
 

Budget Summary 
 

Agenda Package 145



01/19/16 

100  Venturi Flowmeter

Remove & Install Venturi Meter 1,250.93

Construction PM 369.39

Misc Tools & Lifting Equipment 609.50

Item Total: 2,229.82

Total Estimate Amount: 2,229.82

GLOBALTECH:  __________________________________ DATE:   _________________________

OWNER:   _________________________________________ DATE:   _________________________

Order Date: 

To: Coral Springs Improvement Dist
10300 NW 11th Manor
Attn: Ken Cassel
Coral Springs FL 33071  

Project: 155104 

CSID Degasifier Cleaning Syste
10300 NW 11th Manor
Attn: Ken Cassel
Coral Springs FL 33071  

Client Job No.: 

Plans Attached 

Specifications Attached 

Job Estimate 

Agenda Package 146



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Eleventh Order of Business 
  

Agenda Package 147



March 5, 2016
www.WaterwayCleanup.org

Opportunities
Sponsorship

Agenda Package 148

http://www.WaterwayCleanup.org


39th Annual Broward County Waterway 
Cleanup - March 5, 2016

Presenting Sponsor - $10,000
Featured and identified as the Presenting Sponsor of Broward County’s largest annual 
environmental event and will be recognized in the mass media campaign as follows: 
Publicity & Advertising
 • Company logo included with Waterway Cleanup logo as Presenting Sponsor  
   on all promotional materials 
 • Premium placement of company logo on Waterway Cleanup Poster
 • Company logo prominently located on official event fliers
 • Identified as Presenting Sponsor on event boat flags (300 total)
 • Premium placement of company logo on WWCU website homepage and  
    on Marine Industry Cares Foundation website with year-round link to your  
    company’s site
 • Press release announcing partnership
 • Recognized in Results press release
 • Opportunity to speak at the Waterway Cleanup Kick-off Press Conference
 • Opportunity to speak at the Waterway Cleanup Trash Bash
 • Recognized in MIASF and Marine Industry Cares Foundation email newsletters
    • Opportunity to supply promotional material/literature to be distributed at  
    WWCU sites 
    • Featured with premium placement as Presenting Sponsor on the Waterway  
    Cleanup T-shirts    
 
Material Rewards & Return
 • 10 complimentary Waterway Cleanup T-shirts
 • Recognition Award as WWCU Sponsor 

Verbal Appreciation and Recognition at:
 • Waterway Cleanup Trash Bash

www.WaterwayCleanup.org

Agenda Package 149

http://www.WaterwayCleanup.org


39th Annual Broward County Waterway Cleanup 
March 5, 2016
All sponsorships include:

Invitation to & Verbal Recognition at
 • Waterway Cleanup Trash Bash

Waterway Cleanup Partner - $5,000
Two available. Featured as an MIASF partner and major sponsor of Broward County’s 
largest annual environmental event and recognized in all promotional material through:
 
Publicity & Advertising
 • Premium placement of company logo on Waterway Cleanup poster
 • Company logo prominently located on official event fliers
 • Premium placement of company logo on Waterway Cleanup website homepage  
    with year-round link to your company’s website
 • Press release announcing partnership
 • Recognized in results press release
 • Recognized in MIASF and Marine Industry Cares Foundation email newsletters
 • Opportunity to supply promotional material/literature to be distributed at   
    WWCU sites
 • Premium placement of logo on the back of Waterway Cleanup T-shirts

Material Rewards & Return
 • Five complimentary Waterway Cleanup T-shirts
 • Awarded plaque for participation at the Waterway Cleanup Trash Bash
 

www.WaterwayCleanup.org

Agenda Package 150

http://www.WaterwayCleanup.org


Exclusive Flag Sponsor - $2,500
Sponsor the Waterway Cleanup boat flags and have advertising potential all year-round! 
Your company name and/or logo will appear, be mentioned or displayed as follows:

Publicity & Advertising
 • Recognized on 300 quality boat flags imprinted with your company name or logo  
    and displayed on all  Waterway Cleanup boats
 • Company logo on official event fliers
 • Company logo on the promotional poster for the event
 • Recognized on Waterway Cleanup website homepage  
 • Recognized in Results press release
 • Recognized in MIASF and Marine Industry Cares Foundation newsletters

Material Rewards & Return
 • Five complimentary Waterway Cleanup flags
 • Two complimentary Waterway Cleanup T-shirts
 • Recognition Award as WWCU sponsor

Awards Sponsor - $1,200
Official Sponsor of Annual Waterway Cleanup  Awards with recognition as follows: 
 
Publicity & Advertising
 • Company logo on official event fliers
 • Name and/or Logo included on Awards
 • Recognized on Waterway Cleanup website homepage      
 • Recognized in MIASF and Marine Industry Cares Foundation newsletters

Material Rewards & Return
 • Two complimentary Waterway Cleanup T-shirts
 • Recognition Award as WWCU sponsor 

Site Sponsor - $500
Your company name and/or logo will appear, be mentioned or displayed as follows:
Publicity & Advertising
 • One banner displayed at your cleanup site
 • Recognized on Waterway Cleanup website homepage     
 • Recognized in Results press release
 • Recognized in MIASF and Marine Industry Cares newsletters following the event

Material Rewards & Return
 • Two complimentary Waterway Cleanup T-shirts
 • Recognition Award as WWCU sponsor

www.WaterwayCleanup.org

Agenda Package 151

http://www.WaterwayCleanup.org


Waterway Cleanup Sponsorship Form & Agreement

_______________________________________________________________________ agrees to support the Marine 
Industries Association of South Florida and Marine Industry Cares Foundation as a sponsor of the 39th annual Broward 
County Waterway Cleanup at the level indicated below.

Your commitment to sponsor Broward County’s largest one-day environmental event ensures all sponsor benefits will be 
received pending the payment of your sponsorship. 

_________________________________________________________       _______________
Signature        Date

Sponsorship Level Please select the sponsorship levels below at which you would like to participate:

WWCU Presenting Sponsor m  $10,000      Awards Sponsor  m  $1,200
WWCU Partner  m  $5,000        Site Sponsor  m  $500   
Exclusive Flag Sponsor  m  $2,500

Sponsor Information

Contact Name ___________________________________________________________________________________

Company (sponsor) Name __________________________________________________________________________

Address _________________________________________________________________________________________

City _____________________________________________  State ___________________  Zip ___________________

Telephone _____________________  Fax __________________________ E-mail ______________________________

Billing Information

We accept:       m Check            m VISA            m MasterCard            m AMEX

Billing Name _____________________________________________________________________________________

Billing Address ___________________________________________________________________________________

City _____________________________________________  State ____________________  Zip __________________

Telephone ____________________  Fax ________________________ E-mail _________________________________

Credit Card # ______________________________________________________  CVV # _________________________

Expiration Date _______________  Signature __________________________________________________________

Deadline to be included in the maximum number of sponsorship opportunities is Jan. 29, 2016. 

Complete and mail form to address below or email it to sharon@miasf.org.
Make checks payable to and mail to MIASF
2312 South Andrews Avenue,  Fort Lauderdale, Florida 33316

Agenda Package 152

mailto:sharon@miasf.org


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Twelfth Order of Business 
  

Agenda Package 153



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

12B. 
  

Agenda Package 154



Globaltech, Inc. 

CSID Engineer’s Report 

January 15, 2016 

 

 

PROJECTS UNDER CONTRACT 

 

WA # 98 Storm Water Site Development Criteria – In progress 
 Drafting final report.   

 
WA #101 Well 4R and 7R Construction – In progress 

 Clearance documentation submitted to BCHD on Well 4R.  BCHD site inspection conducted 1/15/16.  

Anticipate receipt of clearance acceptance next week and permission to run well. 

 Operation and Maintenance Manual delivered to staff on 1/7/16. 

 Conducted VFD training on 1/13/16. 

 Pathway restoration remains to close out building permit.  Subcontractor was to pave week of 1/22 but 

was not able to due to rain.  Pathway to be restored as soon as possible.   

 
WA #102 Canal Bank Restoration Construction – In closeout.   

 Closeout documents being finalized.     

 

WA #106 – Lime Plant Demolition Design – In progress 

 Working on drafting report. 

 
WA #107 – WTP Four-Log BCHD Submittal – In agency review 

 Conducted breakpoint chlorination testing as part of RFI#2 request on 1/7/16.   

 Reviewed staff data collection on chlorine testing as part of RFI #2 request.   

 
WA #108 – HSPs 5 and 6 Pump and Motor Installation – In progress 

 Awaiting delivery of pump pedestal for installation.   
 

PROJECTS PENDING 

 WA#109 – WWTP Blower Study – Submitted to staff.  Approval Pending.  

 WA #110 – Degasifier Cleaning Pump – Submitted to staff.  Approval Pending. 

 WA #111 – Effluent Pump Station Electrical Improvements – Submitted to staff.   

 WA#___ - Canal Bank Restoration of Site 1A – WA in development.   

 WA #___ – Margate interconnect – WA to be developed.  Awaiting direction from staff. 

 

Agenda Package 155



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

12C. 
  

Agenda Package 156



Coral Springs Improvement District

Utility Billing Work Orders

2015 Jan Feb Mar Apr May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec TOTAL

Customer Inquiry requiring work order 40 27 33 33 43 43 40 37 36 23 25 38 418

Mis-Reads 4 2 0 0 0 1 0 3 2 1 0 1 14

Meter Calibration Tests 1 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 3

2014 Jan Feb Mar Apr May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec TOTAL

Customer Inquiry requiring work order 33 43 45 60 50 73 45 52 47 43 51 52 594

Mis-Reads 7 5 8 5 3 9 4 2 0 6 3 3 55

Meter Calibration Tests 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 1

2013 Jan Feb Mar Apr May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec TOTAL

Customer Inquiry requiring work order 98 54 44 63 43 48 45 42 67 42 41 52 639

Mis-Reads 11 6 6 5 6 6 6 7 6 10 3 7 79

Meter Calibration Tests 1 1 0 3 2 1 1 0 2 0 0 1 12

Agenda Package 157



                                              Coral Springs Improvement District 

                                       Report to Board of Directors for Water Plant 

                                       Report includes updates through 1/14/2016 

 

 Well 4R-    The inspector with the Broward County Health Department visited the well site for 

inspection on 1/15/2015. They also brought their GPS equipment with them to provide the well with 

its own unique well id number. There is still some sidewalk work that needs to be completed by 

Globaltech however other than that we are only waiting on BCHD to sign off on its acceptance and we 

can begin using it as part of the process. Globaltech provided an onsite hands on training to staff on 

1/13 to go over the functions and operations of the VFD.  

 

 New Hire- We have brought a part time employee on board to help with some of the extra workload 

experienced by the recent loss of two full time employees. This operator worked part time for us in the 

past and is an easy transition back into the department. He possesses an A license in Drinking Water 

and has worked in the industry for many years. His start date was 1/13/16. We are also looking for a 

full time licensed operator and currently have an ad running in the Florida Water Resource Journal.  

 

 Well maintenance program- We have reviewed the performance of the well maintenance program 

through current and feel that it is effective. We see that most wells had a significant improvement 

immediately after the first and second treatment. Some continue to improve slightly and the rest are 

holding steady and not declining. We met with Jim Murray from AMPS on 1/14 to review the 

performance of the program thus far and to discuss the best path moving forward. He agrees that it 

has been successful and has high hopes for even more improvement moving forward. We feel that we 

need to add wells 9, 7R, and 4R to this program in order to maintain their current performance before 

we experience any decline. 

 

 Antiscalant over/under dose prevention- We have created some logic in the PLC’s (Process logic control 

center’s (computers)) to prevent the occurrence of an over or under feed scenario for antiscalant.  

Antiscalant is a chemical which is used to prevent scale from building up inside of the membranes and 

extends cleaning frequencies if dosed correctly. The concentration cannot be easily monitored in the 

water using an inline instrument like some other parameters such as Ph, turbitity, conductivity etc..  

What we have done is implemented a way of monitoring the weight scales that the chemical tanks are 

sitting on to make sure the correct amount of chemical is leaving these tanks. We have alarms that will 

be generated on the computers if either too much or not enough is fed within a specified time. These 

scenarios have happened at other plants and force trains out of service until autopsies are performed 

on the membranes and a resolution is selected and implemented. 

 

 

 

Agenda Package 158



 Train 3 flow meter- After experiencing some issues calibrating one of the flow meters on train #3 we 

reached out to the manufacturer and we were able to convince them to come out to have a look at 

what was going on at no cost to us. After two days of troubleshooting one of the reps. noticed that the 

flow tube looked to be backwards. Upon closer inspection we all believe he is correct. This was 

installed this way during construction. We spoke with the flow tube manufacturer and found out that it 

will give repeatable results when in reverse but not accurate ones. We believe it is causing the reading 

to be off by approximately + 10%. Globaltech has included solving this issue for us in their WA# 110. 

This was almost impossible to notice when reviewing the normalized data for this train because it had 

been in this position since day 1. 

                     

Agenda Package 159



 Coral Springs Improvement District 

Wastewater Department Report 

January 2016 Board Meeting 

 

 

 

Work Authorizations Requesting Approval 

 WA # 109 – Wastewater Treatment Plant Blower Study 

 

Ongoing Projects  
 

Globaltech has notified the District that they are progressing with the following approved work 

authorizations (WA):  

 

There are no ongoing projects that are being worked on at this time.  

 

 

Operations 
 

Blower 1 repair 

 

 Blower 1 was sent out for repair on Tuesday January 12, 2016.  

 

Plant E is being taken offline for annual maintenance.  

 De-watering of tank has been completed.  Cleaning contract will be going out for bid 

next month.  

 

 

 

 

Agenda Package 160



Coral Springs Improvement District 

Drainage Department Report 

January 25, 2016 Meeting 

 

 
 Culvert cleaning project has been completed. 

 

 The fence permit for Mrs. Epstein’s house in Eagle Trace 

                   has been closed out completing the project. 

 

 Request for the boards approval to piggyback off of broward  

counties bid for triploid grass carp. 

 

   Backhoe training is scheduled for select individuals from  

  various departments. 

 

     

 

        

 

    

 

 

 

 

   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Agenda Package 161



 

Coral Springs Improvement District’s Water Distribution and Wastewater collection 

Department Report  

1-25-16 board Meeting  

 

 

 

  

* There were 30 water breaks in the month of December, up slightly from November  

 

 * LMK has continued the lining Project for lift Station 8. They are still dealing with elevated groundwater 

levels.    

* A recent study of residential sewer backups by location has identified the area of Lift station 1 collection 

system as having no reported backups since the completion of our lining project to that system. A 

continued savings in return of investment benefiting the district, eliminating after hours sewer backup 

calls for that system. 

* We hope to focus more on service line replacement going into the dry season which historically is the 

time of lower numbers in regard to reported water breaks   

* On Thursday January 28, a backhoe operator training class will be done here on site.  

Many essential district personnel will be attending.    

     

 

 

 

 

 

 

Agenda Package 162



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

FINANCIALS  

Agenda Package 163



Agenda Package 164



Agenda Package 165



Agenda Package 166



Agenda Package 167



Agenda Package 168



Agenda Package 169



Agenda Package 170



Agenda Package 171



Agenda Package 172



Agenda Package 173



Agenda Package 174



Agenda Package 175



Agenda Package 176



Agenda Package 177



Agenda Package 178



Agenda Package 179



Agenda Package 180



Agenda Package 181



Agenda Package 182



Agenda Package 183



Agenda Package 184



Agenda Package 185



Agenda Package 186



Agenda Package 187



Agenda Package 188



Agenda Package 189



Agenda Package 190



Agenda Package 191


	Board Letter - Agenda
	Minutes
	4th - Proposed Rates and Fees
	6th - FY 2015 Financial Audit
	7th - American Water Chemicals
	8th - Grass Carp
	9th - Valve Exercise and Assessment Program
	10A - WA #109
	10B - WA #110
	10C - WA #111
	11th - Waterway Cleanup
	12B - Engineer's Report
	Utility Billing Work Orders
	Water Plant Report
	Wastewater Department Report
	Drainage Department Report
	Field Report
	Financials



